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Information Concerning Forward Looking Statements

Certain of the statements contained in this report {other than the historical financial data and other statements
of historical fact), including, without limitation, statements as to management’s expectations and beliefs, are
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements were based on various facts and were derived
utilizing numerous important assumptions and other important factors, and changes in such facts, assumptions or
factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements include the information concerning our future financial performance, business strategy, projected plans
and objectives. Statements preceded by, followed by or that otherwise include the words “believes,” “expects,”
"anticipates,” "strategies,” “prospects,” “intends,” “projecls,” “estimates,” “plans,” “may increase,” “may fluctuate,”
and similar expression or future or conditional verbs such as "will," "should,” "would,” “may” and “could” are
generally forward iooking in nature and not historical facts. This report includes important information as to risk
factors in “item 1. Business”, “ltem 1A. Risk Faclors”, and “ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Many important factors could cause actual results to differ
materially from management’s expectations, including:

B ow, L LY "o

= adverse developments in general business, economic and political conditions or any outbreak or escalation
of hostilities on a national, regional or international basis;

» changes in international or U.S. economic¢ conditions, such as inflation, interest rate fluctuations, foreign
exchange rate fluctuations or recessions in our markets;

* unprediclable difficulties or delays in the development of new product technology;

= pricing changes 1o our supplies or products or those of our competitors, and other competitive pressures
on pricing and sales;

* adverse developmenis in the business of our key customers;

* changes in the environmental regulations that affect cur current and future products;

* competition in our existing and future lines of business and the financial resources of competitors;

« our failure to comply with regulations and any changes in regulations;

* our failure to complete potential future acquisitions or to realize benefits from completed acquisitions;
s our ability to access debt markets on a favorable basis;

s our inability to implement our growth plan;

» the loss of any of our senior management;

= difficulties in oblaining or retaining the management and other human resource competencies that we need
lo achieve our business objeclives;

* labor refations;

= risks inherent in operaling in foreign countries, including exposure to local economic conditions,
government regulation, currency restrictions and other restraints, changes in tax laws, expropriation,
political instability and diminished ability to legally enforce our contractual rights;

* the actuai level of commercial vehicle production in our end-markets; and
* periodic changes to contingent liabilities, including those associated with litigation matters and government

investigations.

Except for our ongoing obligations to disclose material information under the federal securities laws, we undertake
no obligation to release publicly any revisions to any forward-looking statements, 1o repert events or 1o repori the
occurrence of unanticipated events unless we are required 1o do so by law.




ITEM1. BUSINESS
Overview

Except as otherwise indicated or unless context otherwise requires "WABCQO.”, “WABCO Holdings Inc.,” “we,”

"o

‘us,” “our,” and “our company” refer to WABCO Holdings Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

WABCO is a leading provider of electric and electromechanical products for the world’s leading commercial
truck, trailer, bus and passenger car manufacturers. We manufacture and sell control systems, including advanced
braking, stability, suspension, transmission controt and air compressing and processing systems, that improve
vehicle performance and safety and reduce overall vehicle operating costs. Based on internal estimates, we
estimate that our products are included in approximately two out of three commercial vehicles with advanced
vehicle control systems and offered in sophisticated, niche applications in cars and sport utility vehicles {SUVs), We
continue 1o grow in more pars of the world as we provide more compeonents and systems throughout the life of a
vehicle, from design and development to the aftermarkel.

History of Our Company

WABCO was founded in the United States in 1869 as Weslinghouse Air Brake Company. We were purchased
by American Standard Companies Inc. {or “American Standard”) in 1968 and operated as the Vehicle Controls
Systerns business division within American Standard until we were spun off from American Standard on July 31,
2007. Subsequent to our spin off, American Standard changed its name to Trane Inc., which we refer to herein as
“Trane”.

The Separation of WABCO from Trane

The spin off by Trane of its Vehicle Controls Systems business became effective on July 31, 2007, through a
distribution of 100% of the common stock of WABCO to the holders of record of Trane's common stock on July 19,
2007 (the “Distribution™). The Distribution was effected through a separation and distribution agreement pursuant to
which Trane distributed all of the shares of WABCQO common stock as a dividend on Trane common stock, in the
amount of one share of WABCO common stock for every three shares of outstanding Trane common stock to each
stockholder on the record date. Trane received a privale letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service and an
opinion from tax counsel indicating that the spin-off was tax free to the stockholders of Trane and WABCO. Please
refer 1o Item 1A of Part | “Risk Factors” below for information on the tax risks associated with the spin off from
Trane.

Our Relationship with Trane

On July 18, 2007, we entered into definitive agreements with Trane that, among other things, set forth the
terms and conditions of our separation from Trane (“Separation”) and provide a framework for the refationship
between WABCO and Trane following the Separation. These agreements govern our relationship with Trane
subsequent to the completion of the Separation and provide for the allocation between WABCO and Trane of
assels, liabilities and obligations atiributable to periods prior to the Separation. In addition to the Separation and
Distribution Agreement, which contains many of the key provisions related to the Separation of WABCO and the
Distribution of WABCOQO's common stock to Trane's sharehaolders, the pariies also entered into a Tax Sharing
Agreement, a Transition Services Agreement, an Employee Malters Agreement and an Indemnitication and
Cooperation Agreement. A summary of each such agreement is set forth below:

Separation and Distribution Agreement — sets forth WABCO's agreements with Trane regarding principal
transactions necessary to separate WABCO from Trane, This agreement afso sets forth the other agreements that
govern certain aspects of WABCQ's relationship with Trane after the completion of the Separation from Trane and
provides for the allocation of certain assels to be transferred, liahilities to be assumed and contracts to be assigned
to WABCO and Trane as part of the Separation.

Tax Sharing Agreement — governs the parties' respective rights, responsibilities and obligations after the
Distribution with respect to taxes, including ordinary course of business taxes and taxes, if any, incurred as a resull
of any failure of the Distribution of ali of the common shares of WABCO to qualify as a tax-free distribution for U.S.
federal income tax purposes within the meaning of Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
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Transition Services Agreement — governed the orderly transition of WABCO becoming an independent
company. Under the Transition Services Agreement, WABCO and Trane agreed to provide each other with various
services, including services relating to human resources, payroli, treasury and risk management, environmental
technology, tax compliance, telecommunications services and information technology services. The cost of each
transition service was generally on the same payment terms and calculated using the same cost allocation
methodologies for the particular service as those associated with the costs in the historical financial statements. The
majority of the services provided under the transition services agreement expired on February 1, 2008.

Employee Matters Agreement — allocates liabifities and responsibilities relating to employee compensation and
benelit plans and programs and other related matters in connection with the Separation, including the treatment of
outstanding incentive awards and certain retirement and welfare benefit obligations, both in and outside of the
United States. For further detail, please refer to Note 5 — Stock-Based Compensation in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

indemnification and Cooperation Agreement — Pursuant to this agreement, WABCO Europe BVBA (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of WABCQO), has agreed to be responsible for and to indemnify American Standard (now
Trane) and its subsidiaries (including certain subsidiaries formerly engaged in the Bath and Kitchen business) and
their respective afliliates against any fines relaled to the European Commission’s investigation, as outlined in a
Statement of Objections received by American Standard and certain of its European subsidiaries on March 28,
2007, into possible infringement of European Union competition regulations. For further detail, please refer to Legal
Proceedings below and Note 13 — Warranties, Guarantees, Commitments and Contingencies in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Products and Services

We develop, manutacture and sell advanced braking, stability, suspension and transmission control systems
primarily for commercial vehicles. Our largest-selling products are pneumatic anti-lock braking systems (ABS),
electronic braking systems (EBS), automated manual transmission systems, air disk brakes, and a large array of
conventional mechanical products such as actuators, air compressors and air control valves for heavy- and
medium-sized trucks, trailers and buses. We also supply advanced electronic suspension controls and vacuum
pumps to the car and SUV markets in Europe and North America. In addition, we sell replacement parts, diagnostic
tools, training and other services to commercial vehicle aftermarket distributors, repair shops, and fleet operators.

WABCO is a leader in improving highway satety, with products that help drivers avoid accidents by enhancing
vehicle responsiveness and stability. For example, we offer a stability control system for trucks and buses that
constantly monitors the vehicle’s motion and dynamic stability. If the system detects a vehicle instability such as the
driver swerving lo avoid another vehicle—it responds by applying the brakes at specific wheels, or slowing the
vehicte down to minimize the risk of instability or a rollover.




Our key product groups and functions are described below.

WABCO KEY PRODUCT GROUPS

SYSTEM /PRODUCT

FUNCTION

Actuators

Actuates Brakes in Trucks, Buses, Trailers

Alr Compressors and Air Processing/Air
Management Systems

Provides Clean, Compressed Air for Braking,
Suspension and other Pneumatic Systems on Trucks,
Buses, Cars

Foundation Brakes

Transmits Power of Braking System to the Wheel for
Trucks, Buses, Trailers

Anti-lock Braking Systems (ABS)

Prevenis Wheel Locking during Braking for Trucks,
Buses, Trailers

Conventional Braking Systems

Mechanical and Pneumatic Controt of Braking
Systems for Trucks, Buses, Trailers

Electronic Braking Systems (EBS)

Electronic Controls-of Braking Systems for Trucks,
Buses, Trailers

Electronic and Conventional Air Suspension Systems

Provides Stability, Comfort and Even Weight
Distribution for Trucks, Buses, Trailers, Cars

Automated Manual Transmission Systems

Autormates Gear Shifling for Trucks and Buses
manual transmission

Vehicle ESC/RSS

Provides Stability during Deceleration for Frucks,
Buses, Trailers

Key Markets and Trends

Electronically controlled preducts and systems are an important growth segment of our business. The market
for these products is driven primarily by the growing electronics content of control systemns in commercial vehicles.
The electronics content has been increasing steadily with each successive platform introduction, as original
equipment manufacturers (OEMs} look to improve safety and performance through added functionalities, and meet
evolving regulatory safety standards. Although the pace varies, there are growth trends in all major geographies,
and braking systems are part of this broader shift from conventional to advanced electronic systems. In addition to
increasing safety, improving stopping distances, and reducing instalfation complexity, advanced EBS also allow for
new functionality to be introduced into vehicles at a lower price. The new functionality includes stability control,
adaptlive cruise control, automated transmission controls, brake performance warning, vehicle diagnostics, driver
assistance systems and engine braking/speed control. Adaptive cruise control uses sensors to detect proximity to
other vehicles and automatically adjusts speed. Aulomated transmission contrels reduce the amount of gear
shifting, resulting in less physical effort and training required for drivers, less component wear, fewer parts, better
fuel efficiency, and enhanced driver safety and comfort.

A fundamental driver of demand for our products is commercial truck production. Commercial truck production
generally iollows a multi-year cyclicat pattern. While the number of new commercial vehicles built fluctuates each
year, we have demonstrated the ability to grow in excess of these fluctuations by increasing the amount of content
on each vehicle. For example, over the past 5 years, WABCO's European sales to truck and bus ("T&B™) OEM
customers grew at an average annual rate of approximately 12%, excluding the impact of currency exchange rates,
which outperformed the Western European T&B production.,



Average

Year to Year Change 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Change
Sales to European T&B OEMSs (ata constant FXrate) ............ +9% +23% +6% +10% +12% +12%
Western European T&B Production ......... ... ... ... ... ..., +5% +19% +5% +5% +10%  +9%
Customers

We sell our products prirmarily to four groups of customers around the world: truck and bus (OEMSs), trailer
{OEMs), commercial vehicle aftermarket distributors for replacement parts and services, and major car
manufacturers. Our largest customer is Daimler, which accounts for approximately 14% of our sales. Gther key
customers include Arvin Meritor, Cummins, Fiat (lveco), Ford, General Motors, Hino, Hyundai, International Truck &
Engine Corporation (ITE), MAN Nutzfahrzeuge AG {MAN), Meritor WABCO (a joint venture), Nissan Diesel, Paccar
(DAF Trucks N.V. (DAF), Kenworth, Leyland and Peterbuilt), Otto Sauer Achsenfabrik (SAF), Scania, Volvo (Mack
and Renault} and ZF Friedrichshafen AG (ZF). For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, our top 10 customers
accounted for approximately 54% of our sales. In 2007, WABCO was nominated to become Daimier's future
exclusive supplier of ABS and EBS wheel speed sensors for Europe, North America, and South America. In
addition, WABCO’s success in serving emerging markels was evidenced by receiving several distinguished supplier
awards from Yutong and CNHTC in 2007,

The largest group of our customers, representing approximately 60% of sales, consists of truck and bus OEMs
who are large, increasingly global and few in number due to continued consolidation {driven largely by European
players). As truck and bus OEMs grow globally, they expect suppliers to grow with them beyond their traditional
markets and become reliable pariners, especially in the development of new technologies. WABCO has a strong
reputation for technological innovation and often collaborates closely with major OEM customers to design and
develop the technologies used in its products. Our products play an important role in vehicle safety and there are
few other suppliers who compete across the breadth of products that we supply. As a result, pricing pressure,
though increasing, is generally lower than for providers of more commoditized products or passenger cars and light
truck product suppliers.

The second largest group, representing approximately 21% of sales, consists of the commercial vehicle
aftermarket distributor network that provides replacement parts to commercial vehicle operators. This distributor
network is a fragmented and diverse group of customers, covering a broad spectrum from large OE-affiliated or
owned distributors to small independent local distributors. The increasing number of commercial trucks in operation
world-wide that are equipped with our products continuously increases demand for replacement parts and services,
thus generating a growing stream of recurring aftermarket sales. Additionally, we intend to develop an array of
sesvice offerings such as diagnostics, training and other services 1o repair shops and fleet operators that will further
enhance our presence and growth in the commercial vehicle aftermarket.

The next largest group, representing approximately 14% of sales, consists of trailer manufacturers. Trailer
manutfacturers are also a fragmented group of local or regicnal players with great diversity in business size, focus
and operation. Trailer manufacturers are highly dependent on suppliers such as WABCO to provide technical
expertise and product knowledge. Similar to truck and bus OEMSs, trailer manufacturers rely heavily on our products
for imporiant safety functions and superior technology.

The smallest group, representing approximately 5% of sales, consists of car and SUV manufacturers to whom
WABCO sells electronic air suspension systems and vacuum pumps. Electronic air suspension is a luxury feature
with increasing penetration and above market growth. Vacuum pumps are used with diesel engines and, therefore,
enjoy higher than average growth rates associated with increasing diesel applications in Europe and Asia. These
customers are typicaliy large, global, sophisticated and demand high product quality and overall service levels.

We address our customers through a global sales force that is organized around key accounts and customer
groups and interfaces with product marketing and management to identify opporiunities and meet customer needs
across its product portfolio.

Europe represents approximately 76% of our sales, with the remainder coming primarily from the Americas and
Asia. Our products are also manufactured in Europe, Asia and in the Americas.
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WABCO SALES
BY GECGRAPHY MAJOR END-MARKETS

Asia/Rest of World % of Sales
12% I —

*  Truck & Bus products (OEMs) 60%

“"1322“7/ +  Aftermarket 21%

* Trailer Products 14%

E?;f.m * Car products 5%

Backlog

Information on our backlog is set forth under ltem 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Backlog” of this annual report.

Cyclical and Seasonal Nature of Business

information on the cyclical and seascnal nature of our business is set torth under ltem 7 "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Cyclical and Seasonal Nature of
Business” of this annual report,

Growth Strategy

Our growth strategy is focused on four key platforms: technology innovation, geographic expansion,
aftermarket growth and opporiunistic automotive application of cur products and systems. Drivers of growth for both
our aftermarket and advanced car systems are discussed in “Customers™ above.

Technology

We continue to drive growth by utilizing our industry-leading expertise in developing electronically controlled
systems, including braking, transmission automation, air suspension and air management systems. We have a
sirong track record of innovation and are responsible for some of the industry’s most important innovations
including:

« First heavy-duty truck anti-lock braking system (ABS);

+ First electronically controlled air suspension (ECAS) systemn for commercial vehicles;
« First commercial vehicle automated manual transmission controls system;

« First electronic stability control (ESC) system for commercial vehicles; and

« First collision safety system with active braking developed for the North American market, based on
Adaptive Cruise Control technology (ACC).

We continue to expand our product and technology porifolio by introducing new products and functionalities,
and by improving the penetration of recently launched technologies. Advanced products and functionalities are
typically developed and adopted first in Europe and then migrate to North America and Asia. Important examples
include the adoption of ABS and automated transmission systems that were first widely adopted in European
markets before starting to penetrate North America. Over the last three years, we spent approximately $230 million
for research activities, product development and product engineering.

We are also focused on longer-term opportunities, paricularly in the areas of emissions controls and Driver
Assistance Systems (DAS). DAS is a technology concept that involves connecling advanced sensors with truck
control devices, such as braking and steering syslems as well as engine controls, to improve safety and avoid
collisions. We have already launched some of the elements that would allow this concept to be brought to market,
such as the adaptive cruise control already in use by several OEMs, and are well posilioned for future growth in this
area.



Geographic Expansion

We continue to drive sales in high growth markets in Eastern Europe, China and India. In Eastern Europe, we
have been manutacturing products since 2001. The market in Eastern Europe has been experiencing rapid growth
and we have established relationships with local customers.

China is a key growth market for us. The number of trucks built in the country is continuing to increase and
adoption of the advanced systems and products made by us is increasing. We have been in China since 1996 and
are the leading provider of ABS systems, with a strong brand and established customer relationships. In the shon-to
medium-term, growth will be driven by the enforcement of existing regulations making ABS mandatory on trucks,
buses and trailers, of which we are well positioned to take advantage. Additional near term growth wili be driven by
introducing new products into the local market such as air compressors, cluich servos and automated manual
transmission systems. To serve the growing demand for products both in China and for export, we have two
facilities to manufacture conventional products, advanced systems such as ABS, and new modular air compressors.
In order to make sure opportunities in Asia receive enough focus and managemaent attention we have increased our
management presence in the region.

India is another future growth market for us due to the number of trucks being built as well as the expected
future adoption of more advanced systems in commercial vehicles. We participate in the market through a joint
venture with the TVS Group (Sundaram-Clayton Ltd.) {*"SCL"), which sells primarily conventional braking products,
as the more advanced systems have only started to be introduced. India also provides us a strong base for sourcing
and engineering aclivities, which we are actively developing. The joint venture is described further below in the
section entitied “Joint Ventures.”

Sales in High Growth Markets
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Competition

Given the importance of technological leadership, vehicle life-cycle expertise, reputation for quality and
reliability, and the growing joint collaboration between OEMs and suppliers to drive new product development, the
space in which we mostly operate has not historically had a large number of competitors. Our principal competitors
are Knorr-Bremse (Knorr's U.S. subsidiary is Bendix Commercial Vehicle Systems} and, in certain categories,
Haldex. In the advanced electronics categories, automotive players such as Bosch (automotive) and Conlinental
(including Siemens-VDOQY) have recently been present in some commercial vehicle applications. In the mechanical
product categories, several Asian competitors are emerging, primarily in China, although they are more focused on
low complexity mechanica! products rather than the advanced electronic systems that we emphasize.

Manufacturing and Operations

Most of our manufacturing sites and distribution centers produce and/or house a broad range of products and
serve all different types of customers. Currently, over 45% of our manufacturing workiforce is located in low coslt
countries such as China and Poland compared with approximately 10% in 1999. Facilities in fow cost countries have
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helped reduce costs on the simpler and more labor-intensive products, while the facilities in Western Europe are
focused on producing more complex technologies. All facilities globally are deploying Six Sigma Lean initiatives to
improve productivity and reduce costs. By applying the Six Sigma philosophy and tools we seek to improve quality
and predictability of our process. Lean is geared towards eliminating waste in cur supply chain, manufacturing and
administrative processes. Both methodologies are customer driven and data based. in addition, our global supply
chain team makes decisions on where to manufacture which products 1aking into account such factors as local and
export demand, customer approvals, cost, key supplier locations and factory capabilities.

Our global sourcing organization purchases a wide variety of components including electrical, electro-
mechanical, cast aluminum products and steel, as well as copper, rubber and pfastic containing components that
represant a substantial portion of manufacturing costs. We source products on a global basis from three key
regions: Western Europe, Central and Eastern Europe and Asia. To support the continuing shift of manufacturing to
low cost countries, we also continue to shift more of our sourcing to low cost regions. Under the leadership of the
global sourcing organization, which is organized around commaodity and product groups, we identify and develop
key suppliers and seek to integrate them as parnners into our extended enterprise. Many of our western suppliers
are accompanying us on our move to low cost countries. Since 1999, the share of sourcing from low cost regions
has increased from 10% 1o approximately 36%.

We have developed a strong posilion in the design, development, engineering and testing of products,
compoenents and systems. We are generally regarded in the industry as a systems expert, having in-depth technical
knowledge and capabilities to support the development of advanced technology applications. Key customers
depend on us and will typically involve us very early in the development process as they begin designing next
generation platforms. We have over 800 employees dedicated to developing new products, components and
systems as well as supporting and enhancing current applications. Our “front-end” sales organization hosts
application engineers that are based near customers in all regions around the world and are partially resident at
some customer locations. We also have significant resources in low cost countries performing “back-end” functions
such as drawings, testing and software component development. We operate test tracks in Germany, Finland (for
extreme weather test conditions) and India (through cur SCL joint venture).

Joint Ventures

We use joint venture partners globally to expand and enhance our access to customers. Our important joint
ventures are:

« A 50 percent owned joint venture in North America with Arvin Meritor Automotive Inc. (Meritor WABCQ)
that markets ABS and other vehicle control products.

= A majority-owned (70%) partnership in the U.S. with Cummins Engine Co. (WABCO Compressor
Manufacturing Co.}, a manufacturing partnership formed to produce air compressors designed by
WABCO.

+ A majority-owned joint venture (70%) in China with Mingshui Automotive Fitting Factory (MAFF) that
provides conventional mechanical products o the local market.

= A majority-owned joint venture {90%) in Japan with Sanwa-Seiki that distributes WABCO's products in the
local market.

* Minority equity investment in a joint venture in India with the TVS Group {SCL) (39%). The joint venture
currently manufactures and sells both brakes and non-brakes related products; however we and our Indian
joint venture partner have agreed to separate the non-brakes division from the brakes division through a
plan of demerger, which is conditioned on various Indian regulatory and court approvals. If these
conditions are met, the brakes business of SCL will be transferred to a new subsidiary, WABCO-TVS
(INDIA} Ltd., the shares of which are intended to be listed in India as are the shares of SCL currently, See
ltem 7 “Management’s Discussion and analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Equity
in Net Income of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures and Other Income/{Expense)”, for more detail on the
demerger.

» A minority equity investment in a joint veniure in South Africa, where we have a 49% ownership joint
venture with Sturrock & Robson Lid (WABCO SA), a distributor of braking systems products.

7



Employees

We have approximately 7,700 employees. Approximately 50% of cur employees are salaried and 50% are
hourly. Approximately 83% of our worklorce is in Europe, 10% is in Asia, and the remaining 7% is in the Americas.
All but approximately 1,440 of our employees are permanent employees. Approximately 290 of the non-permanent
employees are leased through employment agencies and approximately 1,150 have limited term contracts,
Approximately 800 employees work in engineering/product development.

Employees located in our sites in Europe, Asia and South America are subject to collective bargaining, with
internal company agreements or external agreements at the region or country level. Currently 97% of our workforce
is covered by a collective bargaining agreement and 95% of those agreements expire within the current year. These
employees' right to strike is typically protected by law and union membership is confidential information which does
not have 1o be provided to the employer. The collective bargaining agreements are typically renegotiated on an
annual basis. Our U.5. facilities are non-union. We have maintained good relationships with our employees around
the world and historically have experienced very few work stoppages.

Intellectual Property

Patents and other proprietary rights are important to our business. We also rely upon trade secrets,
manufacturing know-haw, continuing technological innovations, and licensing opportunities to maintain and improve
our competitive position. We review third-party proprietary righls, including patents and patent applications, as
available, in an effort to develop an effective intellectual property strategy, avoid infringement of third-party
proprietary rights, identify licensing opportunities, and monitor the intellectual property claims of others,

We own a large portfolio of patents that principally relate to our products and technologies, and we have, from
time to time, licensed some of our patents. Patents for individual products and processes exiend for varying periods
according to the date of patent filing or grant and the legal term of patents in various countries where patent
protection is obtained.

The WABCO brand is also protected by trademark registrations throughout the world in the key markets in
which our products are sold.

While we consider our patents and trademarks 1o be valuable assets, we do not believe that our competitive
position is dependent upon patent and trademark protection or that our operations are materially dependent upon
any single patent or group of related patents.

Environmental Regulation

Our operations are subject to local, state, lederal and foreign environmental laws and regulations that govern
activities or operations that may have adverse environmentat effects and which impose liability for clean-up costs
resulting from past spills, disposals or other releases of hazardous wastes and environmental compliance,
Generally, the international requirements that impact the majority of our operations tend to be no more restrictive
than those in effect in the U.S.

Throughout the world, we have been dedicated to being an environmentally responsible manutacturer,
neighbor and employer. We have a number of proactive programs under way to minimize our impact on the
environment and believe that we are in substantial compliance with environmental laws and regulations.
Manutacturing facilities are audited on a regular basis. Eleven of our manufacturing facilities have Environmenial
Management Systems (EMS), which have been certified as ISC 14001 compliant. These facilities are those located
in:

Claye-Souilly, France Campinas, Brazil Wroclaw, Poland
Gronau, Germany Hannover, Germany Jinan, China
Leeds, UK Pyungtaek, Korea Qingdao, China
Meppel, Netherlands Mannheim, Germany

A number of our facilities are undertaking responsive actions to address groundwater and soil issues. We are
currently a potential party to remedial actions under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liabitity Act (Superfund} and similar state statutes at one location. The Superfund liability relates to Trane's
Bath and Kitchen business prior to the sale of that business and was assumed by WABCO under the Separation &
Distribution Agreement as part of the Separation. Expenditures in 2007 to evaluate and remediate these sites were
not material.




Additional sites may be identified for environmental remediation in the fulure, including properties previously
transferred and with respect to which the Company may have contractual indemnification obligations.

Available Information

Qur web site is located at www.wabco-auto.com. Qur periodic reports and all amendments to those reports
required to be filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are
available tree of charge through the web site. During the period covered by this report, we posted our periodic
reports on Form 10-Q and our current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those documenis 1o our web
site as soon as such reports were filed or furnished electronically with the SEC. We will conlinue to post to our web
site such reponts and amendments as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are filed with or furnished
to the SEC.

Code of Conduct and Ethics

Our Code of Conduct and Ethics, which applies to all employees, including alt executive officers and senior
financial officers and directors, is posted on our web site www.wabco-auto.com. The Code of Conduct and Ethics is
compliant with ltem 406 of SEC Regulation S-K and the NYSE corporate governance listing standards. Any
changes to the Code of Conduct and Ethics that affect the provisions required by Item 406 of Regutation S-K will
also be disclosed on the web site.

Any waivers of the Code of Conduct and Ethics for our executive officers, directors or senior financial officers
must be approved by our Audit Committee and those waivers, if any are ever granted, would be disclosed on our
web site under the caption “Exemptions to the Code of Conduct and Ethics.” There have been no waivers to the
Code of Conduct and Ethics,

Availability of Corporate Governance Principles and Board of Director Committee Charters

The Board of Directors bas adopled charters for its Audit Committee and Compensation, Nominating and
Governance Committee. The Board has also adopted Corporate Governance Principles and the Company's
Definition of Director Independence. The Corporate Governance Principles, the Company's Definition of Director
Independence, the Code of Conduct and Ethics referenced above, and each of the charters are available on the
Company's web site. These materials, together with the Code of Conduct and Ethics referenced above, are
available in print to any shareholder who requests them in writing by contacting the Assistant Secretary of the
Company at One Centennial Avenue P.O. Box 6820, Piscataway, New Jersey 08855.

Sarbanes-Oxley Section 302 Certifications

The certification of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company pursuant 1o
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 have been filed as exhibits to this Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Any of the following factors could materially adversely affect our future operating results as well as other factors
included in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Information
Concerning Forward Looking Statements.”

Risks Relating to Our Business

Our sales could decline due to macro-economic factors, cyclicality of the industry, regulatory changes and
other factors outside of our control.

Changes in economic conditions, cyclical downturns in our industry, regulatory changes impacting the
purchasing patterns of commercial vehicles, and changes in the local economies of the countries or regions in
which we sell our products, such as changes in consumer confidence, increases in interest rates and increases in
unemployment, could affect demand for our products, which could negatively affect our business and results of
operalions.

Demand for new trucks and buses in the markets in which we operate has a significant impact on our sales. In
the last few years, heavy truck and bus preduction has increased in our largest market (Western Europe). tn 2007,
Waestern Europe accounted tfor approximately 53% of our total sales, and North America accounted for
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approximately 7% of our total sales. Adverse economic conditions in our markets, particularly in Western Europe,
and other factors may cause our customers to reduce truck and bus production, which could have an adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial condition.

Our exposure to exchange rafe fluctuations on cross border transactions and the translation of local
currency results into U.S. dollars could negatively impact our results of operations.

We conduct business through subsidiaries in many different countries, and fluctuations in currency exchange
rates have a significant impact on the reported results of our operations, which are presented in U.S. dollars. In
2007, approximately 93% of our combined sales occurred outside of the United States. A significant and growing
portion of cur products are manutactured in lower-cost locations and sold in various countries. Cross border
transactions, both with external parties and intercompany relationships, result in increased exposure to foreign
exchange eftects. Accordingly, significant changes in the exchange rates of the Euro, U.S. dollar and other
applicable currencies could cause fluctuations in the reported results of our operations that could negatively atfect
our results of operations. Additionally, our results of operations are transtated into U.S. dollars for reporting
purposes. The strengthening or weakening of the U.S. dollar could result in favorable or unfavorable translation
elfects as the results of foreign locations are translated into U.S. dollars. Other than our nalural hedge which is
discussed in Item 7A. "Quantitative and Qualitative Discussion on Market Risk” below, we do not hedge any of our
foreign exchange exposures.

We are subject to general risks associated with our foreign operations.

In addition to the currency exchange risks inherent in operating in many different foreign countries, there are
other risks inherent in our international operations.

The risks related to our foreign operations that we more often face in the normal course of business include:

* changes in non-U.S. tax law, increases in non-U.S. 1ax rates and the amount of non-U.S. earnings relative
to total combined earnings could change and impact our combined tax rate;

* foreign earnings may be subject to withholding requirements or the impasition of tariffs, price or exchange
controls, or other restrictions, including restrictions on repatriation of earnings;

* general economic and political conditions in countries where we operate may have an adverse efiect on
our operations in those countries; and

+ we may have difficulty complying with a variety of foreign laws and regulations, some of which may conflict
with United States taw, and the uncerainty created by this legal environment could fimit our ability to
effectively enforce our rights in certain markets.

The ability to manage these risks could be difficult and may limit our operations and make the manufacture and
distribution of our products internationally more difficult, which could negatively affect our business and resulls of
operations.

If we are unable to obtain component parts or obtain them at reasonable price levels, our ability to maintain
existing sales margins may be affected.

We purchase a broad range of materials and components throughout the world in connection with our
manufacturing activities. Major items include electronic components and parts containing aluminum, steel, copper,
zine, rubber and plastics. The cost of components and parts, and the raw materials used therein, represents a
significant portion of our total costs. Price increases of the underlying commodities may adversely affect our resuits
of operations. Although we currently maintain alternative sources for components and parts, our business is subject
to the risk of price fluctuations and periodic delays in the delivery of certain raw materials. The sudden inability of a
supplier to deliver components or to do so at reasonable prices could have a temporary adverse effect on our
production of cerlain products or the cost at which we can produce those products. Any change in the supply or
price of raw malerials could materially adversely affect our future business and results of operations.
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If we are not able to maintain good relations with our employees, we could suffer work stoppages that
could negatively affect our business and results of operations.

Employees located in our sites in Europe, Asia and South America are subjec! to collective bargaining, with
internal company agreements or external agreements at the region or country level. These employees’ right 1o
strike is typically protected by law and union membership is confidential information which does not have to be
provided to the employer. Our U.S. facilities are non-union. Any disputes with our employee base could result in
work stoppages or labor protests, which could disrupt our operations. Any such labor disputes could negatively
affect our business and results of operations.

We are dependent on key customers.

We rely on several key customers. For fiscal 2007, cur top ten customers accounted for 54% of our sales, and
our top three customers, accounted for approximately 14%, 11% and 5%, respectively, of our sales. This includes
sales 10 our 50%-owned Meritor WABCO joint venture in North America. Many of our customers place orders for
products on an as-needed basis and operate in cyclical industries and, as a result, their order levels have varied
from period to period in the past and may vary significantly in the future. Such customer orders are dependent upon
their markets and customers and may be subject to delays or canceliations. As a result of dependence on our key
custorners, we could experience a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations if any of the
following were to occur:

= the loss of any key customer, in whole or in part;
« a decfining market in which customers reduce orders or demand reduced prices; or

» a strike or work stoppage at a key customer facility, which could affect both their suppliers and customers.

If there are changes in the environmental or other regulations that affect one or more of our current or
future products, it could have a negative impact on our business and resulits of operations.

We are currently subject to various environmenital and other regulations in the U.S. and internationally. A risk of
environmental liability is inherent in our current and former manufacturing activities. Under certain environmental
laws, we could be held jointly and severally responsible for the remediation of any hazardous substance
contamination at our past and present facilities and at third party waste disposal sites and could also be held liable
for damages 1o natural resources and any conseguences arising out of human exposure to such substances or
other environmental damage. While we have a number of proactive programs underway to minimize the impact of
the production and use of our products on the environment and believe that we are in substantial compliance with
environmental laws and regulations, we cannot predict whether there will be changes in the environmental
regulations aflecting our products.

Any changes in the environmental and other regulations which affect our current or future products could have
a negative impact on our business if we are unable to adjust our product offering to comply with such regulatory
changes. In addition, it is possible that we will incur increased costs as'a resuft of complying with environmental
regulations, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

We may be subject to product liability and warranty and recall claims, which may increase the costs of
doing business and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to a risk of product liability or warranly ¢laims if our products actually or allegedly fail to perform
as expecled or the use of our products results, or is alleged to result, in bodily injury and/or property damage. While
we maintain reasonable limits of insurance coverage to appropriately respond to such exposures, large product
liability claims, if made, could exceed our insurance coverage limits and insurance may not continue to be available
on cammercially acceptable terms, if at all. We cannot assure you that we will not incur significant costs to defend
these claims or that we will not experience any product tiability losses in the future. In addition, if any ¢of our
designed products are or are alleged to be defeclive, we have been required to participate in recalls and exchanges
of such products in the past and we may be in the future. In the past five years, our warranty expense has
fluctuated between approximalely 1.1% and 2.2% of sales on an annual basis. Individual quarters were above or
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below the annual averages. The tuture cost associated with providing product warranties and/or bearing the cost of
repair or replacement of our products could exceed our historical experience and have a material adverse efiect on
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are required to plan our capacity well in advance of production and our success depends on having
available capacity and effectively using it.

We principally compete for new business at the beginning of the development of our customers’ new products.
Our customers’ new product development generally begins significantly prior o the marketing and production of
their new products and our supply of our products generally lasts for the life of our customers' products.
Nevertheless, our customers may move business to other suppliers or request price reductions during the life cycle
of a product. The long development and sales cycle of our new products, combined with the specialized nature of
many of our facilities and the resulting difficulty in shifting work from one facility to another, could resull in variances
in capacity utilization. In order to meet our customers’ requirements, we may be required to supply our customers
regardless of cost and consequently we may suffer an adverse impact on our operating profit margins and results of
operations. ’

We must continue to make technological advances, or we may not be able to successfully compete in our
industry.

We operate in an industry in which technological advancements are necessary to remain competitive.
Accordingly, we devote substantial resources to improve already technologically complex products and to remain a
leader in technological innovation. However, it we fail to continue to make technological improvements or our
competitors develop technologically superior products, it could have an adverse effect on our operating results or
financial condition.

We may be unable to secure and maintain access to debt markets on acceptable terms.

We have in place bank credit facilities that are available to provide financing. The ongoing cost of these
facilities or their renewal will be impacted by our financial performance as well as by market conditions. Adverse
changes in these factors could increase our borrowing cost or limit our financial flexibility, which could impact our
ability to maintain or grow our business.

Risks Relating to the Separation

We have limited operating history as a separate public company and our historical financial information
prior to Separation is not necessarily representative of the results we would have achieved as a separate
public company and may not be a reliable indicator of our future resulls.

The historical financial information included in this annual report does not fully refiect the financial condition,
results of operations or cash flows that we would have achieved as a separate publicly traded company during the
periods presented or those that we will achieve in the future primarily as a result of the following factors:

* Prior to our Separation, our business was operated by Trane as pan of its broader corporate organization,
rather than as an independent company. Trane or one of its affiliates performed various corporate
functions for us, including, but not limited to, tax administration, certain governance functions (including
compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and internal audit) and external reporting, and human
resource administration. Our historical and pro forma financial results reflect allocations of corporate
expenses from Trane for these and similar functions. These allocations may be more or less than the
comparable expenses we believe we would have incurred had we operated as a separate publicly traded
company.

« Other significant changes may occur in our cost structure, management, financing and business
operations as a result of our operating as a company separate from Trane.
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We have experienced and will continue to experience increased costs as a result of the separation.

A significant portion of the expenses to effect the separation were incurred by Trane, such as investment
banking fees, external legal and accounting fees, legal reorganization and restructuring tax costs to separate
information systems and temporary consulting costs. WABCQO incurred the following separation costs such as
indemnaification and other tax related costs, stock compensation expense relating to the Distribution, costs
associated with early bond redemption, external legal and consulting fees, and other items such as relocation
expenses associaled with hiring senior management positions new to the Company.

If the distribution of our shares were to fail to qualify as tax-free for U.S. federal income tax purposes under
Section 355 of the Code (the “Code”), then our shareholders, we or Trane may be required to pay U.S.
federal income taxes.

Trane has received a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS") substantially to the effect
that the distribution qualifies as tax-free for U.S. federal income tax purposes under Section 355 of the Code. In
addition, Trane has received an opinion ¢of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, tax counsel to Trane,
subsiantially 1o the eifect that the distribution will qualify as tax-free to Trane, us and Trane shareholders under
Section 355 and related provisions of the Code. The ruling and opinion are based on, among other things, certain
assumptions as well as on the accuracy of certain factual representations and statements made by Trane and the
Company. In rendering its ruling, the IRS alse relied on certain covenants that the Company and Trane entered into,
including the adherence to certain restrictions on Trane's and the Company's fulure actions.

Notwilhstanding receipt by Trane of the private letter ruling and the opinion of counsel, the IRS could assert
that the distribution should be treated as a taxable transaction. If the distribution fails to qualify for tax-free
treatment, then Trane would recognize a gain in an amount equal to the excess of {i) the fair market value of our
common stock distributed to the Trane shareholders over (ii) Trane’s tax basis in such common stock. Under the
terms of the Tax Sharing Agreement, in the event the distribution were to fail to qualify as a tax-free reorganization
and such failure was not the result of actions taken after the distribution by Trane or any of its subsidiaries or
shareholders, we would be responsible for al! taxes imposed on Trane as a result thereof. In addition, each Trane
shareholder who received our common stock in the distribution generally would be treated as having received a
taxable distribution in an amount equal to the fair market value of our common stock received (including any
fractional share sofd en behalf of the shareholder), which would be taxable as a dividend to the extent of the
shareholder’s ratable share of Trane's current and accumulated earnings and profits (as increased to reflect any
current income including any gain recognized by Trane on the taxable distribution). The balance, if any, of the
distribution would be treated as a nontaxable return of capital to the extent of the Trane shareholder's tax basis in
its Trane stock, with any remaining amount being taxed as capital gain.

We have agreed to certain restrictions to preserve the treatment of the distribution of our common stock as
tax-free to Trane and its shareholders, which will reduce our strategic and operating flexibility.

In connection with the separation, we entered in to a Tax Sharing Agreement with Trane, which includes
covenanis that we shall not {ake actions that could cause the distribution to fail to quality as a tax-free transaction,
including, in certain cases, redeeming equity securities, selling or otherwise disposing of a substantial portion of our
assels or acquiring businesses or assets with equity securities (or entering into negotiations or agreements with
respect to such transactions), in each case, for a period of 24 months from the day after the distribution. We,
however, may underlake any such action if we first obtain the consent of Trane or an opinion of counsel or a private
letter ruling that such action will not adversely affect any conclusion in the private letter ruling or opinion of counsel
issued in connection with the distribution. Moreover, the Tax Sharing Agreement generally provides that we will be
responsible for any taxes imposed on Trane or us as a result of the failure of the distribution to qualify as tax-free for
U.S. federal income tax purposes under Section 355 of the Code unless such failure is attributable o certain post-
distribution actions taken by Trane (including its subsidiaries) or its shareholders.

We are responsible for certain of Trane’s contingent and other corporate liabilities.

Under the Indemnification and Cooperation Agreement, the Separation and Distribulion Agreement and the Tax
Sharing Agreement, we have assumed and are responsible for certain contingent liabilities related to Trane's
business (including cerlain associated costs and expenses, whether arising prior to, at or after the distribution} and

13




we will indemnify Trane for these liabilities. Among the contingent liabilities against which we will indemnify Trane
and certain of its subsidiaries and affitiates are liabilities associated with an investigation into alleged infringement of
European Union competition regulations, certain non-U.S. tax liabilities and certain U.S. and non-U.S.
environmental liabilities associated with certain Trane entities. Refer to Note 18, “Agreements Entered into During
the Periods Presented,” within the financial statements and footnote disclosures for additional description of these
agreements.

We will indemnify Trane and certain of its subsidiaries and affiliates against any fines associated with an
investigation into alleged infringement of European Union competition regulations.

As part of a multi-company investigation, American Standard and certain of ils European subsidiaries engaged
in the Bath and Kitchen business have been charged by the European Commission for infringements of European
Union competition rules relating to the distribution of bathroom fixtures and fittings in a number of European
countries. Pursuant to the Indemnification and Cooperation Agreement, WABCO Europe BVBA (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of WABCO) will be responsible for, and will indemnity American Standard (now Trane) and its
subsidiaries (including certain subsidiaries formerly engaged in the Bath and Kitchen business) and their respective
affiliates against any fines related to this investigation. See “ltem 3—Legal Proceedings” for additional discussion of
the procedural history, response, hearing and appeals process related to the European Commission investigation.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock

Your percentage ownership in WABCO may be diluted in the future.

Your percentage ownership in WABCO may be diluted in the future because of equity awards that have already
been granted and that we expect will be granted to our directors and officers in the future. Pricr to the Separation
and record date for the Distribution, Trane approved an Omnibus Incentive Plan, which provides for the grant of
equity-based awards, including restricted stock, restricted stock unils, stock options, stock appreciation rights,
phantom equity awards and other equity-based awards to our directors, officers and other employees. After the
Separation and record date for the Distribution, WABCO has approved its own Omnibus Incentive Plan. In the
fulure, we may issue additional equity securities, subject to limitations imposed by the Tax Sharing Agreement, in
arder to fund working capital needs, capital expenditures and product development, or to make acquisitions and
other investments, which may dilute your ownership interest.

We cannot assure you that we will pay any dividends or repurchase shares.

While we currently expect to return value to our shareholders in the form of dividends, there can be no
assurance that we will have sufficient surplus under Delaware law to pay any dividends. While we expect to return
value to shareholders in the form of share repurchases, our ability 1o repurchase shares will be limited by available
cash and surplus. Moreover, all decisions regarding the declaration and payment of dividends and share
repurchases will be at the sole discretion of our Board and will be evaluated from time to time in light of our financial
condition, earnings, capital requirements of our business, covenanis associated with certain debt obligations, legal
requirements, regulatory constraints, industry practice and other factors that our Board deems relevant.

Substantial sales of common stock may occur which could cause our stock price to decline.

Although we have no actual knowledge of any plan or intention on the par of any 5% or greater shareholder to
sell our common stock following the Separation, it is possible that some of our shareholders, including possibly
some of our large shareholders, will sell our common stock for reasons such as that our business profile or market
capitalization as an independent company does not fit their investment objectives. Moreover, index funds tied to the
Standard & Poor’s 500 Index, the Russell 1000 Index and other indices hold shares of our common stock. The sale
of significant amounts of our common stock or the perception in the market that this will occur may resutt in the
lowering of the market price of our common stock.

Our shareholder rights plan and provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and
amended and restated by-laws, and of Delaware law may prevent or delay an acquisition of our company,
which could decrease the trading price of our common stock.
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Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated by-laws and Delaware law
contain provisions that are intended to deter coercive takeover practices and inadequate takeover bids by making
such praclices or bids unacceptably expensive to the raider and to encourage prospective acguirers to negotiate
with our Board of Directors rather than to attempt a hostile takeover. These provisions include, among others:

* a Board of Directors that is divided into three classes with staggered terms;
« elimination of the right of our shareholders to act by writien consent;

* rules regarding how shareholders may presem proposals or nominate directors for election at shareholder
meetings;

» the right of our Board to issue preferred stock without shareholder approval; and

* limitations on the right of shareholders to remove directors.

Delaware law also imposes some restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between us and
any holder of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock.

On July 13, 2007, our Board adopted a shareholder rights plan, which provides, among other things, that when
specitied evenls occur, our shareholders will be entitled to purchase from us a newly created series of junior
preferred stock. The preferred stock purchase rights are triggered by the earlier 1o occur of (i) ten business days {or
a later date determined by our Board of Directors betore the rights are separated from our commeon stock) after the
public announcement that a person or group has become an “acquiring person” by acquiring beneficial ownership of
15% or more of our outstanding commaon stock or (i) ten business days {or a later dale determined by our Board
before the rights are separated from our common stock) after a person or group begins a tender or exchange offer
that, if completed, would result in that person or group becoming an acquiring person. The issuance of preferred
stock pursuant to the sharehoider rights plan would cause subsiantial dilution to a person or group that attempts to
acquirg us on terms not approved by our Board of Directors.

We believe these provisions protect our shareholders from coercive or otherwise unfair takeover tactics by
requiring potential acquirers to negotiate with our Board and by providing our Board with more time to assess any
acquisition proposal. These provisions are not intended to make our company immune from takeovers. However,
these provisions apply even if the offer may be considered beneficial by some shareholders and could delay or
prevent an acquisition that our Board determines is not in the best interests of our company and our shareholders.

ITEM 18. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM2. PROPERTIES

As of March 14, 2008, we conducted our manufacturing activities at 12 plants in 9 countries.

Ec_m_iclr_\ Major Products Manutactured at Location
Campinas, Brazil ........................... Vehicle control systems
Leeds, England ................ ... .. ....... Vacuum pumps
Claye-Souilly, France ... ..................... Vehicle control systems
Hanover, Germany .......................... Vehicle control systems
Mannheim, Germany ...................... .. Foundation brakes

Gronau, Germany .......................... Compressors and hydraulics
Meppef, Netherlands . ....................... Actuators

Wroclaw, Poland ......... ... .. ............ Vehicle control systems
Qingdao, China ..................... ... .... Braking systems

Jinan, China ... ... oo o Braking systems
Pyungtaek, Korea ... ........................ Braking systems
Charleston, United States ... ..._......... .. .. Compressors
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We own all of the plants described above, except for Claye-Souilly, France; Jinan, China and Charleston, U.S;
which are leased. Qur properties are generally in good condition, are well maintained, and are generally suitable
and adequate to carry out our business. In 2007, the manufacturing plants, taken as a whole, met our capacity
needs.

We also own or [ease warehouse and office space for administrative and sales staff. Our headquarters, located
in Brussels, Belgium, and our executive offices, located in Piscataway, New Jersey, are leased.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In addition to the matters described below, we are parly 1o a variety of legal proceedings that arise in the
normal course of our business. While the results of these legal proceedings cannol be predicied with certainty,
management believes that the final outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse eifect on our
combined results of operations or financial position.

The European Commission Investigation

In November 2004, certain of American Standard's European subsidiaries were contacted by the European
Commission as part of a multi-company investigation into possible infringement of European Union competition
regulations relating to the distribution of bathroom fixtures and fittings in cerlain European countries. In November
2005, the European Commission sent certain of American Standard’s European subsidiaries a written request for
information. On March 28, 2007, American Standard and certain of its European subsidiaries engaged in the Bath
and Kitchen business received an administrative complaint entitled a Statement of Objections from the European
Commission alleging infringements of European Union competition rules by numerous bathroom fixture and fittings
companies. Certain of these European subsidiaries have been transferred to WABCO as part of a legal
reorganization that occurred in 2007. American Standard and certain of its subsidiaries and, tollowing the legal
reorganization, certain of our subsidiaries may be jointly and severally liable for any fines that result from the
investigation. However, pursuant to the Indemnification and Cooperation Agreement, discussed above, WABCO
Europe BVBA, (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of WABCO} will be responsible for, and will indemnify American
Standard (now Trane) and its subsidiaries (including certain subsidiaries formerly engaged in the Bath and Kitchen
business) and their respective affiliates against any fines related to this investigation. On December 17, 2007, Trane
announced that it had entered into an agreement and ptan of merger with Ingersoil-Rand Company Limied
{("Ingersoli-Rand"} and Indian Merger Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ingersoll-Rand (*Merger Sub”},
providing for the acquisition of Trane by Ingersoll-Rand, a publicly traded company on the New York Stock
Exchange. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into
Trane, with Trane continuing as the surviving corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of ingersoll-Rand. This
merger will not have any impact on the Indemnification and Cooperation Agreement.

American Standard and its charged European subsidiaries have responded to the Statement of Objections on
July 31, 2007. WABCO Europe BVBA has attended a hearing with the European Commission to present evidence
regarding the response to the Statement of Objections in November 2007.

Following the hearing, the European Commission could, among other things, issue a new Statement of
Obijections or request additional information before adopting a decision, or it could adopt a decision imposing a fine.
A fine would be required to be paid within three months of the decision, unless impaosition of any such fine were
appealed within two months of the decision in which case we would be required to pay the fine or to provide a bank
guarantee for the full amount of the fine plus interest. The appeals process could take as long as 5-7 years during
which time WABCO would not have access to such funds or would be required to provide the guarantee. See Note
13-Warranties, Guarantees, Commitments and Contingencies in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
for further detail.

ITEM4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted to a vote of the Company's shareholders during the fourth quarter of 2007.
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ITEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table sets forth certain information as of March 14, 2008 with respect to each person who is an
executive officer of the Company:

Name E Position(s)

JacquesEsculier ......................... 48  Chief Executive Officer and Director
Jean-Christophe Figueroa ... ............... 44  Vice President, Vehicle Dynamics and Controls
UlrichMichel . ........ ... .. ... it 45  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
KevinTarrant ............................ 50  Senior Vice President, Human Rescurces

Nikhit M. Varty ............ ... ........... 42  Vice President, Compression & Braking
ToddWeinblatt .........................., 38  Vice President and Controller

Dr. Christian Wiehen ........ ... ......... 52  Vice President, Product Development

Each officer of the Company is appointed by the Board of Directors 1o a term of office expiring on the date of
the first Board meeting after the Annual Meeling of Shareholders next succeeding his or her appeintment or such
officer's earlier resignation or removal,

Set forth below is the principal occupation of each of the executive officers named above during the past five
years.

Jacques Esculier has served as our Chief Executive Officer and director since July, 2007. Prior to July, 2007,
Mr. Esculier served as Vice President of Trane and President of its Vehicle Control Systems business, a position he
had held since January 2004, Prior to holding that position, Mr. Esculier served in the capacity of Business Leader
for the Trane Commercial Systems’ Eurcope, Middle East, Africa, India & Asia Region from 2002 through January
2004. Prior to joining Trane in 2002, Mr. Esculier spent more than six years in leadership positions at AlliedSignal/
Honeywell. He was Vice President and General Manager of Environmental Control and Power Systems Enterprise
based in Los Angeles, and Vice President of Aftermarkel Services—Asia Pacific based in Singapore.

Jean-Christophe Figueroa has served as our Vice President, Vehicle Dynamics and Controls since July 2007.
Prior to July 2007, Mr. Figuerca served in a similar capacity within Trane's Vehicle Control Systems business.
Mr. Figueroa joined Trane in 2005 from tier-1 automotive supplier Valeo where he had been Group Vice President,
Purchasing, based in Paris, France. Mr. Figueroa spent 13 years in senior management business and purchasing
positions for Valeo, including leadership of the Automotive Climate Control business in both Mexico and
subsequently Western Europe. Prior te joining Valeo, Mr. Figueroa spent seven years with Pierburg, Mexico, in
various leadership positions in logistics, purchasing and program management.

Ulrich Michel has served as our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since July 2007. Prior to July
2007, Mr. Michel served as Chief Financial Cfficer of Trane’s Vehicle Control Systems business, a position he had
held since April 2005. Prior to holding that position, Mr. Michel served in the capacity of Chief Financial Officer for
the Trane Commercial Systems' EMAIR (Europe, Middle East, Africa & India Region) from 2003 through April 2005.
Prior 10 joining Trane in 2003, Mr. Michel spent more than six years in financial leadership positions at AlliedSignal/
Honeywell with areas of focus including mergers and acquisitions, the Specialty Chemicals business, and the
Control Products business in Europe. Before joining AlliedSignal/Honeywell, Mr. Michel spent eight years at Price
Waterhouse.

Kevin Tarrant has served as our Senior Vice President, Human Resources since July 2007, Prior to July 2007,
Mr. Tarrant served for two years as Vice President, Global Organization Effectiveness for Arrow Electronics in
Melville, New York. Prior to that, Mr. Tarrant was Senior Vice President of Human Resources for First Data
Resources in Denver, Colorado from 2003 to 2005 after having served as Vice President of Human Resources for
First Data’s Western Union International business headquartered in Paris, France from 2002 to 2003. Before joining
First Data, Mr. Tarrant spent 10 years at the headquarters and business-unit level working for various Dun &
Bradstreet Corporation businesses and six years at the Monsanto Company’s chemical controls businesses.

Nikhil M. Varty has served as our Vice President, Compression and Braking since July 2007. Prior to July 2007,
Mr. Varty served as Vice President, Compression and Braking of Trane's Vehicle Control Systems business, a
position he has held since January 2005. Prior to holding that position, Mr. Varty served in the capacity of Chief
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Financial Officer of Trane’s Vehicle Control Sysltems business. Prior to joining Trane in June 2001, Mr. Varty had
more than 10 years of national and international senior level finance roles with Great Lakes Chemical Corp.,
AlliedSignal/Honeywell and Coopers & Lybrand.

Todd Weinblatt has served as our Vice President and Controller since July 2007. Prior to July 2007,
Mr. Weinblatt served as Assistant Controller of Trane, a position he had held since 2004. Belore joining Trane,
Mr. Weinblatt served as Director—Accounting Policy and External Reporting at The Dun & Bradstreet Corporation,
His prior experience includes six years at Lucent Technologies Inc., where he was a Senior Manager of Accounting
Policy and Mergers/Acquisitions/Divestitures. He began his career with Coopers & Lybrand, where he spent five
years as an auditor.

Dr. Christian Wiehen has served as our Vice President, Product Development since July 2007. Prior to July
2007, Or. Wiehen served as Vice President Product Development of Trang’s Vehicle Control Systems business, a
position he had held since January 2005. Dr. Wiehen had been with Trane’s Vehicle Control Systems business for
19 years. He has held various leadership positions of increasing responsibility in Engineering, Product
Development, Product Marketing and Manufacturing in Germany and in Brussels, Belgium. Prior to joining Trane in
1988, Dr. Wiehen had been a Lecturer in Engineering at the University of Hannover, Germany.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Qur common stock is listed on NYSE under the symbol "WBC.” The common stock was first traded “regular
way” on the NYSE on August 1, 2007, concurrent with the completion of Trane’s distribution of our common stock.

Qur Restated Cerificate of Incorporation, as amended, authorizes the Company io issue up to 400,000,000
shares of commen stock, par value $.01 per share, and 4,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par vatue $.01 per
share, all of which have been designated by our Board of Directors as a series of Junior Participating Cumulative
Preferred Stock. We also have a rights agreement. Pursuant to the rights agreement, when triggered in certain
takeover situations, one preferred stock purchase right will be issued for each outstanding share of our common
stock.

As of March 3, 2008, there were 735 holders of record of the Company’s common stock. A significant number
of the outstanding shares of common stock which are beneficially owned by individuals or entities are registered in
the name of a nominee of The Depository Trust Company, a securities depository for banks and brokerage firms.
We believe thal there are approximately 46,122 beneficial owners of our common stock as of January 16, 2008.

We declared dividends of $3.6 million in 2007 on our common stock. On January 31, 2008, the Board of
Directors declared a first quarter 2008 dividend of $0.07 per share.

Qur commeoen stock began trading on August 1, 2007. Set forth below are the high and low sales prices for
shares of our commaon stock for the third and fourth quarters of 2007,

Dividends
2007 High Low Declared
Third QUARET . .. oot e e e e $50.00 $41.00 $0.07
Fourth QUaner . ... e e e $51.71 $45.88 $0.07
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ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our Board of Directors has approved expenditures under a program to purchase shares of our common stock
in the open market. On July 27, 2007, our Board of Directors approved $500 million to purchase shares of our
common stock in the open market. As of December 31, 2007, the unexpended authorization on the current program
totaled $377.2 million. We plan to expend a portion of the remaining authorized but unexpended amount for share
repurchases in 2008. A summary of the repurchase activity for 2007 follows. See "Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations-Liquidity and Capital Resources” for a description of our

stock repurchase program.

Total Number

Average
Price Paid Announced Plans
or Programs

Total Number of

Shares

Purchased as Part

of Publicly

Maximum Dollar
Value of Shares
That May Yet Be
Purchased Under
the Plans or
Programs

of Shares

Perlod Purchased per Share
July 1-duly 31 ..o - $ —

August 1-August 31 ... .. ... ... L, P -— $ —

September 1-September30 ... ... .. ... .. ... 784,700 $45.40
Totatthird quarter ............... oo, 784,700 $45.40
October 1-October 31 .. ........ .. ....civiiiit.. 485,100 $49.65
November 1-November 30 . ... ... ... .......... 723,600 $48.48
December 1-December31 . ...................... 579,300 $48.39
Tolal fouthquarter . ............................ 1,788,000 $48.77
Total through December 31 ...................... 2,572,700(b) $47.74

784,700

784,700

485,100
723,600

579,300
1,788,000
2,572,700

% —
$ —
$464,371,666

$440,286,915
$405,204,083
$377,170,896

$377,170,896(a)

(a) The authorization by the Board of Directors on July 27, 2007, approved the purchase of shares in an amount
not 1o exceed $500,000,000 which expires on September 1, 2009. The unexpended balance of $377,170,896
under that authorization as of December 31, 2007, will continue to be used to repurchase shares during 2008

and 2009.

{b) All share repurchases were effected in accordance with the safe harbor provisions of Rule 10b-18 of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph and table compare the cumulative total shareholder's return on our common stock from
August 1, 2007 through December 31, 2007, with the Standard & Poor's 500 Index and the Standard & Poor’s Auto
Parts & Equipment Index. The 1able and graph use data supplied by the Compustat Services unit of Standard &
Poor's Corporation. The comparisons reflected in the graph and table are not intended to forecast the future
performance of the common stock and may not be indicative of such future performance.

Total Shareholder Returns

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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ITEM6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

{Amounts in millions, except share and per

Year Ended December 31,

share data) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Income Statement Data:
Sales . ... ... $ 24159 & 20152 & 18310 § 17238 § 13582
Costotsales. . ...................... 1,764.2 1,463.5 13125 1,252.4 972.3
Grossprofit ..................... 651.7 551.7 518.5 471.4 385.9
Expenses and other expense/{income):
Selling and administrative
EXPENSES ... ..... ... i 299.8 255.0 233.5 212.7 176.3
Product Engineering expenses ... .. 84.2 72.2 73.5 66.2 63.5
Equity in net income of
unconsolidated join ventures ... .. (9.1} (23.3) {24.5) (20.2) (19.4)
Otherexpense ................ .. 35.6 10.8 54 0.1 17.4
Netl interest expense / (income)-
relatedparty .................. 1.5 6.2 (6.0) (5.4) (3.8)
Net interest expense ............. 3.0 5.1 3.9 34 3.0
415.0 326.0 285.8 256.8 237.0
income before incometaxes . .......... 236.7 2257 232.7 214.6 148.9
Incomefaxes(a) .................... 1113 879 87.4 23.2 36.6
Netincome .. ....................... 3 1254 % 1378 & 1453 § 1914 § 112.3
Per share:
Basic ...................... 5 1.85 — — — —_
Diluted . ... ... .. ... ... ..... 5 1.81 - - — —
Average number of outstanding
commeon shares:
Basic ............... .. ..., 67,887,919 — — - —_
Diluted ........................ 69,270,661 — — —_ —_
Pro forma net income per
common share:
Basle ...................... - % 203 5 214 § 282 % 1.65
Difuted . .. .................. - 3 198 § 208 § 275 % 1.61

Pro forma number of outstanding
common shares (b}):

Basic ....... .. ... . ... —_
Diluted .. ............ ... ... ... —
Balance Sheet Data {at end of period):
Totalassets ........................ $ 17942
TJotaldebt ... ... .. .. ... ... S 126.2
Total Shareholders’ equity / Owner's Net
Investment ....................... 5 607.6

Cash dividends per common share .. ... 3 0.14

67,867,159 67,867,159 67,867,159 67,867,159
69,696,428 69,696,428 69,696,428 69,696,428

& &

1,276.9 § 1,0954 % 1,1822 % 1,017

752 8 444 $ 547 % 50.7

3152 § 3108 § 3133 % 256.2
— s — s — 3 —

{a) The income tax provision for 2007 includes a $50.7 million charge related to the separation of the WABCO
business from Trane and a charge of $10.2 miliion related to the net reduction in deterred tax assets pursuant to
rate changes in Germany, UK and China, partially offset by a $7.5 million benelit related to the settlement of a
foreign tax audit during the second quarter, and benefits associated with foreign tax planning for 2007 following
WABCOQ's separation from Trane. The combined effects of the tax benefits and charge, with other ongoing tax
planning aclivities resulted in an effective income lax rate of 47.0%.

The income tax provision for 2006 included a $9.6 million charge related 1o adjustments of accruals tor tax
contingencies. This charge was partially offset by a $2.8 million benelfit related to the reductions of tax contingencies
and a $4.9 million benefit representing a true up of the foreign tax earnings under Section 965 of the America Jobs
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Crealion Act of 2004, The combined effects of the tax benefits and charge, with cngoing tax planning activities
resutted in an effective income tax rate 38.9%.

The income tax provision for 2005 included benetits of $18.3 million from the resolution of tax audits and $4.5
million related to the impact of certain tax planning initiatives on prior tax years. Partially offsetting these benefits
was a charge of $16 million associated with remitting foreign tax earnings under Section 965 of the American Jobs
Creation Act of 2004. The combined effect of the net tax benefits that occurred in 2005, together with other ongoing
tax ptanning activities, resulted in an effective income tax rate of 37.6% for the year.

Incorne taxes in 2004 included a $5.5 million benetit for the resolution of tax audits, a $7.1 million benefit
relating 1o a reducticn in withhelding tax liabilities due to a decision not to distribute the earnings of certain foreign
subsidiaries, and a $24.3 million benefit relating to changes in tax legislation. The combined effect of these tax
benetfits resulted in an effective tax rate of 10.8% in 2004.

{b} The pro forma number of common shares outstanding for basic and diluted earnings per share was
deterrnined by applying the distribution ratio of one share of WABCO common stock for every three shares of Trane
common shares outstanding and including the effect of dilutive Trane commion stock equivalents as of June 30,
2007. This method was applied to all periods prior to July 31, 2007.

For a comparative analysis of certain {ine items in the Income Statement Data section of this table, see ltem 7
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuiis of Operations” which follows.

ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

This discussion summarizes the significant factors affecting the results of operations and financial condition of
WABCO during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 and should be read in conjunction with our
conscfidated financial statements and related Notes thereto included elsewhere herein. Certain information in this
discussion and analysis regarding industry outlook, our expectations regarding the future performance of our
business and other non-historical statements are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are
subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the risks and uncertainties described in
“Risk Factors” above. Our actual results may differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking
statements. You should read the following discussion together with the sections entitled “Risk Factors,” “Information
Concerning Forward-Looking Statements,” “Selected Financial Information,” “—Liquidity and Capital Resources”
and consolidated financial statements and related notes therelo included elsewhere herein.

Description of the Company and Its Products

WABCO is a leading provider of electric and electromechanical products for the world’s leading commercial
truck, trailer, bus and passenger car manufacturers. We manutfacture and seli control systems, including advanced
braking, stability, suspension, transmission control and air compressing and processing systems, that improve
vehicle performance and safety and reduce overal! vehicle operating costs. Our largest-selling products are
pneumatic anti-lock braking systems {ABS), electronic braking systems (EBS), automated manual transmission
systerns, air disk brakes and a large variety of conventional mechanica! products such as actuators, air
compressors and air control valves for heavy- and medium-sized trucks, trailers and buses. We also supply
advanced electronic suspension controls and vacuum pumps to the car and SUV markets in Europe and Norh
America. In addition we sell replacement parts, diagnostic tools training and other services 1o commercial vehicle
aftermarkat distributors, repair shops and fleet operators.

Separation of WABCO from Trane

The spin off by Trane of its Vehicle Controls Systems business became effective on July 31, 2007, through a
distribution of 100% of the common stock of WABCO to the holders of record of Trane’s common stock on July 19,
2007 (the “Distribution”™). The Distribution was effected through a separation and distribution agreement which sets
torth WABCCQO's agreements with Trane regarding principal transactions necessary to separate WABCO from Trane.
This agreement also sets forth the other agreements that govern certain aspects of WABCO's relationship with
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Trane after the completion of the Separation from Trane and provides for the allocation of certain assets to be
transferred, liabilities to be assumed and contracts to be assigned to WABCO and Trane as part of the Separation.
Trane distributed all of the shares of WABCO common stock as a dividend on Trane common stock, in the amount
of one share of WABCO commaon stock for every three shares outstanding of Trane commen stock to each
stockhotder on the record date. Trane received a private letter ruling from the Internat Revenue Service and an
apinion from tax counsel indicating that the spin-off was tax free to the stockholders of Trane and WABCO.

A significant portion of the expenses to effect the Separation were incurred by Trane, such as investment
banking fees, external legal and accounting fees, legal reorganization and restructuring tax costs, and costs to
separate information systems. WABCO incurred the following separation costs: indemnification and other tax
related costs, stock compensation expense relating to the Distribution, costs associated with early bond redemption,
external legal and consulting fees, and other items such as relocation expenses associated with hiring senior
management positions new to the Company.

Basis of Presentation

WABCO has historically operated as the Vehicle Control Systems business of Trane. The financial statements
included herein have been derived from the financial statements and accounting records of Trane, principally
representing the Vehicle Control Systems segment, using the historical results of operations, and historical basis of
assets and liabilities of the Vehicle Control Systems segment, pricr to the July 31, 2007 spin-off from Trane, in
addition to WABCO’s actual results for the period subsequent to July 31, 2007. Historically, stand-alone financial
statements have not been prepared for WABCQ. We believe the assumptions underlying the allocations inctuded in
the financial statements are reasonable.

Executive Overview of Management’s Discussion and Analysis

We analyze the performance of our business using the following generat framework and describe the
performance of the business in this context throughout the remainder of this discussion and analysis of financial
condition and resulis of operations.

Sales—We analyze sales activity based on the impact of pricing, volume and mix of our products. The management
of pricing conditions and the execution of a strategy to improve sales mix to more profitable products and customers
are important to us in order to grow sales and profitability.

Productivity—We identify the impact of key productivity programs in the areas of materials procurement, labor and
olher productivity programs. The successful execution of productivity programs is important to offset the impacts of
price decreases, commaodity inflation and other cosl escalations.

Commoditiess—Woe use commodities such as aluminum, copper, zinc and steel in our manufacturing process. The
cosi of these commedities can have a significant impact on our financial performance.

investments—We analyze the costs for the development of new products, invesiments in sales and marketing
programs and other infrastructure investments in suppert of productivity improvements. Investments in new
products and sales are important to sustaining organic growth.

Please see the following paragraphs “Results of Operations for 2007 compared with 2006” and "Results of

Operations 2006 compared with 2005” for an analysis of our results of operations excluding the effects of foreign
exchange translation.
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Our Markets and Our Customers

Our sales are affected by changes in truck and bus production, especially in Europe. Europe is our largest
geographic market and sales to truck and bus OEMSs represent our largest customer group. The table below shows
the relationship between our European sales to truck and bus OEMs, which, account for approximately 79% of our
global sales to truck and bus OEMs and Western European truck and bus (T&B} production, tor the last five years.
Sales dala is shown at a constant Eure to U.S. dollar exchange rate for year to year comparability and 10 make
comparisons to unit production meaningful.

Average
Year to Year Change 2003 2004 2005 2606 2007 Change
Sales to European T&B OEMs {(at Constant FXrate) ... ... ... ... .. .. +9% +23% +6% +10% +12% +12%
Western European T&B Production . ... ... ... . . .. ... ... +5% +19% +5% +5% +10% +9%

In general, our sales track directionally with truck and bus builds. However, individual year to year sales
changes are also influenced by other facters such as timing of orders and deliveries to T&B OEM customers,
application content, new product introduction, price and infroduction of new customer platforms. The level of truck
build activity is influenced by general economic condilions, including interest rale levels and inflation. On average
for the last five years, our European sales have performed 3 percentage points above the change in Western
European truck and bus builds.

In regions cutside Europe, there is less correlation between our sales and regional truck and bus builds. This is
because of our smaller presence (which magnifies changes in content on individual truck platlorms) as well as less
stringent safely regulations. As other regions adopt additional safety regulations in the future, similar to or
approaching Europe’s, we expect the resulting increase in content will bring higher correlation between our regional
sales and changes in regional truck and bus production.

Qur aftermarket sales account for approximately 21% of total sales and are affected by a variety of factors:
content ¢n specific vehicles and breadth of our product range, number of commercial trucks in active operation,
truck age, miles driven, demand for transported goods and overall economic aclivity. On average, our aftermarket
sales (on a constant exchange to the U.S. dollar rate} have grown by 8% annually for the last five years as shown in
the table below. Qur 2007 aftermarket sales were negatively impacted by certain supply chain constraints which
improved by the founth quarter of 2007.

Average
Year to Year Change 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Change
Aftermarket Sales (at Constant FXrate) ....................... +1%  +7% +13% +10% +7% +8%

Distribution of WABCO’s Sales by Major End-Markets, Product Types and Geography
2007 2006 2005

Major End-Markets
OE Manufacturers:

Truck & Bus products ... .. ... 60% 60% 61%
Trailer products . ... .. e 14% 14% 13%
Car PIOOUGES . ... e e e e e 5% 4% 5%
Aftermarket e 21% 22% 21%
100% 100% 100%

Geography:
EUrOPE . e 76% 74% 73%
AMBIICAS . . . oottt e e e e e 12% 15% 16%
Asiaandrestofworld ... .. ... 12% 1% 11%

100% 100% 100%
Our largest customer is Daimler, which accounts for 14% of our sales. Other key customers include Arvin
Meritor, Cummins, Fiat {Ilveco), Ford, General Motors, Hino, Hyundai, ITE, MAN, Meritor WABCO (a joint venture),
Nissan, Paccar (DAF, Kenworth, Leyland and Peterbuilt), SAF, Scania, Volve (Mack and Renault) and ZF.
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Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis addresses year-over-year changes in the line items shown in the above
paragraph "Executive Overview.” Approximately 93% of our sales are outside the U.S. and therefore, changes in
exchange rates can have a significant impact on the reported results of our operations, which are presented in U.S.
Dollars. Year-over-year changes in sales, expenses and net income for 2007 compared with 2006 and 2006
compared with 2005, are presented both with and without the effects of foreign currency translation. Changes in
sales, expenses and net income excluding foreign exchange effects are calculated using current year sales,
expenses and net income translated at prior year exchange rates. Presenting changes in sales, expenses and net
income excluding the efiects of foreign currency translation is not in conformity with GAAP, but we analyze this data
because it is uselul to us in understanding the operating performance of our business. We believe this data is also
useful to shareholders for the same reason. The changes in sales, expenses and net income excluding the effects
of foreign exchange translation are not meant to be a substilule for measurements prepared in conformity with
GAAP, nor to be considered in isolation. Management believes that presenting these non-GAAP financial measures
is useful o shareholders because it enhances their understanding of how management assesses the operating
performance of the company's business.

Results of Operations for 2007 Compared with 2006
{amounts in miltions})

Year ended Excluding Foreign
December 31, Exchange Translation
% change 2007 adjusted % change
2007 2006 reported amount adjusted
Sales . ... $2,4159 52,015.2 19.9%  $2,226.9 10.5%
Costofsales ....... ... 1,7642 11,4635 20.5% 1,629.4 11.3%
Grossprofit ........ ... . .. ... ... 651.7 551.7 18.1% 597.5 8.3%
Operatingexpenses ................ ... 384.0 327.2 17.4% 356.5 9.0%
Equity in net {income) of unconsolidated joint ventures . . . {9.1} (23.3) ’ (8.7) *
Otherexpense,net ............. .. i 35.6 10.8 * 25.9 y
Net interest expense—related party .................. 1.5 6.2 * 15 *
Interestexpense, nel . ... . ... . ., 3.0 5.1 * 2.7 *
Income before incometaxes .............. ... ....... 236.7 225.7 4.9% 219.6 (2.7)%
Incometaxes ...t 111.3 87.9 26.6% 105.2 19.7%
Netincome .. ... ... $ 1254 $ 1378 (9.0)% $ 1144 (17.0)%

"

Percentage change not meaningful

Sales

Our sales for 2007 were $2.4 billion, an increase of 19.9% (10.5% excluding favorable foreign currency
translation effects) from $2.0 billion in 2006. The increase was atiributable primarily to increased truck and bus
production in Europe, expanded coment per vehicle including new applications, global expansion and growth in our
aftermarket business. Sales in Europe, our largest market, increased approximately 23.9% (14.2% excluding
favorable foreign currency translation effects), which based on our estimate, exceeded the growth in European truck
production. Sales decreased in North America, which was less than the decrease in North American truck
production. The decrease in the North American truck production was primarily influenced by increased sales
volume in 2006 ahead of regulations mandating belter emissions standards that became effective in 2007. In Asia
and South America sales increased 24.5% and 33.2%, respectively (20.6% and 18.7% excluding favorable foreign
currency translation effects, respectively). The sales growth in Asia was driven by an increase in China sales of
106.4% (96.7% without foreign currency translation impact).

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased by $100.0 million ($45.8 million excluding favorable foreign currency translation effects).
Also, included in gross profit was approximately $10.1 million of foreign currency transaction losses related mainly
to the sale of products in countries {with different currencies) outside of the country where they are manufactured.
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Gross profit benefited from volume and mix increases of approximately $64.0 million primarily attributable to the
sales increase discussion above, productivily improvements of approximately $48.2 million, and a reduction of
warranty expenses of $9.8 million. These improvements were partially ofiset by sales price decreases of
approximately $54.0 million, labor and other cost escalation of approximately $10.0 million, higher spending on
streamlining programs of approximately $1.4 million, and other net costs of $0.7 million.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses, which include selling and adminisirative expenses and product engineering expenses,
increased by $56.8 million ($29.3 millicn excluding unfavorable foreign currency translation effects). The increase in
operaling expense was primarily driven by incremental investments in product engineering and new product
development programs of approximately $10.6 million, labor cost inflation and escalation of approximately $8.5
million, increases in spending on streamlining programs of approximately $3.1 million and an increase of $2.4
million of expenses due to a change in certain pension obligations. In the second half of 2007, WABCO incurred
separation costs of approximately $4.7 million.

Equity in Net Income of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

Equity in net income of unconsolidated joint ventures decreased $14.2 million to $9.1 million in 2007 as
compared to $23.3 million in 2006. The decrease was partially due to WABCO's joint venture in North America,
driven by the production decline in the North American market, As described above, the North American commercial
vehicle production decreased in 2007, influenced by increased sales volume in 2006 ahead of regulations
mandating better emissions standards thal became effective on January 1, 2007. As a result, Meritor WABCO was
impacted by lower sales volumes in 2007, Additionally, the decrease was driven by WABCOQ'’s Indian joint venture,
SCL, which was mainly driven by difficult market conditions in the non-brakes divisions of the group, start-up costs
associated with new business development, and a write-off of one of its investments.

WAECO and its Indian joint venture partner have agreed lo separale the non-brakes division from the brakes
division through a ptan of demerger, which is conditioned on various indian regulatory and court approvals. If these
cendilions are mel, the brakes business of SCL will be transferred to a new subsidiary, WABCO-TVS (INDIA) Ltd.
{"WABCQ-TVS"), the shares of which are intended to be listed in India as are the shares of SCL currently.
Subseguent to the demerger, it is intended that within a period of two years from such listing, WABCO’s Indian joint
venture partner will transfer to WABCO its shares in WABCO-TVS, and WABCO's percentage ownership in
WABCO-TVS is expected to increase to approximately 75-80%. Similarly, during this same period, it is intended that
WABCO will franster to its Indian joint venture partner its shares in SCL post demerger, and WABCO'’s percentage
ownership in SCL post demerger, which will then consist of the non-brakes division of the joint venture, is expected
to decrease to zero.

Other expense, net

Other expense increased by $24.8 million to $35.6 million for the full year 2007 as compared to $10.8 million for
the fully year 20086. The increase was primarily attributable to the following items: $13.6 million of charges resulting
from the legal recrganization, in connection with the spin-ofi from Trane, in various countries in the second, third
and fourth quarters of 2007, $6.0 million of early-redemption premiums on the $40.0 million outstanding bonds that
were redeemed on April 30, 2007, and $0.8 million relating to costs associated with environmental liabilities
transterred from Trane. Additionally, contributing to the increase was higher foreign exchange losses on non
operating items and higher minority interest expense.

Net Interest/Expense—including Related Party Interest Expense

Net interest expense (including related party inlerest expense) was $4.5 million for 2007 as compared with
511.3 million in 20086. The decrease in net interest expense is primarily driven by a $4.7 million decrease in related
party net interest expense, which in 2007 only included a partial year of related party interest versus a full year in
2006. Additionally, WABCO's capital structure at the time of separation was mare favorable when compared to
2006.
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Income Taxes

The income tax provision for 2007 was $111.3 million. The effective income tax rate was 47.0% of pre-tax
income in 2007. The income tax provision for 2006 was $87.9 million, an effective tax rate of 38.9%. The effective
income tax rate for 2007 increased primarily due to a provision of $50.7 million related to the separation of the
WABCO business from Trane and a charge of $10.2 million related {o the net reduction in deferred tax assets
pursuant to tax rate changes in Germany, UK and China, parially offset by a $7.5 million benefit as a resuit of the
settlement of a foreign tax audit during the second quarter, and benefits associated with foreign tax planning for
2007 following WABCO's separation from Trane.

Backlog

Backlog, which represents valid sales orders that have nol yet been filled as of the end of the reporting period,
was $1.2 billion at the end of the fourth quarter, up 44.2% (or 30.2% excluding tavorable foreign currency transiation
eftects) from the fourth quarter of 2006. Backlog is not necessarily predictive of future business as it relates only to
some of our products, and customers may still change future delivery dates.

Results of Operations for 2006 Compared with 2005
(amounts in millicns)

Year ended Excluding Foreign
December 31, Exchange Translation
% change 2006 adjusted % change
2006 2005 reporied amount adjusted
SalES L. e e $2,015.2 $1,831.0 10.1%  $1,991.5 8.8%
Costofsales ... ... . . i, 1,463.5 1,3125 11.5% 1,446.4 10.2%
Grossprofit - .. ... 551.7 518.5 6.4% 545 .1 5.1%
Operaling expenses .. ........... ... i 327.2 307.0 6.6% 3239 5.5%
Equity in net (income) of unconsolidated joint ventures . . . {23.3) (24.5) * (23.7) *
Other expense ... ...ttt i e et 10.8 54 * 10.9 *
Net interest expense/(income)—related party . ... ....... 6.2 {6.0) " 5.5 "
Interest expense .......... e e 51 39 - 4.4 -
Income before incometaxes ........ ... ... ... ... 2257 2327 (3.0)% 2241 (3.7)%
Incometaxes ... .. ... .. 87.9 87.4 (0.6)% 86.9 (0.6)%
Netincome . ... ... . i i i e $ 1378 § 1453 (52)% $ 137.2 (5.6)%

"

Percentage change not meaningful.

Sales

Our sales for 2006 were $2.0 billion, an increase of 10.1% (8.8% excluding favorabte foreign currency
translation eflects) from $1.8 billion in 2005. The increase in sales of $160.5 million, exciuding favorable foreign
currency translation impacts, was attributable primarily to increased truck and bus production of approximately
$83.3 million, expanded content per vehicle, including new applicaticns of approximaltely $78.1 million, and strong
growth in our aftermarket business of approximately $39.1 million. This was partially offset by net price erosion of
approximately 2% or $40 million. The price erosion was primarily driven by annual price reductions included in many
of our OEM fong-term sales contracts, primarily in Europe. Sales increased 3% in North America and 16% in Asia
{15% excluding favorable foreign currency translation effects). Asia was helped by robust growth in China of 66%
(61% without foreign currency translation impact). in South America, our sales increased 3%, but decreased 8%
excluding favorable foreign currency translation efiects. In ali of our markets, except North America, our sales
continued to outpace the growth in heavy vehicle manufacturing.

Gross Profit

Gross profit increased by $33.2 million ($26.6 million excluding tavorable foreign currency translation effects) in
2006 as compared with 2005. Gross profit benefited from volume and mix increases of approximately $48 million
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primarily attributable to the items mentioned above in the discussion of sales, productivity improvements of
approximately $67 million, benelits from previously, announced operational consolidation programs of approximately
$4 million and lower spending on operational consclidation programs of approximately $8 million. These
improvements were partially offsel by price decreases of approximately $40 million, commodity cost increases of
approximately $17 million (mainly driven by increased aluminum prices and 1o a lesser extent zin¢ and copper
prices}, $3 million of foreign currency transaction losses related to the sale of products in countries outside of the
country they are manulactured in, the absence of foreign exchange transaction gains recognized in 2005 for
approximately $9 million, labor cost escalation of approximately $6 miilion, higher warranly cost of approximately
$10 million and higher transportation costs of approximately $10 million {mainly driven by higher fuel prices and
volume increase). Approximately $48 million of the productivity improvements were driven by direct matertal cost
reductions with the remainder mainly driven by the transfer of production to lower cost countries and higher capacity
utilization.

We incurred $8.2 million of operational consalidation expenses during 2006 of which $7.4 million is associated
with severance relating to 2006 plans and $0.8 million pertaining to prior period plans. The majority of the 2006 plan
expenses are associated with the consolidation of administrative functions. We expended $3.0 million of cash on
operational consolidation expenses in 2008. We expect 1o realize annualized cosl savings of approximately $5.0
million as a result of these plans. Operational consolidation expenses were $13.7 million in 2005.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased by $20.2 million ($16.9 million excluding unfavorable foreign currency
translation effects). The increase in operaling expense was primarily driven by incremental investments in sales
growth initiatives of approximately $5 million, labor and other cost inflation of approximately $10 million, $2.5 million
of costs relating to the expensing of stock options in 2006 and higher operational consolidation expenses of
approximately $2 million. This increase was partially offset by benefits from previously announced operational
consolidation programs of approximately $3 million.

Equity in Net Income of Unconsolidated Joint Ventures and Other Expense

Equity in net income of unconsolidated joint ventures decreased $1.2 million to $23.3 million in 2006 as
compared to $24.5 million in 2005. The decrease was driven by our Meritor WABCO jeint venture in the U.S.

Gther expense increased by $5.4 million to $10.8 million in 2006 as compared to $5.4 million in 2005, The
increase was primarily attributable to increased costs relating to our participation in the securitization programs of
$1.1 million, higher minority interest expense of $0.8 million and higher foreign exchange transaction losses of $0.9
million.

Net Interest Expense/(income)—Including Related Party Interest Expense/({income)

Including related party interest, total interest expense was $11.3 million in 2006 compared with ${2.1) million of
total interest income in 2005. The increase in interest expense in 2006 as compared to 2005 was primarily driven by
payments received by WABCO from Trane during 2006 10 setile certain related pary receivables, which reduced
interest income by approximately $2.5 million in 2006, and WABCQ did not charge any interest income on its loans
receivable from Ideal Standard WABCO Trane Ind. Com. Ltda. in 20086, which reduced interest income by
approximately $4.2 million. Additionally, in the fourth quarter of 2005, WABCO paid a related party dividend which it
funded with related party debt, which increased interest expense by approximately $3.5 million in 2006.

See Note 16, Related Party Transactions, of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a detailed
summary of the intercompany loans and related interest rates.

Income Taxes

The income tax provision for 2006 was $87.9 million. The effective income tax rate was 38.9% of pre-tax
incoms in 2008. The income tax provision for 2005 was $87.4 million, an effective 1ax rate of 37.6%. The income tax
provision for 2005 included benefits of $18.3 million from the resolution of tax audits and $4.5 million related to the

29




impact of certain tax ptanning initiatives on prior tax years. Partially offsetting these benefits was a charge of $16
million associated with remitting foreign earnings to the U.S. under Section 965 of the American Jobs Creation Act
of 2004. :

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash used by operating activities was $0.3 million for 2007. This compared with net cash provided by
operating activities of $175.4 million for 2006.

In accordance with the terms of Trane’s existing receivable financing facility, the spin-oft of WABCO required its
withdrawal from Trane’s asset securitization program. Additionally, as a resull of the spin-off, WABCQ is alsc no
longer selling its receivables from Meritor WABCO to a subsidiary of Trane. The impact on the net cash of

ferminating these two arrangements amounted to $(216.1) million: a ${169.5) million impact from accounts

receivable, $19.1 million from other current assets and $(65.7} million from other accrued liabilities.

In addition to the separation related items mentioned above, our change in working capital has increased in line
with the evolution in sales.

In investing aclivities, we made capital expenditures of $77.7 million for 2007, including $40.9 million on plant
and equipment, $28.9 million of investments in tooling, and $7.9 million in computer software. This compared with
capital expenditures of $72.7 million in 2008, including $41.7 million on plant and equipment, $23.4 million of
investments in tooling and $7.6 millicn in compuler software.

The net cash provided by financing activities during 2007 amounted to $214.5 million while the financing
activities for 2006 resulled in net cash used of $110.1 million.

In July 2007, we repaid $52.1 million of the outstanding credit facility which had been put into place by Trane in
2005 with JP Morgan. This repayment was primarily financed through additional cash obtained from Trane. In order
to finance the share buy back program and to fund the operations of the China facilities, we drew $116.0 million
from our $800.0 miltion five year credit facility which was entered into in May 2007, and $4.0 million from its $20
million credit facility in China.

Prior to July 31, 2007, we had additionai changes in the balance due from and to Trane or its affiliates. As
further detailed in Note 16, Related Party Transactions, in Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, this
balance was mainly made up of the net receipts from changes in loans due toffrom Trane and its affiliates of $288.6
million and dividends paid to Trane and its affiliates of $48.0 million. The 2007 net cash provided was mainly used
to finance the termination of the securitization programs, the redemption of the $40.0 million principal amount of its
7.59% Guaranteed Senicr Bonds prior to their maturity date of January 31, 2013 and the redemption of the credit
facility with JP Morgan of $52.1 million.

As of December 31, 2007, our 1otal third party indebtedness was $126.2 million, of which $10.2 million was
classified as short term debt, which was comprised mainly of an cutstanding balance of $116 mitlion on the $800
million 5-year credit facility and $4 million outstanding on the China credit facitity which are both discussed in Note
12 — Debt. Also, subsidiaries in Spain and Japan had borrowings from banks totaling $6.2 miilion. These loans
support local working capital requirements.

We paid quarterly dividends amounting to $4.8 million and $4.7 million in September 2007 and December
2007, respectively. These dividends were funded by drawdowns on our $800 million credi facility. See “Credit
Agreements” below for a description of the credit agreement.

Qur Board of Directars has approved $500 million of expenditures under a program to purchase shares of our
common stack in the open market. During 2007 we repurchased $122.8 million of shares and also received stock
option proceeds for the year of $18.1 million.

We employ several means to manage our liquidity and we are not dependent upon any one source of funding.
Our sources of financing include cash flows from operations, bank credit agreements and the use of operating
leases.
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Credit Agreements

We entered into an unsecured, five-year $800 million, multi-currency revolving credit facility that will expire on
July 31, 2012, Our primary bank credit agreement was entered into on May 31, 2007, and the credit facility became
available to us on August 1, 2007. The proceeds of the borrowings under the credit facility are being used to fund
repurchases of our shares, to pay dividends and to meet short-term requirements. Additionally, the facility may be
used to pay a {ine or provide a bank guarantee that may be required pursuant {0 a decision relating to the European
Comrmission investigation matter as further described under the heading “ltem 3—Legal Proceedings—The
European Commission Investigation” above. Up to $100 million under this facility may be used for issuing letters of
credit of which $99.2 million was unused as of December 31, 2007, and up ta $75 millicn for same-day borrowings.
The primary bank credit agreement contains terms and provisions customary for transactions of this type, including
various covenants that limit, among other things, subsidiary indebtedness, liens, and certain fundamental business
changes. The covenants also require us to meet certain financial ratios: ratio of net indebtedness to EBITDA,
EBITDA 10 net interest expense, and a liquidity test described below. The liquidity covenant requires us to have at
least $100 million of liquidity {which includes unused commitments under the agreement and certain other
commitied facilities that may be entered into, as well as unrestricted cash and cash equivalents) atter giving efiect
to any payment of a fine or any provision of a bank guarantee that may be required pursuant to a decision relating
to the European Commission investigation matter as described in the Form10-K under the heading “ltem 3—Legal
Proceedings—The European Commission Investigation.” For additional information relating to the terms of the
credit agreemenl we refer to the 8-K filed by Trane on June 5, 2007. The balance oulstanding on this facility on
December 31, 2007, is $116 million.

We have also entered into a Euro 50 million ($73.6 million at December 31, 2007 exchange rates), 364 day
credit agreement dated November 28, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, there was no utilization under this
agreement.

As of June 7, 2007, we entered into an addilional credit facility in the amount of $20 million for our China
operations. This facility is drawn upon in local currency and used for general corporate purposes. The balance
outstanding on this facility on December 31, 2007 is $4.0 million. Under the facility in China, we pay an interest rate
equal to 90% of the base lending rate for Renmimbi, published from time to time by the People’s Bank of China.
This rale was 5.913% on December 31, 2007. The balance of this credit tacility has been repaid in full as of
February 29, 2008.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

Following is a summary of contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007.

Aggregate Contractual Obligations
As of December 31, 2007
{in millions)

Payments due by period(1}

Contractual Obligation Total 2008 2009 and 2010 2011 and 2012 Beyond 2012
Debt abligations (principal plus interest)(2) .......... $1570 $ 173 $13.2 $126.5 5 —
Operating lease obligations(3) ............. e 35.7 11.9 14.6 7.1 2.1
Tax indemnifications(4) ............. ... ......... 346 346 _ — —
Purchase obligations(5) . ............ ... ...... ... 1921 1921 — — —_
Unfunded pension and post-retirement benefits(6) .... 337.8 294 61.5 65.3 181.6
Total .. $757.2 $2853 $89.3 $198.9 $183.7

(1) The amounts and timing of such obligations, as shown in the table may vary substantially from amounts that
will actually be paid in future years. For example, the actual amount to be paid under debt obligations under our
primary credit agreement will depend on the amount of debt outstanding under the agreement in each year.

(2) Amounts shown for debt obligations include the associated interest calculated at the December 31, 2007 rates
applicable to each type of debt.

(3) Amounts include future rental commitments under all non-cancelable operating leases in effect at
December 31, 2007. The present value of the $35.7 million total is equivalent to approximately $31.3 million,
discounted at an assumed rate of 5.5%.

(4) Amounts are estimated costs as a result of internal corporate reorganization transactions needed to effect the
WABCO separation from Trane.

(5) In the normal course of business we expect to purchase approximately $1.6 billion in 2008 of materials and
services, and estimate that on average no more than approximately $200 million is outstanding at any one time
in the form of legally binding commitments. We spent approximately $1.5 billion, $1.2 billion and $1.1 billion an
materials and services in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively,

{6) Amounts represent undiscounted projected benefit payments to WABCO's unfunded plans over the next ten
years, as well as expected contributicns to funded pension plans for 2008. The expecied benefit payments are
estimated based on the same assumptions used to measure our accumulated benefit obligation at the end of
2007 and include benefits attributable to estimated future employee service of current employees.

Capitatl Expenditures

We believe our capital spending in recent years has been sufticient to maintain efficient production capacity, to
implement important product and process redesigns and to expand capacity to meet increased demand.
Productivity projects have freed up capacity in our manufacturing facilities and are expected to continue to do so.
We expect 1o continue investing to expand and modernize our existing facilities and invest in our facilities to create
capacity for new product development. We expect to make capital expendilures on plant and equipment, tocling and
computer software in 2008 at higher levels in compariscn to 2007,

Effect of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard ("SFAS”) No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, provides a
framework for measuring fair value under current standards in GAAP, and requires additional disclosure about fair
value measurements. In accordance with the Statement, the definition of fair value retains the exchange price
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notion, and exchange price is defined as the price in an orderly transaction between market participants to sell an
asset or transfer a liability. If there is a principal market for the asset or liability, the fair value measurement should
reflect that price, whether that price is directly observable or otherwise used in a valuation technique. Depending on
the assel or liability being valued, the inputs used to determine fair value can range from observable inputs (i.e.
prices based on market data independent from the entily} and unobservable inputs (i.e. entity’s own assumplions
about the assumptions that market participants would use). The Statement applies to other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements and will be effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. We have evaluated the provisions of SFAS

No. 157 1o determine the potential impact, if any; the adoption will have an our financial statements and have
determined that the impact is immaterial.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to voluntarily choose to measure many financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value. The election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis and is frrevocable. Unrealized
gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings. SFAS No. 159
is effactive for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We have evaluated the provisions of SFAS No. 159
1o determine the polential impact, if any; the adoption will have on our financial statements and have determined
that the impact is immaterial.

in December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements. SFAS No. 160 requires that a noncontrolling interest in a consolidated subsidiary be displayed in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a separate component of equity. Consistent with the FASB's view
that noncontrolling interests are part of the equity of the consclidated group, SFAS No. 160 requires that earnings
attributed to the noncontrolling interests are to be reported as part of consolidated earnings and not as a separate
component of income or expense. Once a subsidiary is consolidated, any change in ownership that doesn’t result in
loss of control is accounted for as an equity transaction. However, deconsolidation of a subsidiary would resuit in a
gain or loss reflected in the Company's Income Statement. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008. Earlier application is prohibited. We are currently evaluating the provisions of SFAS No. 160 to
determine the potential impact, if any; the adoption will have on our financial stalements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (R), Business Combinations. SFAS No. 141 (R) requires
that identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree be recognized
and measured as of the acquisition date at fair value regardless of the percentage of ownership. The standard also
requires any shares issued for acquisition 1o be measured at fair value on the date of acquisition as well as any
contingent consideration recognized or pre-acquisition gain or loss contingencies. in-process research and
developrent will not be capitalized and any acquisition related transaction costs should be expensed as incurred.
SFAS No. 141 (R) is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Earlier application is prohibited.
This standard can only be adopted with prospective application. We are currently evaluating the provisions of SFAS
No. 141 (R) to determine the potential impact, if any, the adoption will have on our financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with those accounting principles requires us 1o make judgments
and estirnaltes that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Those
judgments and estimates have a significant effect on the financial statements because they result primarily from the
need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain. Actual resuits could differ from
those eslimates. We frequently re-evaluate our judgments and estimates that are based upon historical experience
and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances.

We believe that of our significant accounting policies (see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Staternents), the ones thal may involve a higher degree of uncertainty, judgment and complexity are stock-based
compensation, post-retirement benefits, warranties, income taxes and commitments and contingencies.
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Stock-Based Compensation—Trane, WABCO's former parent company, adopted the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123 {Revised 2004) {"FAS 123R"), Share Based Payments on January 1,
2006. FAS 123R requires the Company to measure and recognize in its combined statement of income the expense
associated with all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors including stock options,
restricted stock units, restricted stock granis and discounts on employee stock purchases associated with the
Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP”) based on estimated fair values. The Company ulilizes the Black-Scholes
option valuation model to measure the amount of compensation expense 1o be recognized for each option award.
There are several assumptions that must be made when using the Black-Scholes model such as the expected term
of each option, the expected volatility of the stock price during the expected term of the option, the expected
dividends to be paid and the risk free interest rate expected during the option term. The Company has reviewed
each of these assumptions carefully and based on the analysis discussed in Note 5 of Notes to Financial
Statements determined its best estimate for these variables. Of these assumptions, the expected term of the option
and expected volatility of WABCO's common stock are the most difficult to estimate since they are based on the
exercise behavior of employees and expected performance of WABCO's stock. An increase in the volatility of
WABCO's stock will increase the amount of compensation expense on new awards. An increase in the holding
period of options will also cause an increase in compensation expense. Dividend yields and risk-free interest rates
are less difficult 1o estimate, but an increase in the dividend yield will cause a decrease in expense and an increase
in the risk-free interest rate will increase compensation expense.

Post-Retirement Benefits—The Company has significant pension and post-retirement benetit costs and
liabilities that are developed from actuarial valuations. Inherent in these valuations are key assumptions including
discount rates, expected return on plan assets, mortality rates, merit and promotion increases and the health care
cost trend rate. The Company is required to consider current market conditions, including changes in interest rates
and health care costs, in making its assumptions. Changes in the related pension and post-retirement benefit costs
or fiabilities may occur in the future due to changes in the assumptions. The assumptions as to the expected long-
term rates of return on plan assets are based upon the composition of plan assets, historical long-term rates of
return on similar assets and current and expected market conditions. The discount rate used for U.S. plans reflects
the market rate for high-quality fixed-income investments on the Company's annual measurement date (December
31) and is subject to change each year. The discount rate was determined by matching, on an agproximate basis,
the coupons and maturities for a portiolio of corperate bonds (rated Aa or better by Moody’s Investor Services) to
the éxpected plan benelit payments defined by the projected benefit obligation. The discount rates used for plans
outside the U.S. are based on a combination of retevant indices regarding corporate and government securities, the
duration of the liability and appropriate judgment. A decrease of one percentage point in the assumed rate of return
on plan assets and a decrease of one percentage point in the discount rate applied to projected benefit obligations
would increase annual pension expense by approximately $4.9 million. An increase of one percentage point in the
assumed health care cost trend rate in each future year would increase annual health insurance costs by
approximately $0.1 million. See the disclosures about pension and post-retirement obligations, the composition of
plan assels, assumptions and other matters in Note 11 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Warranties—Estimated product warranty expenses are accrued in cost of good sold at the time the related
sales are recognized. Eslimates of warranty expenses are based primarily on warranty claims experience and
specific customer contracts. Warranty expenses include accruals for basic warranties for product sold, as well as
accruals for product recalls, service campaigns and other related events when they are known and estimable.

To the extent we experience changes in warranty claim activity or costs associated with servicing those claims,
our warranty accrual is adjusted accordingly. Warranty accrual estimates are updated based upon the most current
warranty claims information available. Such changes in estimates, including foreign exchange effects increased
warranty expense by a net of $5.4 million in 2007 and $4.1 million in 2006. See Note 13 of Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for a three-year summary of warranty costs.

Income taxes—We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assels to the amount that we
believe is more likely than not to be realized. While we have considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent
and feasible tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance, in the event we were to
determine thal we would not be able to realize all or pant of our net deferred tax assets in the future, an adjustment
to decrease the net deferred tax assets would be charged to income in the period such determination was made.
Likewise, should we determine that we would be able to realize our deferred tax assets in the future in excess of cur
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net recorded amount, an adjustment to increase the net deferred tax assets would increase income in the period
such determination was made. Deferred tax assets have been reduced by a valuation allowance of $108.6 million.
We also estimale our effective income tax rate periodically, considering all known factors and the estimated effects
of future events or tax planning strategies that can cause that rate to vary from the statutory rate. Estimating the
outcome of future events is inherently uncertain and fina! resolution of those events can cause the effective rate to
vary significantly.

On January 1, 2007, WABCO adopted the provision of FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 ("FIN 48"). FIN 48 provides recognition criteria and a
related measurement model! for tax positions taken by companies. In accordance with FIN 48, a tax position is a
position in a previously filed tax return or a position expected to be 1aken in a future tax filing that is reflected in
measuring current or deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Tax positions shall be recognized only when it is
more likely than not {likelihood of greater than 50%}, based on technical merits, that the position will be sustained
upon examination and ullimate settlement. Tax positions that meet the more likely than not threshold should be
measured using a probability weighted approach as the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely
of being realized upon settlement. Whether the more-likely-than-no} recognition threshold is met for a tax position, is
a matter of judgment based on the individual facts and circumstances of that position evaluated in light of alt
available evidence. The Company accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefils in income tax
expense. The adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material impact on WABCQO's financial statements.

Commitments and Contingencies—We are subject to proceedings, lawsuits and other claims related to
products and other matters. We are required to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes 1o
these matters as well as potential ranges of probable losses. A determination of the amount of liability to be
recorded, if any, for these contingencies is made afler careful analysis of each individual issue. The liabilities
recorded may change in the future, possibly by significant amounts, due to new developments in any of the maltters.

As part of a multi-company investigation, American Standard and certain of its European subsidiaries engaged
in the Bath and Kitchen busiress were charged by the European Commission for infringements of European Union
competition rules relating to the distribution of bathroom fixtures and fittings in a number of European countries.
Pursuant to the Indemnification and Cooperation Agreement, WABCO Europe BVBA (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of WABCO) will be responsible for, and will indemnify American Standard (now Trane) and its
subsidiaries {including certain subsidiaries formerly engaged in the Bath and Kitchen business) and their respective
affiliates against any fines related to this investigation. See “ltem 2--Legal Proceedings” for additional discussion of
the procedural history, response, hearing and appeals process related to the European Commission investigation.

We expect that this investigation will result in the imposition of a fine, however we are unable 1o reasonably
estimate the loss or range of loss that may result from this matter for the reasons that follow. The European
Commission adopted new fining guidetines (the “2006 Guidelines”) which apply in alf cases in which a Statement of
Objections is issued after September 2006. The 2006 Guidelines conter on the Commission considerable discretion
enabling it to impose higher fines than those which would have resulted from application of the prior fining guidelines.
Under the 2006 Guidelines, the Commission will determine a “basic amount” of the fine by considering the value of the
sales of goods to which the infringemeni relates, the gravity of the infringement and its duration. In applying the 2006
Guidelines, the Commission retains considerable discretion in calculating the fine, including discretion as to the
determination of the "basic amount,” evaluation of the aggravating and mitigating circumstances and the availability of
leniency and the assessment of the overall deterrent effect of the fine. There have been a number of recent decisions
in which the Commission has imposed fines under the 2006 Guidelines. However, none of these decisions has been
published as yet and so it is not possible to ascertain how the Commission has applied the 2006 Guidelines 1o the
specific circumstances of each case or to extrapolate how the Commission is fikely to apply the 2006 Guidelines in the
present case. If the Commission were to apply the 2006 Guidelines to the allegations as set forth in the Statement of
Objections, the fine would be significant primarily due 10 the breadth of the allegations and the alleged duration of the
infringement. American Standard and its charged European subsidiaries have presented defenses to the allegations in
the Statement of Objections and WABCO Europe BVBA did so at an oral hearing with the European Commission, and
it is not possible 1o judge the impact of these detenses on the final outcome.
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In any event, Article 23 of Council Regulation No. 1/2003 provides for a maximum fine equal to 10% of the
parent company's worldwide revenue attributable to all of its products for the fiscal year prior to the year in which
the fine is imposed. Based on American Standard's reported worldwide revenue in 2007 and 2006, if the maximum
fine were levied, the total liability would be approximately $1.1 billion subject to a probable reduction tor leniency of
al least 20% provided the leniency applicant fulfills all conditions set forih in the Commission's leniency nolice. The
2007 American Standard reported worldwide revenue includes twelve months of sales for Trane, seven months of
sales for WABCQ, and ten months of sales for Bath and Kitchen. The effect, if any, of the spin-off of WABCOQO from
American Standard and the sale of its Bath and Kitchen business, both of which occurred in 2007, on the calculation
of such 10% liability cap is unclear. in any event, the fine imposed by the Commission could be material to
WABCO's operating results and cash flows for the year in which the liability would be recognized or the fine paid.
However, we believe that payment of the fine will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition ¢r
liquidity of WABCO even at the maximum fine, for the following reasons. The Company’s capital structure at the
time of its separation from American Standard included only a minimal amount of debt. As a result, WABCO
expects to have sufficient funds available under its existing $800 million five year revolving credit facility, from
operating cash llows and from additional bank credit facilities it expects to be able to arrange, to pay the fine and
fund the Company’s continuing operations, while still maintaining coverage ratios consistent with the financial
covenanis in our $800 million 5-year revolving credit facility and a capital structure in line with its business needs.

Further, the $800 million 5 year revolving credit facility is a non-amortizing facility that permits utilization up to
the maximum leve! at any time through and until expiration, subject to the liquidity covenant in the credit agreement,
Additionally, the Company has entered into a Euro 50 million ($73.6 million at December 31, 2007 exchange rates),
364 day credil agreement dated November 28, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, there was no utilization under this
agreement. We also believe bank credit facilities could be arranged for terms ranging from 364 days 1o 5 years,
depending on business needs. We believe WABCO's expected ongoing profitability, operating cash flows and
financial metrics will enable it to access bank and capital markets to pay even the maximum fine, if needed, as well
as refinance the credil facilities at expiration. As such, credit facility drawdowns undertaken to pay the fine could be
integrated into the long term capitat structure of the Company.

In conjunction with the Tax Sharing Agreement, as further discussed in Note 15, Tax and Indemnification
Liabilities Transferred from Trane to WABCQ, in Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements, WABCO is
responsible for certain tax and indemnification liabilities. These liabilities include indemnifications to Trane of $19.7
million related to the WABCO business and $35.8 million related to Trane’s Bath & Kitchen business. The
unrecognized tax benefils of $95.6 million discussed above within “income taxes”, include $20.5 million of
unrecognized tax benelils related to Trane's Bath & Kitchen business for which WABCO has obligations direcily to tax
authorities.

Cyclical and Seasonal Nature of Business

The industry we operate in is cyciical. Qver 70% of our sales are for newly manufactured trucks, buses and
trailers, the production of which follows long investment cycles and is impacted by macro economic factors and
legislation, Globa! manufacturing cutputs have consistently been growing since 2001, but the industry is expecting
major markels to peak in 2008. Our most important market is Western Europe. Historically, the Western European
market has had tess volatility than other markets. In 2008, the Western European market is expected to increase
approximately 9%-15% as compared to 2007. Demand in our North American market is estimated to see moderate
recovery, largely in the latter part of the year, in comparison to the significant markel decrease seen in 2007. In
2007, approximately 7% of our total sales came from the North American market. The continued adoption of new
technologies by truck and bus manufacturers helps to mitigate the impact of declines in truck and bus production.
The vehicle controts industry is not subject 1o seasonal impacts.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We conduct operations through subsidiaries in most of the major countries of Western Europe, Brazil, Poland,
China, South Korea and Japan as well as the US. In addition, we conduct business in some countries through
affiliated companies and partnerships in which we own 50% or less of the stock or parinership interest. Fluctuations
in currency exchange rates have a significant impact on the reported results of our operations, which are presented
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in U.S. doflars. The largest of these exposures to currency exchange rates is between the Euro and U.S. Dollar. We
believe our primary exposures to changes in currency exchange rates are associated with the foliowing:

Translation—We face foreign currency exposure that arises from translating the results of our operations
to the U.S. dollar at exchange rates that have fluctuated throughout the year. A hypothetical 10%
weakening of all other currencies in relation to the U.S. dollar would have resulted in an approximate $12.5
million reduction in the 2007 reported net income.

Sourcing and manufacturing strategy—A significant and growing portion of our products are sourced and
manufactured in currencies dilferent than the currency in which they are sold resulting in increased
axposure to foreign exchange risks. Based on our 2007 transaction flow, a 10% weakening of all other
currencies in relation to the U.S. dollar would have resulted in an approximate $7.1 million increase in the
2007 reported net income.

Transaction gains and losses—Certain of our monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the respective entity. Based on December 31, 2007
balances, a 10% weakening of all other currencies in relation to the U.S. dollar would have resulted in an
approximate $1.1 million increase in the 2007 reporled net income.

The aggregate impact of a hypothetical 10% weakening of all other currencies in refation to the U.S. dollar
relating to the abovementioned exposures would have resulted in an approximate $4.3 million decrease in the 2007
reported net income.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of WABCO Holdings Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consalidated balance sheet of WABCO Holdings Inc. as of December 31,
2007, and the related consolidaled statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2007. Our audit aiso included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at item 15(a).
These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s managemeni. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financiat position of WABCO Holdings Inc. at December 31, 2007, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to
the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set torth
therein.

We also have audiled, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), WABCO Holdings Ing.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on
criteria established in Internal Control-integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 12, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes on January 1, 2007.

Emst & Young Bedrijisrevisoren BCVBA/Réviseurs d’Entreprises SCCRL

Represented by:

/s/ Daniel.). Van Cutsem, Partner
Brussels, Belgium

March 12, 2008
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of WABCO Holdings Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of WABCO Holdings Inc., as of December 31,
2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, owners' net investment and comprehensive income, and
cash tlows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedule fisted in the Index at ltem 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility
of WABCO Holdings nc. management. Our responsibility is to express an opinicn on these financial statements and
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairy, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of WABCO Holdings Inc. at December 31, 2006, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in alt material respects the
information set torth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company changed its metheds of accounting for stock-

based compensation on January 1, 2006, and defined benefit pension and other post-retirement plan obligations on
December 31, 2006.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
February 22, 2007
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WABCO HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

(Amounts in millions, except share and per share data) 2007 2006 2005
SalES L S 2459 3§ 20152 $ 18310
Costolsales ...... ... . 1,764.2 1,463.5 1,312.5
Grossprofit . ... .. 651.7 551.7 518.5
Costs and expenses:

Selling and administrative expenses ............ ... ... ...... 299.8 255.0 2335

Product engineering expenses . ........ ... . i, 84.2 72.2 735

Equity (income} of unconsolidated jointventures ............... (9.1) (23.3} (24.5)

Otherexpense, Net . ... ... .. ... i, 35.6 10.8 5.4

Interest expense/(income}, net—related party . .. ............... 1.5 6.2 (6.0)

Inlerestexpense,net . ............ ... ... ..., e 3.0 5.1 3.9

415.0 326.0 285.8

Income before incometaxes ... . L il 236.7 2257 232.7
INCOMEaXeS . ... . 111.3 87.9 874
NetinCOME . ... e 5 125.4 1378 § 145.3
Net income per common share:

BasiC . .. .. $ 1.85 — —

Diluted . ... 3 1.81 — —
Pro-forma net income per common share;

Basic ... . — 203 3 2.14

Diluted . .. ... — 198 % 2.08
Cash dividends per share of commonstock ....... .. ... ... ..... S 0.14 — —
Common shares outstanding:

Basic ... 67,887,919 — —

Diluted . . ... 69,270,661 — —
Pro-forma commaon shares outstanding:

BasiC ... — 67,867,159 67,867,159

Diluted . . ... — 69,696,428 69,696,428

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WABCO HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
{Amounts in millions, except share data) 2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cashandcash equivalents ............. it $ 1832 $ 348
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts—3$6.4 in 2007; $6.5 in 2006 . . 464.6 186.5
N =T 1 (o =Y GGG 177.4 138.0
Future incometax benefits .. ... ... .. . . e 8.0 14.5
Retained interest in securitization program ... .. ... — 17.4
(@ (= R w T [ -1 £ T O O AN PO 54.2 356
Total CUMEN ASSElS . .. .. e e 8874 426.8
Facilities, less accumulated depreciation .. .. ... .. .. 336.2 299.7
GOl . . . e e e 3768 3438
Capitalized software costs, net of accumulated amonrtization—$129.1 in 2007,

B71 5N 2006 . . .. e 35.1 37.4
Long-term future income tax benefits ... .. ... . .. 40.7 42.0
Investment in unconsolidated joint vertures . ... . ... ... e 83.0 84.9
L0 [T O Tt - 35.0 423
TOT AL ASSET S L oo i e e e e e $1,7942 $1,276.9
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY/OWNER'S NET INVESTMENT
Current liabilities:

Loans payable 1o banks ... ... . . e $ 102 $ 179
Accounts payable . ... e 193.5 147.3
Accrued payroll . . L e e e 100.1 74.2
Current portion of Warranties ... ... . i e e 49.7 35.1
JAXES ON NGO . .. .. ittt e e e e e e 128 65.5
Cash coltected on behalf of banks—securitization . .............. .. .. ... ... ... ... —_ 68.7
Indemnification liabilities . . ... .. .. . e 26.4 —
Other accrued liabilities ... .. ... .. . e 91.6 67.6
Total current liabilities . ... .. e 484.3 476.3
Long-lerm debl ... .. e 116.0 57.3
Post-retirement benefits . ... .. . . e e 3341 366.4
Warmanties . ... 43 54
Deferred tax liabilities . .. ... .. . e e 25.6 18.5
MinOrity terest . e 135 11.4
Long-term indemnification fiabilities . . . .. ... .. L. 55.6 —
Long-termincometax liabilities . ....... .. ... . e 95.6 08
L0 1 (3= S 57.6 25.6
Total kabilities . .. .. e e 1,186.6 961.7
Commitments and contingencies:
Owners netinvestment . .. ... .. e — 306.0
Preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding ........... — —
Common stock, $.01 par value, 400,000,000 shares authorized; shares issued:
69,100,909 in 2007; none in 2006; and shares outstanding: 66,528,209 in 2007; none
N 2008 . e e e e 0.7 —
Capital Surplus ... . i 548.3 —
Treasury stock, at cost: 2,572,700 shares in 2007; no sharesin2006 .............. ... {122.8) —
Retained earmings . .. ... e e 76.4 —
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translationeffects . ........ . ... 128.6 82.4
Unrealized fosses on benefitplans, netoftax . ...... ... ... ... . .. ... .. ... (23.6) (73.2)
Total shareholders' equily . ... .. ... . 607.6
Total owners' netinvestment . .. ... .. .. .. . .. e 315.2
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY ... ... e $1,794.2
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S NET INVESTMENT . ... ... ... . $1,276.9

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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{Amounts in millions)

Operating activities:

WABCO HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

NEtINCOME . o e $1254 $137.8 $ 1453
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used) provided by operating
activities:
DEpreCialion . ... e e e 63.6 49.2 40.2
Amortization of capitalized software and cther intangibles .................... 28.7 32.6 36.3
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated joint ventures, net of dividends received . . . . {0.1) (4.7} (9.8)
Non-cash stock compensation ................. ... . ... . . . i 4.4 2.7 0.3

Deterred income taxes

................................................ 189 (157)  (9.5)

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment . .. ........ .. ... ... 29 1.6 —
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable

................................................ (233.9) (38.2) 7.9

IV ERIOMIES . . ... e e (21.3) (9.7} {8.2)
Accounts Payable ... ... . e e e 27.0 5.0 {0.6)
Other accrued liabilities andtaxes ........... .. .. ... ... ... .. .. ... (29.7) 56.3 13.5
Post-retirementbenefits ... ... ... .. ... (3.3) (31.4) 0.2
Other currentand long-term assets . . _................. . ..iiiitiinunann. 15 (21.8) (24.2)
Other long-term liabilities ... ... .. .. ... .. L. 156 1.7 36 !
Net cash (used) / provided by operating activities ........................... (0.3) 1754 195.0 i
Investing activities: I
Purchases of property, plantand equipment .. ... ... ... .. .. .. ... ... ... ..... (69.8) (65.2) ({61.9) i
Investments in computer SOfWArE ... .. ... ... . it e e (7.9) (7.5) (8.3)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment .. ... ... .. ..., ... .. 1.9 — 0.7
Net cash used in investing activities . .......... .. ... ... .. ... .. .. ... .. ...... (75.8) (72.7) (69.5)
Financing activities:
Borrowings of long-termdebt ... ... .. .. ... ... 258.4 64.8 —
Repayments of long-termdebt ... .. ... . ... .. . ... (202.0) (52.7) (0.3)
Net (repayments) / borrowings of short-termdebt . .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ..., (8.6) 10.3 (3.5)
Purchases of treasury stock ... ... . i i e e {122.8) — —
Dividend payments . .. ... e e e e e (9.6) — —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options .. ... .. ... ... L 181 - —_
Net change in balance due from/to Trane or Trane affiliated entities . . ... ......... 281.0 (132.5) (107.3)
Net cash provided/{used) by financing activities . .. .. _..................... .. 2145 (110.1) (111.1)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . .................. 10.0 23 {1.4)
Net increase/{decrease) in cashandcashequivalents . .. ........................ 148.4 (5.1) 13.0
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof period . ....... ... ... .. ... ... ... .. 34.8 39.9 26.9
Cash and cash equivalents atend ofperiod ............ . ... . ... ............. $183.2 $ 348 % 399

Cash paid during the year for:

g =T = $ 47 % 50 8§ 33

L 2 $ 657 $ 489 $ 503
Non Cash ltems for the year:

Pension reserves transferred from Trane Inc. .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ...... $ 81 % — & —

VAT receivables transferred from Trane Inc. ......... ... . ... ... . ... ..... $ 68 § — § —

Tax reserves and separation taxes transferred from Trane Inc. . ... ... ... ... ... $ 971 § — §& —

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WABCO HOLDINGS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY/OWNER'S NET INVESTMENT AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

Forelgn Minimum Unrealized
Currency  Pension Losses on
Owner's Common Capital Treasury Retained Translation Liability Benefit Plans, Comprehensive

{Amounts in millions) Investment Stock Surplus Stock Earnings Effects  Adjustment  net of tax Income
Balance at December 31,

2004 ... ............ § 259.7 35— $§ — § — s — $ 96.8 $(43.2) 5 —
Netincome ............. 1453 — — — — — — — $145.3
Foreign currency

franslation ........... — _ — -— — {32.9) 4.6 — {28.3)

Minimum pension kability
adjustment, net of
taxes ................ — - - - — — {12.5) - (12.5)

Total
comprehensive . .
income .......... $104.5

MNon-cash stock

compensation ........ 0.3
Net translers to Trane and

affiiates ............. {107.3}

Balance at December 31,
2005 ... ..., .. 298.0 _ _ —_ _— 63.9 {51.1) —_

Netincome ............. 137.8 - —_ — — — — $137.8
Foreign currency

translation ........... — e - - 18.5 (5.3} — 13.2
Minimum pension liability

adjusiment, net of

faxes ................ — - — - — — 23.0 — 23.0
Unrealized losses on

pension, adopiion of

FAS 158, netof tax . ... — —_ —_ _— —_ —_ 33.4 (73.2) (39.8)

Total
comprehensive
income .......... $134.2

Non-cash stock
compensation ........ 27 — — — — — —
Nel transters (o Trane and
affiiates ............. (132.5} —_ — — — — —

Balance at December 31,
2006 ................ $ 306.0 - - — $— $ 824 s — 5(73.2)

Net income prior to

separation ........... 39.4 — — — — — _— - $ 394
Net incomme post

separation ........... — — — — 86.0 — — — 86.0
Foreign currency

tranglation . .......... — — — -— — 46.2 — {4.0) 42,2
Unrealized gains on

pension, netoftax ..... — — — - - — — 53.6 53.6

Total
comprehensive
facome .......... $221.2

Net transters from Trane

ang affiliates .. ...... .. 180.4 — — — — - —_
Common stock issued

upen separation ... .. .. — 0.7 — — — — -
Transker upon

separation ._......... {525.8) — 525.8 — — — —
Treasury stock

purchased ........... —
Stock options exercised . .
Stock-based

compensation ........
Dividends paid . ......... —_

Balance at December 31,
2007 ...

—  {122.8) — - - —
18, — — — — —
44 — — — — —
- — {9.6) — — —

L]
I

o

-

5483 (122.8) $76.4 $128.6 $ — $(23.6)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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WABCO HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. Description of Company and Basis of Presentation

WABCO Holdings Inc. ("WABCO" or the “Company") develops, manufactures and sells advanced braking,
stability, suspension and transmission control systems primarily for commercial vehicles. WABCQ's largest selling
products are braking systems (“ABS” and "EBS"}, automated manual transmission controls and air suspension
controls for heavy and medium-sized trucks, buses and trailers. WABCO sells its products ta four groups of
customers around the world: truck and bus original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs™), trailer OEMs, altermarket
distributors of replacement parts and services, and automotive QEMs.

On February 1, 2007, Trane Inc., formerly known as American Standard Companies Inc., (*Trane"} announced
that its Board of Directors completed a strategic review of Trane and unanimously approved a plan to separate its
Vehicle Control Systems business as an independent, publicly traded company, named WABCO Holdings Inc. (the
“Separation”). Trane implemented the Separation on July 31, 2007, through a tax-free stock dividend of all of
WABCO's common stock to Trane shareowners, who received one share of WABCO common stock for every three
shares of Trane common stock owned on the record date of Jufy 19, 2007 (the “Distribution™). The Separation has
provided WABCO with certain opportunities and benefits, including increased strategic focus, increased market
recognition, improved capital flexibility and increased ability to attract, relain and motivate employees. The
Separation has not triggered “change-in-control” accelerated benefits for any officers or employees of WABCO.

Prior to July 31, 2007, the historical financial statements have been derived from the financial statements and
accounting records of Trane, principally representing the Vehicle Control Systems segment, using the historical
results of operations, and historical basis of assels and liabilities of the Vehicle Control Systems segment and
reflecting Trane's net investment in the Vehicle Control Systems segment through July 31, 2007. Historically, stand-
alone financial slatements were not prepared for the Vehicle Control Systems segment. The accompanying financial
statementis include allocations of costs that were incurred by Trane for functions such as corperate human
resources, finance and legat through July 31, 2007. These costs include the cosls of salaries, benefils and other
related costs. The tolal costs allocated to the accompanying financial statements for these functions amounted to
$12.9 million, $21.8 million and $18.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
These costs are included in selling and administrative expenses in the accompanying financial statements. The
primary driver underlying these allocations is total WABCO revenue as a percentage of the total consolidated
revenue of Trane. Management believes the assumptions underlying the allocations included in the financial
statements are reascnable.

Because prior to July 31, 2007, a direct ownership relationship did not exist among all of the various units and
entities comprising WABCO, Trane’s net investment in WABCQO is shown in lieu of shareholders' equity in the
financial statements through July 31, 2007.

The historical financial statements through July 31, 2007, inciude the accounts of certain majority-owned
subsidiaries of Trane and intercompany transactions are etiminated. Subsequent to the Separation, all majority
owned subsidiaries of WABCO are included in the financial statements and intercompany transactions are
eliminated. WABCO investments in unconsolidated joint ventures are included at cost plus its equity in undistributed
earnings in accordance with the equity method of accounting and reflected as investments in unconsolidated joint
ventures in the consolidated balance sheet.

Historically, WABCO’s operations have been substantially funded through Trane’s primary bank credit
agreement through either intercompany loans or intercompany advances. The historical accompanying consolidated
financial statements through July 31, 2007, reflect the inlerest expense or income, if any, charged or received on
these inlercompany arrangements.

Although the historical financial statements, for periods prior to the Separation, may not necessarily reflect
WABCO’s results of operations, financial position and cash flows subsequent to the Separation, management
believes the ditferences between the amounts presented and whal its results of operations, financial position and
cash flows wauld have been had WABCO been a standalone company during the periods presented would not be
material.
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NOTE 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that afiect the amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements and accompanying noles. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Some of the most significant estimates included in the preparation of the financial statements are related to stock-
based compensation, post-retirement benefils, warranties, income taxes, sales returns, allowance for doubttul
accounts and commitments and contingencies. Allocation methods are described in the notes to these financial
statements where appropriate.

Foreign Currency Transiation—In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 52,
Foreign Currency Translation, adjustments resulting from translating foreign functional currency assets and liabilities
into U.S. dollars are recorded in a separate component of shareholders’ equity/owner's net investment. Gains or
losses resulting from transactions in other than the functional currency are reflected in the consolidated statement of
income, except for intercompany transactions of a long-term investment nature.

Revenue Recognition—In accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staif Accounting Bulletin
No. 104, sales of products are recorded (i) upon shipment i title passes to the cuslomer upon shipment, or upon
delivery if title passes to the customer upon delivery, (ii) when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists with
the customer, (iii) when the sales price is fixed and determinable, and (iv) when the collectability of the sales price is
reasonably assured. Amounts bifled 1o customers for shipping and handling costs are included in sales.

In accordance with EITF 01-3, Accounting for Consideration Given By a Vendor to a Customer, WABCO
typically records cooperative adverlising allowances, rebates and other forms of sales incentives as a reduction of
sales at the later of the date of the sale or the date the incentive is offered.

In most countries where WABCO operates, sales are subject to VAT taxes. The revenues are presented net of
VAT in the income statement.

Shipping and Handling Costs—Shipping, handling, receiving, inspecting, warehousing, internal transfer,
procurement and other costs of distribution are included in cost of sales in the consolidated statements of income.

Cash Equivalents—Cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months or less
when purchased.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—In determining the allowance for doubtiul accounts WABCO analyzes the
aging of accounts receivable, historical bad debis, customer creditworthiness and current economic trends.

Inventories—Inventory costs are determined by the use of the last-in, first-out {LIFO) method, and are stated
at the tower of such cost or realizable value. The LIFO method is used as it provides a better matching of the costs
to the sales.

Facilities—Property, plant and equipment balances are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. WABCO
capitalizes costs, including interest during construction, of fixed asset additions, improvements, and bettermenis
that add to productive capacity or extend the asset life. WABCO assesses facilities for impairment when events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of these assets may not be recoverable. Maintenance and repair
expenditures are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation—Depreciation and amortization are computed on the straight-line method based on the
estimated useful life of the asset or asset group, which are 40 years for buildings, 3 years for tooling and 5 to 15
years for machinery and equipment.

Computer Software Costs—In accordance with Statement of Position 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for internal Use, WABCO capitalizes the costs of obtaining or
developing internal-use computer software, including directly related payroli costs, WABCO amortizes those costs
over periods up to seven years, beginning when the software is ready for its intended use. WABCO recorded $14.0
million, $13.9 million and $14.4 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively to the income statement.

Goodwill—In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, goodwill is not amortized but is subject to impairment tests each fiscal year or more often when
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events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of goodwill may not be recoverable. A goodwill
impairment loss is recognized to the extent the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of
goodwill.

Debt Issuance Costs—The cosls related to the issuance of debt are capitalized and amortized over the life of
the related det.

Warranties—Products sold by WABCO are covered by a basic limited warranty with terms and conditions that
vary depending upon the product and country in which it was soid. The limited warranty covers the equipment, parts
and tabor (in certain cases) necessary to satisty the warranty obligation for a period of two years, generally.
Estimated product warranty expenses are accrued in cost of good sold at the time the related sale is recognized.
Estimates of warranty expenses are based primarily on warranty claims experience and specific customer
contracts. Warranty expenses include accruals for basic warranties for product sold, as well as accruals for product
recalls, service campaigns and other related events when they are known and estimable. To the extent WABCO
experiences changes in warranty claim activity or costs associated with servicing those cfaims, its warranty accrual
is adjusted accordingly. Warranty accruatl estimates are updated based upon the most current warranty claims
information available. See Note 13 for a summary of warranties.

Post-retirement Benefits—All post-retirement benefits are accounted for on an accrual basis using actuarial
assumptions in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for
Pensions and No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Post-Retirement Benefits Other Than Pensions and related
guidance. Post-retirement pension benefits are provided for substantially all employees of WABCQ, both in the U.S.
and abroad through plans specific to each of WABCO's legal entities. In addition, in the U.S. and Brazil certain
employees receive post-retirement health care and life insurance benefits. The costs of the benefits provided
through plans of WABCO are also included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and summarized
in detail along with other information pertaining to these plans in Note 11. Plans are primarily concentrated in the
United Kingdom, Austria, Germany, Brazil and Switzerland. in December 20086, the Company adopted the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 158 (“FAS 158"), Employers’ Accounting for Defined
Benefit Pension and Other Post-Retirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No, 87, 88, 106, and
132(R). FAS 158 requires an entity to recognize in its statement of financial position an asset for a defined benefit
post-retirement plan’s overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status.

FAS 158 also requires an entity to measure a defined benefit post-retirement plan’s assets and obligations that
determine its funded status as of the end of the employer's fiscal year, and recognize changes in the funded status
of a defined benefit post-retirement plan in comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur. This
provision is not required to be adopted by the Company until the year ended December 31, 2008. Since the
Company currently has a measurement date of December 31st for substantially all plans, this provision will not have
a material impact in the year of adoption.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—Financial instruments consist mainly of cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, loans payable to banks and long-term debt. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the carrying
amounts of these instruments approximated their fair values.

Research, Development and Engineering Expenses—Research and development costs are expensed as
incurred. WABCO expended approximately $84.2 million in 2007, $72.2 million in 2006 and $73.5 million in 2005 for
research activities, product development and for product engineering.

income Taxes—In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for
Income Taxes, delerred income taxes are determined on the asset and liability method, and are recognized for all
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial
statements. No provision is made for U.S. income taxes applicable to undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries
that are indefinitely reinvested. Prior to July 31, 2007, WABCO has been included in Trane's consolidated federal
and state income tax returns. The provision for income taxes for those periods has been computed as if WABCO
filed its own consolidated income tax returns separate and apart from Trane.
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On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48"). FIN 48 provides recognition
criteria and a related measurement model for tax positions taken by companies. In accordance with FIN 48, a tax
position is a position in a previously filed tax return or a position expected 10 be taken in a future tax filing that is
reflected in measuring current or deferred income tax asseis and liabilities. Tax positions shaill be recognized only
when it is more likely than not (likelihood of greater than 50%} based on technical merits, that the position will be
sustained upon examination. Tax positions that meet the more likely than not threshold should be measured using a
probability weighted approach as the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized
upon settlement

Earnings Per Share—For all periocds prior to July 31, 2007, and issuance of the common stock of WABCO, the
pro-forma number of common shares outstanding for basic and diluted earnings per share was determined by
applying the distribution ratio of one share of WABCO common stock for every three shares of Trane common stock
outstanding and including the effect of dilutive Trane common stock equivalents as of June 30, 2007.

Subsequent to July 31, 2007, basic net income per share has been computed using the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding. The average number of outstanding shares of common stock used in
computing diluted net income per share included 1,382,742 weighted average incremental shares for the year
ended December 31, 2007. The weighted average incremental shares represent the net amount of shares the
Company would issue upon the assumed exercise of in-lhe-money slock options and vesting of Restricted Stock
Units ("RSU’s”) after assuming that the Company would use the proceeds from the exercise of options to
repurchase treasury stock. The year ended December 31, 2007, excluded 111,887 shares due to their anti-dilutive
effect. Anti-dilutive options represent those options whose exercise price was grealter than the average price of the
Company’s common stock during the year ended December 31, 2007,

Comprehensive Income—Comprehensive income consists of net income, foreign currency translation
adjustments and pension liability adjusiments, unrecognized gains or losses on post-retirement benelit plans and is
presented in the Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Equity/Owner's Net Investment and Comprehensive
Income.

Stock-Based Compensation—The accompanying consolidated financial statements reflect the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123-Revised (“FAS 123R"}, Share Based Payments adopted on
January 1, 2006, using the modified prospective approach. FAS 123R requires WABCO to measure and recognize
in its staterent of income the expense associated with all share-based payment awards made to employees and
directors, including stock options, restricted stock units, and discounts on employee stock purchases associated
with Trane’'s Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), based on either estimated fair values or actual fair values in
the case of restricted stock and restricted stock unit grants. Under the modified prospective approach, WABCO
began to recognize as expense the cost of unvested awards outstanding as of January 1, 2006, as well as the cost
ot awards granted after January 1, 2006. Prior to January 1, 2006, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements reflect the accounting for share-based payments under Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
No. 123 Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation ("FAS 123"), which allowed for measurement of stock-based
compensation cost using the intrinsic value based method of accounting prescribed by APB Opinion No, 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 25"). APB 25 compensation cost was not recognized for
substantially all options granted because the exercise price of options granted was equal to the market value of
Trane's stock on the grant date and the ESPP plan was deermed noncompensatory.

Prior to Separation, certain WABCO employees participated in the stock-based compensation plans of Trane.
Under these plans, certain WABCO employees had received grants of stock options. In addition, all eligible WABCO
employees were provided with the opportunity to paricipate in Trane’s employee stock purchase plan (“ESPP”).
Stock options granted to WABCO employees under Trane's plans had generally vested ratably over three years on
the anniversary date of the awards and were exercisable generally over a pericd of ten years. Trane's ESPP
provided those employees that had enrolled with the ability to purchase shares of Trane’s stock at the end of each
calendar quarter, through payroll deductions at a discount of 15% from the market price of Trane’s stock as quoted
on the New York Stock Exchange on the last day of each calendar quaner.

All options granted prior 1o 2007 were adjusted upon the Distribution into two separate options, one relating to
the Company's common stock and one relating to Trane Inc. common stock. This adjustment was made such that
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immediately following the distribution (i) the number of shares relating to the Company option were equal to the
number of shares of Company common stock that the option hotder would have received in the Distribution had
Trane Inc. options represented outstanding shares of Trane common stock, and (ii) the per share option exercise
price of the original Trane inc. stock opticn was proportionally allocated between the two types of stock options
based upen the relative per share trading prices of the Company and Trane immediately following the distribution.
Thus, upon the Distribution, WABCO oplions are being hetd by both WABCO and Trane employees and Trane
options continued to be held by WABCO employees. Options granted 1o WABCO employees in 2007 were equitably
adjusted upoen distribution so as to relate solely to shares of the Company's common stock. These adjusiments
preserved the economic value of the awards immediately prior to the distribution. All Company options issued as
part of this adjustment and the Trane Inc. options will conlinue 1o be subject 1o their current vesting schedules.
Further, for purposes of vesting and the post-termination exercise periods applicable to such stock options, the
Trane Inc. Management Development and Compensation Committee determined that continued employment with
the Company will be viewed as continued employment with the issuer of the oplions.

WABCO uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to value the stock options. Total stock-based
compensation cost recognized during the year ending December 31, 2007 and 20086, of $4.4 million and $2.4
million, respectively, has been included in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The Company has recognized in
expense, in the periods subsequent 1o the adoption of FAS 123R, expense arising from Trane Inc. common stock
options, WABCO common stock options and Restricted Stock Units only for those stock compensation awards held
by WABCO employees. Qutstanding WABCO options held by non-WABCO employees or directors arise as a result
of the Distribution and are not reflected in compensation expense recognized by the Company. Consequently, these
stock options do not result in any tax benefits to the Company at any time. The WABCO options held by
non-employees or directors are considered in the Company's diluted EPS calculation.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income it the accompanying consolidated financial statements
tor 2005 reflected the fair value recognition provisions of FAS 123R, for stock-based employee compensation
(amounts in millions).

Netincome, as reported . ... .. . e e e $145.3
Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense, net of 1ax, determined under fair value

method for all stock option awards and discounts under ESPP ... ... .. ... .. ... .. .. ... 1.3
Net income including the impact of stock compensationexpense . ... ......... ... ........ $1440

The fair value of the Trane stock options granted in 2005 was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-
Schaoles option-pricing model with the following assumptions: risk-free interest rate of 4.30%; volatility of 26%, an
expected average life of 5 years; and a dividend yield of 1.40%.

NOTE 3. Effect of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard (“SFAS") No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, provides a
framework for measuring fair value under current standards in GAAP, and requires additional disclosure about fair
value measurements. In accordance with the Statement, the definition of fair value retains the exchange price
notion, and exchange price is defined as the price in an orderly transaction between market participants to selt an
asset or transfer a liability. If there is a principal market for the asset or liability, the fair value measurement should
reflect that price, whether that price is directly observable or otherwise used in a valuation technigue. Depending on
the asset or liability being valued, the inputs used tc determine fair value can range from observable inputs (i.e.
prices based on market data independent from the entity) and unobservable inputs (i.e. entity’s own assumptions
about the assumptions that market participants would use). The Statement applies to other accounting
proncuncements that require or permit fair value measurements and will be effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company has evaluated the provisions of
SFAS No. 157 to determine the potenlial impact the adoption will have on the Company’s financial statements and
have determined that the impact is immaterial.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to voluntarily choose to measure many financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value. The election is made on an instrument-by-instirument basis and is irrevocable. Unrealized
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gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings. SFAS No. 159
is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company has evaluated the provisions of SFAS
No. 159 to determine the potential impact the adoption will have on the Company's financial statements and have
determined that the impact is immaterial,

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements. SFAS No. 160 requires that a noncontrolling interest in a consolidated subsidiary be displayed in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a separate component of equity. Consistent with the FASB’s view
that noncontrolling interests are part of the equity of the consolidated group, SFAS No. 160 requires that earnings
attributed 1o the noncontrolling interests are to be reported as part of consolidated earnings and not as a separate
compaonent of income or expense. Once a subsidiary is consolidated, any change in ownership that doesn’t result in
loss of control is accounted for as an equity transaction. However, deconsolidation of a subsidiary would result in a
gain or foss reflected in the Company's Income Statement. SFAS Na. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008. Earlier application is prohibited. The Company is currently evatuating the provisions of SFAS
No. 180 1o determine the potential impact, if any, the adoption will have on the Company's tinancial statements.

In December 2007, the FASS issued SFAS No. 141.(R), Business Combinations. SFAS No. 141 (R) requires
that identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree be recognized
and measured as of the acquisition date at fair value regardless of the percentage of ownership. The standard also
requires any shares issued for acquisition to be measured at fair value on the date of acquisition as well as any
contingent consideration recognized or pre-acquisition gain or loss contingencies. In-process research and
development will not be capitalized and any acquisition related transaction costs should be expensed as incurred.
SFAS No. 141 (R) is eflective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Earlier application is prohibited.
This standard can only be adopted with prospective application. The Company is currently evaluating the provisions
of SFAS No. 141 (R) to determine the potential impact, if any, the adoption will have on the Company’s financial
statements.

NOTE 4. Streamlining Expenses

Following is a summary of the operational consclidation programs (consisting of termination payments and
other employee costs) outstanding as of December 31, 2007 (amounts in millions):

2007 Operational Consolidation Programs

Charges during the year of 2007 . . . .. ... e $11.9

Payments during the year of 2007 ... . .. e {3.7)
Balance as of December 31, 2007 . . .. e $ 82

2006 Operational Consolidation Programs

Balance as of December 31, 2006 ... ... i e e e $ 57

Charges during the year 0f 2007 . .. ... i i et i e e 0.9

Paymenis during the year of 2007 . .. . e (3.3)
Balance as of December 31, 2007 . . ... e $ 33

2005 and earlier Operational Consolidation Programs

Balance as of December 31, 2006 . ... ... ... . e $ 49

Payments during the year of 2007 . .. ... .. e {2.5)
Balance as of December 31, 2007 . .. . e $ 24
Total Balance as of December 31, 2007 . . .. ... . i $13.9

During 2007, WABCO incurred charges totaling $12.8 million related 1o operational consclidation activities, of
which $3.7 million is included in cost of sales and $9.1 million is included in selling and administrative expenses.
These charges included $0.9 million refated to 2006 plans, primarily related to severance and early retirement
plans. These actions included the elimination of 90 jobs. WABCO expects that approximately $2.7 million wifl be
paid in 2008 on the remaining balance of $8.2 million related 1o 2007 programs.

During 2007 WABCO expended $3.3 million of cash on 2006 programs. WABCQ expects that approximately
$1.2 million will be paid in 2008 on the remaining balance ot $3.3 million related to 2006 programs.
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During 2007 WABCOQ expended $1.2 million of cash on 2005 programs and $1.3 million on earlier year
programs. WABCO expects that approximately $1.4 miltion will be paid in 2008 on the remaining balance of $2.4
million related to 2005 and earlier programs.

During 2006, WABCO incurred charges totaling $8.2 million related to operational consolidation expenses of
which $1.3 million was included in cost of sales and $6.2 million was included in selling and administrative
expenses. These charges included $7.4 million related to 2006 plans and $0.8 million relaled to prior period plans,
primarity related to severance. These actions included the elimination of 59 jobs.

During 2005, WABCO incurred $13.7 million of operational consolidation expenses of which $6.8 million related
1o 2005 plans and $6.9 million related to 2004 carryover actions and included the efimination of 191 jobs. Of this
charge, $9.1 million was included in cost of sales and $4.6 million was included in selling and administrative
expenses. The 2005 charges related to plans asscciated with job elimination programs designed 10 streamline
processes. The charges associated with 2004 carryover actions penain to the continued execution of a plan to
transfer production of certain products from a manufacturing facitity in Leeds, UK to a facility in Poland.

NOTE 5. Capital Stock

The Company’s Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the Company to issue up to 400,000,000 shares of
common stock, par value $.01 per share and 4,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $.01 per share. As a
result of the Distribution, on August 1, 2007, there were 68,131,836 shares of WABCO common stock gutstanding.

On September 20, 2007, a dividend of $0.07 per share of common stock was paid to shareholders of record as
of September 4, 2007, totaling $4.8 miltion. On December 20, 2007, a dividend of $0.07 per share of common stock
was paid to shareholders of record as of December 3, 2007, totaling $4.7 million. On January 31, 2008, the Board
of Directors approved the payment of a dividend of $0.07 per share of common stock to be paid on March 20, 2008,
to shareholders of record on March 3, 2008.

The Company purchased 2,572,700 shares in 2007 for $122.8 million. As of December 31, 2007, the
unexpended authorization under the Company’s share repurchase programs was $377.2 million available to
repurchase shares under an authorization by the Board of Directors to repurchase up to $500 million, which expires
on September 1, 2009. The Company plans to continue to purchase shares at prevailing market prices in the open
market. Timing will vary depending on market conditions and other factors.

The WABCO Holdings Inc. Cmnibus Incentive Plan (the “Omnibus Plan”), was formally adopted by our Board
of Directors prior to the Distribution. The Omnibus Plan is intended to promote our long-term financial success and
increase shareholder value by providing us with the flexibility to implement annual and long-term cash, equity and
equity based incentives. The Omnibus Plan is also intended to align the interests of our employees with the
interests of our shareholders by affording them certain opportunities to acquire an interest in our stock. We believe
that these incentives and opportunities will encourage our executives and cther key employees to continue in our
employment, by providing them with a competitive level of compensation that varies based on our performance.
Under the Omnibus Plan, the Company may issue the following types of awards: stock options, stock appreciation
rights {(sometimes referred to as SARs), restricted stock, restricted units, annual incentive awards and long-term
incentive awards. The maximum number of shares or units that may be issued under the Omnibus Plan is
10,000,000. The 1otal number of shares of our stock that may be used for new grants of incentive awards other than
stock options and SARs is 1,000,000 shares. The total number of shares of our stock that may be subject to an
award of stock options and SARs granted to any individual during any calendar year may not exceed 750,000, The
total number of shares of restricted stock and restricted units that may be awarded to any individual during a
calendar year may not exceed a total of 200,000 shares or units. At December 31, 2007, options 1o purchase a total
of 4,771,126 shares, RSU's and restricted units were cutstanding and there were 4,268,122 shares remaining
available for grant under the Omnibus Plan.

Trane historically issued its annual stock-based compensation grants to its employees during the first quanter of
each year. During 2007 the annual grant was made by Trane and all options granted to WABCO employees were
converied to WABCOQ options upon the Separation. During 2006 the annual grant was made by Trane and all
options were converted by applying the distribution ratio as approved by the Board of Directors. These options, as
well as any outstanding WABCO oplions held by Trane employees, as of July 31, 2007, have been reflected in the
options outstanding balance on August 1, 2007.
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At the date of Separation, equity awards totaling approximately $8.3 million, which includes $5.5 million
founders’ grant consisting of stock options and RSU’s for certain WABCO employees, $2.3 million in a combination
of a founder’s grant and an initial equity award grant consisting of siock options and restricted stock units for the
CEQ, $0.1 million consisting of stock option and RSU's for the Board of Directors and an equity award of restricted
shares of $0.4 million to the Board of Directors, has been granted. The value of the stock options and restricted
stock unit awards will be expensed ratably over a 3 year period, commencing with the Separation. The value of the
restricted shares of $0.4 million was fully expensed during the third quarter of 2007 as there is no vesting period
associated with these shares.

The total number and type of awards granted primarily in connection with the annual grant and founder's gramt
and the related weighted-average grant-date fair values were as follows:

2007

Weighted- Weighted

Shares underlying options Average Average

WABCO Trane Exercise  Grant Date
employees employees Total Price Fair Value
Options Qutstanding August1,2007 ................. 625,490 4,767975 5,393,465 §27.67
Options Granted . ........... ... ... ....c........ 269,510 — 269,510 $48.55 $14.50
Options Exercised . ............. ... .............. (12,317) (948,435) (960,752) $18.75
Options Forfeited .. .. .. ... .. ... .. ... ... .. .... (8.391) {15,466) (23,857) $40.42
Options Qutstanding December 31,2007 ............. 874,292 3,804,074 4,678,366 $30.65
Options Outstanding December 31, 2007, net of
expectedforfeitures .. ... .. ... ... ... L. 847,886 3,769,780 4,617,666 $30.49
Exercisable at end of period:

Year ended December 31,2007 . ................ 179,109 2,777,973 2,957,082 $23.77
RSUsGranted . ........ . ... ... . . . ... . . 84,679 — $48.64
RSUsForeited ..._....... ... .. ... ... ... ....... (227) —

RSU's Outstanding Becember 31,2007 .............. 84,452

The options granted in 2007 vest in equal annual installments over a period of three years. The restricted stock
units granted in 2007 vest ratably over a period of three years. The weighted average grant date fair value was
calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.-

The total aggregate intrinsic value of awards outstanding as of December 31, 2007 is $91.0 million. The total
aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisable as of December 31, 2007 is $77.8 million. Aggregate infrinsic value
is calculated by subtracting the exercise price of the option from the closing price of the Company's common stock
on December 31, 2007, multiplied by the number of shares per each option. In addition, the weighted average
remaining contractual life of options outstanding as of December 31, 2007 is 6.5 years. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2007 was $28.6 million and the total fair value of shares
vested during the same pericd was $2.3 million. The 1,721,284 of nonvested options and RSU's as of
December 31, 2007 will result in the recognition of $11.1 million of compensation cost. This cost will be recognized
over the weighted average period of 2.3 years. The weighted average remaining contractual life of the vested
options as of December 31, 2007 is 5.2 years. The contractual life of all options is 10 years.

The following table summarizes the significant assumptions used for the granis during the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

Assumption 2007 2006
Risk-free interestrate ... ... ... ... 4.50% 4.52%
Expected volatility . . ... .. e 26.0% 26.0%
Expected holding period . .. ... ... L 5 Years 5 Years
Expected forfeiture rate ... ... ... ..., 4.0% 4.0%
Dividend yield . . . e 0.57% 1.62%




The risk free interest rate is based on the yield of U.S. Treasury securities that correspond to the expected
holding period of the options. WABCO continued to use the same assumptions as Trane for volatility, expected
holding period and forfeiture rate for the current year. In the pericd prior to Separaticn, Trane reviewed the historic
volatility of its common stock over 12 month, 5 year and 10 year periods, and the implied volatility for at the money
options to purchase shares of its common stock. Based on this data, Trane chose to use the average of the 5 year
historic volatility of its common stock and the average implied volatility of at the money options. The 5 year historical
volalility pericd was selected since that period corresponds with the expected holding period. The expected holding
period was calculated by reviewing the historical exercise pattern of all holders that were granted options, the
exercise pattern of domestic versus international option holders (including an analysis by country) and the exercise
behavior of officers versus non-officers. The results of the analysis support one expected holding pericd for all
groups of employees. The expected forfeiture rate was determined based on the historical stock option forfeiture
data. The dividend yield was based on WABCO's expected dividend rate in 2007 and Trane’s expected dividend
rate in 2006.

For pertods prior to the Separation, WABCO employees held stock options of Trane. As such, after the
adoption of FAS 123R, WABCO recognized stock-based compensation on these options in 2006 and for all periods
in 2007 prior to the date of Separation. A summary of stoeck option activity for Trane stock options held by WABCO
employees and related information for the year ended December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Stock Options
Weighted- Weighted-

Shares Average Average
Underlying  Exercise  Falr Value
Options Price Of Grants
Cutstanding December 31, 2005 . ... .. .. i e 984,888 $23.82
GrANIEd . it e e 312,650 $36.98 $9.82
Exercised . .. ... (171,965) $22.90
Forfeited ... . e {25,661) $39.60
Qutstanding December 31,2008 .. ... ... ... ... i 1,099,912  $34.20
Exercisable at end of period:
Yearended December 31,2006 ....... ... . .. ... .. . ... 510,883 $29.10

On December 17, 2007, Trane Inc announced that it had entered into an agreement and plan of merger with
Ingersoll-Rand Company Limited (“Ingersoll-Rand”} and Indian Merger Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Ingersoll-Rand (“Merger Sub™), providing for the acquisition of Trane Inc. by Ingerscli-Rand, a publicly traded
company on the New York Stock Exchange. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, Merger
Sub will merge with and into Trane Inc., with Trane Inc. continuing as the surviving corporation and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ingersoll-Rand. The merger is subject to customary closing conditions, including the approval of Trane
Inc.'s shareholders and the receipt of certain required antitrust approvals and clearances. Trane Inc currently
anticipates that the merger will be completed in the second calendar quarter of 2008. Certain WABCO employees
continue to hold Trane options that are not fully vested, and which will continue to generate compensation expense
through 2009. Once the merger noted above is consummated, those options will immediately vest and the
Company will recognize the remaining unamortized compensation expense on those options. Cerlain Trane
employees continue to hold WABCO options that are not fully vested. It has not yet been determined how those
options will be treated at the dale of merger.

Following is a summary of net shares outstanding and shares issued or reacquired during the year ending
December 31, 2007.

Number of Shares of Common Stock

Treasury Net Shares

Total Shares Shares Qutstanding

Issued, July 31, 2007 . ... ... 68,131,836 — 68,131,836
Shares issued upon exercise of stockoptions .............. ... ... 960,752 — 960,752
Shares purchasedfortreasury ... .. ... ... . — (2,572,700} {2,572,700)
Other shares issued or (reacquired}, net . . .. ...................... 8,321 — 8,321
Batance, December 31, 2007 ... .. ... e e 69,100,909 (2,572,700} 66,528,209




The Company accounis for purchases of treasury stock under the cost methed as defined in Accounting
Principles Board Opinion Number 6, Status of Accounting Research Bulletins with the costs of such share
purchases reflected in treasury stock in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. When treasury shares are
reissued they are recorded at the average cost of the treasury shares acquired since the inception of the share buy
back programs, net of shares previously reissued and the Company reflects the difference between the average
cost paid and the amount received for the reissued shares in capital surplus. As of December 31, 2007, no shares
have been reissued.

NOTE 6. Other Expense, Net

Other expense/(income) was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(Amounts in millions) 2007 2006 2005
Separation related taxes including indemnification ligbilities .. ..... .. .. ..... $136 5 — $—
Early redemplion onbonds premium . ... ... i 6.0 — —
Losses on accounts receivable securitizationprogram ... .. ... .. ... ... L. 3.2 57 4.6
Minority interest exXpense . . ... . e 3.0 25 1.8
Other, Net . 9.8 2.6 {1.0}

$356 $108 $5.4

NOTE 7. Inventories

The components of inventories, which are carried on a last-in, first-out (LIFO) basis, are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
Eﬂla_rs in millions) 2007 2006
Finished products . .. e e $ 860 & 679
Products IN PrOCESS . . e e 8.1 10.3
Raw materials . .. .. e 83.3 59.8
Inveniories at CoSt . ... .. .. .. $177.4 $138.0
The current replacement cost approximated the LIFO carrying cost for 2007 and 2006.
NOTE 8. Facilities
The components of facilities, at cost, are as follows:
Year Ended
: December 31,
(Amounis in millions) 2007 2006
Land $ 161 $ 131
BUIldINGS . . . 147.3 130.8
Machinery and equipment . ... . e 521.8 4347
IMProvements in ProgressS . . . ..o ittt it ettt e e 46.6 32.9
Gross facHilies .« ... . e 731.8 6115
Less: accumulated depreciation ... ... ... .. ... 395.6 311.8
Netfacilities ... ... ... $336.2 $299.7

Depreciation expense tor owned assets and assels under capital leases for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005 was $63.6 million, $49.2 million, and $40.2 million, respectively.
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NOTE 9. Accounts Receivable Securitization Agreements

WABCO terminated its participation in Trane’s European securitization program as of May 31, 2007.
Additionally, effective April 30, 2007, WABCO terminated its arrangement to sell Trane the receivables generated
on sales of products 1o its U.S. joint venture Meritor WABCQO. The termination of the programs impacted the
balance sheet as follows during the second quarter; an increase in accounts receivable of $168.5 million, a
decrease in retained interest in securitization program of $19.1 million and a decrease in ¢cash collected on behalf of
banks-securitization of $65.7 million.

NOTE 10. Goodwill

The following table summarizes the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended
Becember 31, 2007 and 2006.

Year Ended
December 31,
{Amounts in millions) - 2007 2006
Balance of goodwill, beginningof year ... ... ... $343.8 $311.7
Foreign exchange translation ... .. ... ... . .. . i 33.0 32.1
Balance of goodwill, end of year ... ... ... $376.8 $343.8

NOTE 11. Retirement Benefits

WABCO employees parlicipate in a number of benefit plans. The plans include a 401(k) savings plan {the
“Savings Plan™} for the Campany’s U.S. salaried and hourly employees, and a pension plan {the “Cash Balance
Pian”) for certain U.S. salaried and hourly employees. The Savings Plan is an individual-account defined
contribution plan. WABCQO emplayees in certain countries, primarily Germany, the United Kingdom, France and
Switzerland participate in defined benefit plans sponsored by local WABCO legal entities. In addition, WABCO
employees in Brazil receive post-retirement health-care benefits.

Further, WABCO has assumed responsibility for certain retiree medical pians in the U.S. and a pension plan in
Germany relating to former employees of Trane’s Bath & Kitchen division.

Benetits under defined benefit pension plans on a worldwide basis are generally based on years of service and
either employee’s compensation during the last years of employment or negotiated benefit levels.

In December 2006, the Company adcpted the provisions of Statement of Financiat Accounting Standard
No. 158 (“FAS 158", Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post-Retirement Plans, an
amendment of FASB Statemenis No, 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). FAS 158 requires an entity to recognize in its
statement of financial position an asset {or a defined benefit post-retirement plan’s overfunded status or a liability for
a plan's underfunded status.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in pension and retirement health and life insurance
benefit obligations and fair value of assets for the years ending December 31, 2007 and 2006, and a statement of

the funded status as of December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2007 2006 2006
Health & Health &
Lifelns. Pension Lifelns. Pension
{Amounts in millions) Benefits Benefits Benefits Benetits
Reconciliation of benefit obligation:
Obligation at beginningofyear ......... .. .. ... .. ... .. .. ... ..... $262 $5039 %233 §463.1
SBIVICE COSt . .. o e 0.4 9.7 — 94
Interest COSt . .. .. e 1.0 21.7 1.3 21.4
Participant contributions . .. ... ... ... ... e 02 0.4 15 0.4
Planamendments . . ... ... ... . . 0.3 — — —
Acluarial (gain) /loss .. ... ... — (66.9) 4.3 (15.8)
Incremental separation liability . .. ... ... ... . L. — 52 — —
Benefitpayments . ...... ... .. ... {0.8) (27.9) {4.2) (22.5)
Foreignexchangeeffects . ..... .. .. ... .. . . .. . ... — 43.0 — 47.9
Other .. (2.4) — — —
Obligationatendofyear ......... ... oot ... $2493 $489.1 3262 §5039
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginningofyear ...................... $ — $1494 3 — $126.3
Actual relurn On assSets . . ... .. e — 4.0 — 9.7
Employercontributions .. ........ ... .. ... 0.6 28.3 2.7 20.6
Participant contributions . . ... .. . . . . 0.2 0.4 1.5 0.4
Benefit payments ... .. ... . e {0.8) (27.9) (4.2) (22.5)
Foreignexchange eflects . ... ... .. ... i i, — 4.9 — 15.8
Other expenses . .. .. ... — (0.9) — {0.9)
Fair value of plan asselsatendofyear ............................... $ — $1582 $ — $1494
Funded Status at December 31:
Funded status . ... oot e $(24.9) $(330.8) $(26.2) $(354.5)
Urirecognized prior service Cost . . .. ... oot i e — 05 — 0.8
Unrecognized net actuarialioss . .......... ... . oo — 31.4 11.8 93.3
Net amount recognized ... ... .. .. .. .. 5{(24.9) $(298.9) 3$(14.4) $(260.4)
Amounts Recognized in the Balance Sheet:
Betore Adoption of FAS 158;
Prepaid Benefit Cost . ........ .. ... .. . ... . ... .. ... .. $ — §$ 376 $§ — § 302
Accrued Benefit Liability ........... ... ... .. ... .. ... (24.9) (335.5) (14.4) (338.9)
Intangible Asset . . ... .. e — — — 0.6
Accumulated Other Comprehensivelncome ....................... — (1.0) — 47.7
Netamountrecognized .......... .. . . it $(24.9) $(298.9) $(14.4) 3$(2604)
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2007 2007 2006 2006

Health & Health &
LifeIlns. Pension Lifelns. Pension
(Amounts in millions) Benefits Benelits Benefits Benefits
After Adoption of FAS 158:
NONCUITENE S8R . . . ... it e e $ — % 988 §— § 71
Currentliabilities .. ... ... .. . . (2.4) (19.2) 2.6 (14.3)
Noncurrent liabilities .. ....... ... ... ... . . (22.5) (321.5) (28.8) (347.3}
Net amounis recognized in Balance Sheet: ............................ $(24.9) $(330.8) $(26.2) $(354.5)
Cumulative Amounts Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income consists
of :
Prior Service COSt . .. ... .. L $ 02 $ 05 % — § 08
Net actuariatloss .. ... .. . .. L 9.7 314 11.8 93.3
Total (beloretaxeffects) ... ... ... .. .. . $ 99 % 319 %118 § 941
Adjustments to post-retirement benefils accrual recognized in OCI:
Due to adoption of FAS 158 {before taxeffects) .......... ... ... ... — — 11.8 46.4
Change in Other Comprehensive Income and intangible assets due to
2007 EXPEIIBNCE . . e {(1.9) (62.9) — (15.1)
Gross adjustments 1o post-relirement benefits accrual recognized in OCI
(net of deterred tax of $20.3in 2007 and $12.7in2006) ............ $ (1.9 $629 $118 & 313

The following table provides a summary of pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of
assels as of December 31:

2007 2006
Foreign Foreign

{Amounts In millions) Pension Plans Pension Plans
For all plans:

Accumulated benefit obligation .. ... ... $452.0 $455.0
For pension plans with Accumulated Benefit Obligations in excess of plan assets:

Projected benefit obligation .. ... .. ... . L $489.1 $503.9

Accumulated benefit obligation . ........ .. ... .. L L $452.0 $455.0

Fairvalue of plan assets . .. .. ... ... ... .. . .. $158.2 $149.4

Total post-retirement costs are shown below:;

Year ended
December 31,

(Amounts in millions) 2007 2006 2005
FOreign PeNSIONS . .. ... i e e 826.7 %244 3238
Health & Life insurance benefits (Americas) ... .. i 2.2 1.8 1.8
Defined contribution plan cost, principally Savings Plan . ... ......... ... ... .. ... ... 0.2 0.2 0.3
Total post-retirement costs, including accretion exXpense . ....... ... oo nnn.. $29.1 $26.4 %259
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Components of post-retirement cosls are broken out in the tables below:

Pension Benefit Costs

2007 2006 2005
(Amounts in millions) Pensions Pensions Penslons
Service cost-benelits eamed during period .. .. ... ... $97 % 94 $ 88
Interest cost on projected benefitobligation . .. ... ... ... L 21.7 214 23.7
Lessassumedrelurnonplanassets ........ .. .. . ... . i (8.9) (10.8) {11.5)
Amortization of prior serviCe COSt . .. ... . . 03 — {0.2)
Amortization of Nel 0SS . .. . ... e 3.9 42 2.7
Definedbenefit plan cost ... ... . e 26.7 242 235
Allocation from Trane for WABCO employees participating intheplans . ........... —_ 0.2 0.3
Net defined benefit plan cost after curtailments for WABCQ dedicated plans ..... .. $26.7 $244 $238
Other Post-Retirement Benefit Costs

2007 2008 2005

Health & Health & Health &
Lifelns. Lifelns. Lifelns.

{Amounts in millions) Benefits Benefits Benefits
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation ...... ... .. ... ool 1.6 1.3 1.3
Amontization of Net10SS . . ... .. e 0.6 0.5 0.5
Defined benefitplancost . . ... ... e $2.2 $1.8 $1.8

Amortization of prior service cost is computed on the straighi-line method over the average remaining service
period of active participants.

Major assumptiens used in determining the benefit obligation and net cost for post-retirement plans are
presented below as weighted averages:

2007 2007 2006 2006
Health & Foreign Health & Foreign
Life Ins. Pension Life Ins. Pension
Benefit Obligation at December 31, benefits Plans Benefits Plans
Discountrate ............ . ... i 5.75% 5.71%  5.76% 4.56%
Salarygrowth . .. ... ... e N/A 3.29% 463% 3.24%
Net Periodic Pension Cost for the year
Discountrate ... .. ... ... ... e 5.75% 4.55% 5.75% 4.16%
Salarygrowth ... ... ... . e N/A 3.22% 434%  3.25%
Expectedreturnonplanassets .......... ... i, N/A 7.02% N/A 7.01%

The discount rate assumption in this chart changed from 2006 to 2007, resulling in a significant change in the
pension benefit obligation. in the chart above that reconciles the change in benetfit obligations for the year, the
impact of the discount rate change is included in the actuarial (gain)/loss line item.
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The assumed rate of return is a long-term investment return that takes into account the types of assels held by
the plan and expected returns for the asset class. Return expectations reflect forward-locking analysis as well as
historical experience. WABCO's asset management strategy focuses on maintaining a diversified porttolio using
various asset classes to generate attractive returns while managing risk. In determining the target asset aliocation
for a given plan, consideration is given to the nature of its liabilities, and portfolios are periodically rebalanced with
reference to the target level.

2007 2006

Asset Allocation 2007 2006 2005 Target  Target
Equity securities . . ........ ... .. .. 57% 57% 5H8% 23% 56%
Debtsecurities .. ... ... 39% 39% 37% T72% 40%
Other, includingrealestate . ..... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... . ..._. 4% 4% 5% 5% 4%

The 2007 target asset allocation was in {ine with the 2006 target allocation until the last quarter of 2007, when
the above targets were revised. The Company will move towards these revised asset allocations in 2008.

WABCO makes contributions to funded pension plans that at a minimum, meet all statutory funding
requirements. Contributions in 2007, including payment of benefits incurred by unfunded plans, totaled $29.0
million. Contributions in 2008 are expected to be in line with the contributions made during 2007.

Expected future benelit payments are shown in the table below:

{Amounts in millions) 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013-2017
Domestic plans without subsidy .. ............. $25 $25 $24 $24 §$23 § 98
Medicare D subsidy reimbursements . ......... $01 $01 $01 %01 $ 0.1 $ 03
Foreignplans . ..., $268 $278 5287 $29.8 3308 17286

The weighted average annual assumed rate of increase in the health care cost trend rate is 8.0% for 2007 and
is assumed to decrease to 8.5% in 2008 and gradually decline to 4.75% by 2018. The health care cost trend rate
assumption has the following effect:

{Amounts in millions) 1% Increase 1% Decrease

Effect on the health care component of accumulated post-retirement

obligation ... ... . $1.4 $(1.3)
Effect on totat of service and interest cost components of net periodic post-
retirement healthcarebenefitcosts . .......... .. .. i, $0.1 ${0.1)

NOTE 12. Debt
Redemption of Debt

Cn April 30, 2007, WABCO redeemed $406.0 million principal amount of its 7.59% Guaranteed Senior Bonds
prior to their maturity date of January 31, 2013. Prepayment of the bonds, undertaken to avoid default triggered by
the Separation, resulted in an early redemption premium ot $6.0 million, which was recorded in Other Expense in
the Company’s Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income during the second quarter of 2007.

In July 2007, WABCO repaid $52.1 million oulstanding debt with JP Morgan. This redemption was primarily
financed through additional cash received from Trane.

Credit Facilities

In May 2007, WABCO entered into an unsecured, five-year $800 million, multi-currency revelving credit facility
that will expire on July 31, 2012. The credit facility became available to us on August 1, 2007. The proceeds of the
borrowings under the credit facility have been used to fund repurchases of our shares and to meet short-term
requirements. Additionally, the facility may be used to pay a fine or provide a bank guarantee that may be required
pursuant to a decision relating 1o the European Commission investigation matter as further described in Note 13
under the heading "Contingencies”. The balance outstanding on this facility on December 31, 2007, is $116 million.
Up to $100 million under this facility may be used for issuing letters of credit, of which $99.2 million is unused as of
December 31, 2007.
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Under the five year facility, the Company pays a facility ee of 0.11% per annum. Borrowings thereunder bear
intereslt generally at the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™) plus either 0.44% if borrowings are less than or
equal to 50% of the total available balance, or 0.49% if borrowings are greater than 50% of the total available
balance. The Company also pays 0.44% per annum plus issuance fees for letters of credit. The inlerest rate
spreads above LIBOR (4.6% at December 31, 2007} are subject to adjustments should the Company's leverage
ratio change.

The five year facility contains various covenanis that limit, among other things, liens, transactions, subsidiary
indebtedness, and certain mergers and sales of assets. The covenants also require the Company 10 meet certain
financial tests: ratio of Consclidated Total Debt to consclidaled EBITDA (Earnings Belore Interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amoniization), the ratio of Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Interest Expense and a Liquidity
Test. As of December 31, 2007, the Company was in compliance with all the covenants contained in the credit
agreement.

The Company has also entered into a Euro 50 million ($73.6 million at December 31, 2007 exchange rates),
364 day credit agreement dated November 28, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, there was no utilization under this
agreement.

As of June 7, 2007, WABCO entered into an additicnal credit facility in the amount of $20 million for our China
operations. This facility is drawn upon in local currency and used for general corporate purposes. The balance
outstanding on this facility on December 31, 2007 is $4.1 million. Under the facility in China, the Company pays an
interest rate equal to 90% of the base lending rate for Renmimbi, published from time to time by the People’s Bank
of China. This rate was 5.913% on December 31, 2007. The balance of this credit facility has subsequently been
repaid in full.

Also, subsidiaries in Spain and Japan had borrowings from banks totaling $6.1 million. These loans support
local working capitaf requirements.

NOTE 13. Warranties, Guarantees, Commitments and Contingencies
Warranties

Following is a summary of changes in the WABCO's product warranty liability for the three years ended
December 31, 2007:

Year Ended December 31,

(Amounts in millions) 2007 2006 2005

Balance of warranty costs accrued, beginningofyear ....... ... ......... $405 $339 $325
Warranty cosis accrued . ... ... .. e 38.6 48.4 38.4
Warranty claims settled . ... ... ... (30.5) (45.9) (32.4)
Foreign exchange translationeflects ... ... ... . . . il 54 4.1 (4.6)
Balance of warranty costs accrued, end ofyear ......................... 54.0 40.5 339
Current portion included in current liabilities . ........................... (49.7) (35.1) (26.8)
Long-term warranty liability . . ... ... . ... ... $ 43 § 54 § 74

Guarantees and Commitments

Future minimum rental commitments under all non-cancelable operating leases with original terms in excess of
one year in effect at December 31, 2007, are: $11.9 million in 2008; $8.9 million in 2009; $5.7 million in 2010; $3.8
million in 2011, $3.3 million in 2012; and $2.1 million thereafter, a totaf of $35.7 million, Net rental expense for all
operating leases was $13.8 million, $11.9 miltion and $10.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

Contingencies

We are subject to proceedings, lawsuits and other claims related to products and other matters. We are
required to assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or cutcomes to these matters as well as potential

59



ranges of probable losses. A determination of the amount of liability 1o be recorded, if any, for these contingencies
is made after careful analysis of each individual issue. The liabilities recorded may change in the future, possibly by
significant amounts, due to new developments in any of the matters.

As part of a multi-company investigation, American Standard and certain of its European subsidiaries engaged
in the Bath and Kitchen business were charged by the European Commissicn for infringements of Eurcpean Union
competition rules relating to the distribution of bathroom fixtures and fittings in a number of European countries.
Pursuant to the Indemnification and Cooperation Agreement, WABCO Europe BVBA (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of WABCOQO) will be responsible for, and will indemnily American Standard (now Trane) and its
subsidiaries (including certain subsidiaries formerly engaged in the Bath and Kilchen business) and their respective
affiliales against any fines related to this investigation. See "ltem 2—Legal Proceedings” for additional discussion of
the procedural history, response, hearing and appeals process related to the European Commission investigation.

We expect that this investigation will resull in the imposition of a fine, however we are unable to reasonably
estimate the loss or range of loss that may result from this matter for the reasons that follow. The European
Commission adopted new fining guidelines (the “2006 Guidelines”) which apply in all cases in which a Statement of
Objections is issued after September 2006. The 2006 Guidelines confer on the Commission considerable discretion
enabling it to impose higher fines than those which would have resulted from application of the prior fining
guidelines. Under the 2006 Guidelines, the Commission will determine a “basic amount” of the fine by considering
the value of the sales of goods to which the infringement relates, the gravity of the infringement and its duration. In
applying the 2006 Guidelines, the Commission retains considerable discretion in calculating the fine, including
discretion as to the determination of the "basic amount,” evaluation of the aggravating and mitigaling circumstances
and the availability of leniency and the assessment of the overall deterrent effect of the fine. There have been a
number of recent decisions in which the Commission has imposed tines under the 2006 Guidelines. However, none
of these decisions has been published as yet and so it is not possible to ascertain how the Commission has applied
the. 2006 Guidelines to the specific circumstances of each case or to extrapolate how the Commission is likely to
apply the 2006 Guidelines in the present case. If the Commission were to apply the 2006 Guidelines to the
allegations as set lorth in the Statement of Objections, the fine would be significant primarily due to the breadth of
the allegations and the alleged duration of the infringement. American Standard and its charged European
subsidiaries have presented defenses to the allegations in the Statement of Objections and WABCQO Europe BVBA
did so al an oral hearing with the European Commission, and it is not possible 1o judge the impact of these
defenses on the final outcome.

In any event, Article 23 of Council Regufation No. 1/2003 provides for a maximum fine equal to 10% of the
parent company's worldwide revenue attributable 10 all of its producits for the fiscal year prior to the year in which
the fine is imposed. Based on American Standard’s reported worldwide revenue in 2007 and 20086, if the maximum
fine were levied, the total liability would be approximately $1.1 billion subject to a probable reduction for leniency of
at least 20% provided the leniency applicant fulfills all conditions set forth in the Commission’s leniency notice. The
2007 American Standard reported worldwide revenue includes twelve months of sales for American Standard,
seven months of sales for WABCO, and ten months of sales for Bath and Kitchen. The effect, if any, of the spin-off
of WABCOQ from Trane and the sale of its Bath and Kitchen business, both of which occurred in 2007, on the
calculation of such 10% liability cap is unclear. In any event, the fine imposed by the Commission could be material
to WABCO’s operating results and cash flows for the year in which the fiability would be recognized or the fine paid.
However, we believe that payment of the fine will not have a material adverse eflect on the financial condition or
liquidity of WABCO even at the maximum fine, for the following reasons. The Company’s capital structure at the
time of its separation from American Standard included only a minimal amount of debt. As a result, WABCO
expects lo have sufficient funds available under its existing five-year revolving credit facility, from operating cash
flows and from additional bank credit facilities it expects to be able to arrange, to pay the fine and fund the
Company's continuing operaticns, while still maintaining coverage ratios consistent with the financial covenants in
our $800 million credit facility and a capital structure in line with its business needs.

Further, the $800 million revolving line of credil is a non-amontizing facility that permits utilization up to the
maximum level at any time through and until expiration, subject to the liquidity covenant in the credit agreement.
Additionally, the Company has entered into a Euro 50 million ($73.6 million at December 31, 2007 exchange rates},
364 day credit agreement dated November 28, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, there was no utilization under this
agreement. We also believe that additional bank credit facilities could be arranged for terms ranging from 364 days
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to 5 years, depending on business needs. We believe WABCQO's expected ongoing profitability, operating cash
flows and financial metrics will enable it to access bank and capital markets to pay even the maximum fine, if
needed, as well as'refinance the credit facilities at expiration. As such, credit facility drawdowns undertaken to pay
the fine could be integrated into the fong term capital structure of the Company.

NOTE 14. Income Taxes

Income before income taxes and the applicable provision for income taxes were:

Year Ended December 31,

{Amounts in millions) 2007 2006 2005
Income before income taxes:
[T 0 T =1 (T $ 16.1 $ 86 $ 6.3

B OrIgN . L e e e 220.6 2171 226.4
' $236.7 $225.7 $232.7

Provision / {benefit) for income taxes:

Current:
DOMEStC .. .. $ 469 s — $ 10.0
ForeigN . . e e 45.5 103.6 86.9
92.4 103.6 96.9

Deferred:
DOMIEStiC . .. e 0.1 (1.0} 2.7
Foreign . . e 18.8 {14.7} (12.2}
18.9 {15.7} (9.5)
Total ProvisSion . ... e $111.3 $ 879 $ 874

A recongiliation between the actual income tax expense provided and the income taxes computed by applying
the statutory federal income tax rate of 35% in 2007, 2006 and 2005 to the income before income taxes is as
{ollows:

Year Ended December 31,

{Amounts in millions) 2007 2006 2005
Tax provision at statutory rate ... ... ... .. . . . i $ 829 $79.2 $815
Separation related taxes and contingencies .......... ... ... i, 50.7 — —
Foreign earnings taxed atotherthan 35% ... ... ... . ... ... ... ... ... ...... (31.4) 46 (3.5)
Changeintax rates . ... ... . i 10.2 — —
Taxcontingencies ... ... ... ... e 9.4 7.7 8.7
Benefitof tax audit settlements ... ... .. ... .. .. .. ... ... ... (7.5) — (18.3)
Repatriation of foreign eamnings under Jobs Creation Act . ..................... — (4.0} 16.0
Other, net . e (3.0} 04 3.0
Total ProviSION . .. .. $111.3 $87.9 $874

The income tax provision reflects certain foreign tax planning that benefits WABCO in 2007 and future years
following the separation of WABCO from Trane. The tax benefit associated with this planning is reflected in the
annual effective tax rate for 2007.

The approximate dollar and diluted earnings per share amounts of tax reductions related to tax holidays in
various countries in which the Company does business were $5.1 million and $0.07, in 2007, $3.5 million and $0.05,
in 2006, and $2.9 million and $0.04 in 2005, respectively. The 1ax holidays expire at various dates through 2017,
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The following table details the gross deferred 1ax liabilities and assets and the refated valuation allowances:

Year Ended
December 31,

{Amounts in millions) 2007 2006
Deferred tax liabilities:

Basis difference in minorily interest .. ... e $ 240 $ 239

Employee benefits .. ... .. e 15.5 28.3

Facilities (accelerated deprecialicn, capitalized interest and purchase accounting

differenCes) ... . . e 129 15.0

Inventory (LIEO) L. 2.1 1.2

IMtangibles . .. — 09

O NeT L e 5.4 g2

$ 599 $ 76.5
Delerred tax assets:

Foreign net operating losses and taxcredits ... ... .. ... ... oo 51186 $ 103
Valualion allowanCes . .. .. . e e (108.6} {1.3)
Post-retirement and other employee benefits ... ... ... .. . ... i 41.9 58.3
Itangibles . e 21.4 30.0
RS BIVES . e —_ 12.0
IV ENIOrY . e 1.7 3.7
T NS . o e e 0.6 08
L0 12T P 7.4 0.9
83.0 1145

Netdeferred lax assels . .. ... .. ... e $ 231 $ 38.0

At December 31, 2007 the company has $332.0 million of net operating loss carryforwards (NOLs) available for
utilization in future years. Approximately, $319.5 million of such NOLs have an unlimited lite and the remainder is
available for periods of five to fifteen years. As of December 31, 2007 the company has determined that it is more
likely than not that the $319.5 million of unlimited life NOLs will not be realizable in the foreseeable future and,
therelore, has provided a valuation allowance of $108.6 million representing the value of the associated delerred tax
assel. These NOLs became available to WABCO upon separation from Trane. Accordingly, they were not included
in the Company's deferred tax assels at December 31, 2006. The tax authorities have challenged a significant
portion of these NOLs on the basis that they should be reduced by dividends received. The Company disagrees
with this assenrtion, intends to defend its position, and continues to believe that its interpretation of the law will more
likely than not prevail. These NOLs carry a full valuation allowance.

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as
of date of adoption was $54.7 million. The Company did not have an adjustment to the unrecognized tax benefits as
a result of the implementation of FIN 48. As a result of a foreign tax audit setttement in the guarter ended June 30,
2007, the Company realized lax benefits of $7.5 million of the $54.7 million accrual. At December 31, 2007, we had
unrecognized tax benefits of $95.6 million, all of which, if recognized, would impact the effective tax rate, comprised
of $75.1 million related to the WABCO business and $20.5 million related to WABCO obligations to tax authorities
tor Trane's Bath & Kitchen business {see Note 15). The Company does not believe that it is reasonably possible
that any of such unrecognized tax benefits would be recognized in the next 12 months. As a result, the
unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2007 are classified as long-term lax liabilities. Interest related to
unrecognized tax benefits recorded was immaterial for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005. Total
accrued interest at December 31, 2007 and January 1, 2007 was approximately $3.9 million and $6.5 million,
respeclively. The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in
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income tax expense. No penalties have been accrued related to these unrecognized tax positions. A reconciliation
of the beginning and ending balances of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (exclusive of interest):

{(Amounts in millions)

Balance a January 1, 2007 . .. . e e $48.2
Reclassiication to indemnification liabilities . .. ... . .. i i e e (2.7)
Additions for tax positions related t0 2007 .. ... . e 534
R4 = =12 (12.1)
Foreign Exchange . .. ... e e 49

Balance at December 31, 2007 . ... ... i e e $9.7

We conduct business globally and, as a result, WABCO or one or more of our subsidianes file income tax
relurns in the U.S. federal, state and local, and foreign jurisdictions. In the normal course of business, we are
subject to examination by taxing authorities throughout the world, including such major jurisdictions as Belgium,
Brazil, China, France, Germany, the Netherlands, Poland, the United Kingdom and the United States. With no
material exceptions, the Company is no fonger subject to examinations by tax authoritiés for years before 2002. The
Company does not anticipate a reduction of unrecognized lax benefits to occur within 12 months as a result of
projected resolutions of worldwide tax disputes or applicable statute closings.

As a result of the allocation of purchase accounting (principally goodwill) to foreign subsidiaries, the book basis
in the net assets ol the foreign subsidiaries exceeds the related U.S. tax basis in the subsidiaries’ stock. Such
investments are considered permanent in duration and accordingly, no deferred taxes have been pravided on such
differences, which are significant. The Company considers the earnings of all its foreign subsidiaries to be
permanently reinvested and as such no additional U.S. tax cost has been provided. Il is not practicable to estimate
the tax liability that would arise if these earnings were remitted.

NOTE 15. Tax and Indemnification Liabilities Transferred from Trane to WABCO

Pursuant to a Tax Sharing Agreement between Trane and WABCO, entered into on July 18, 2007, WABCOQ is
responsible for certain tax contingencies and tax indemnification liabilities. The accrual for these tax contingencies
as of December 31, 2007 is described below.

The tax liabilities as of December 31, 2007 include $20.5 million related to non-US entities of Trane's Bath &
Kitchen business but for which WABCO enlities have obligations directly to non-US tax authorities. The $20.5
million is classified within long-term income tax liabilities on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2007.

The indemnification liabilities include $35.8 miltion related 10 non-US entities of Trane’s Bath & Kilchen
business for which WABCO would indemnify Trane. The tax and indemnification liabilities relate to foreign entities of
Trane’s Bath & Kitchen business and are applicable 10 tax years dating back to 2000 that are subject to examination
by foreign tax authorities. In addition, the indemnification liabilities include $19.7 million related to the WABCO
business for which WABCO would indemnify Trane. The indemnification liabilities of $35.8 million and $19.7 million
are classified as fong-term within Long-term indemnification liabilities on the balance sheet as of December 31,
2007.

The Tax Sharing Agreement also provides that WABCO is responsibte for $34.6 million of estimated costs as a
result of internal corporate reorganization transactions needed to effect the WABCO separation from Trane. This
obligation is comprised of income taxes of $4.3 million, non-income taxes of $3.9 million and an indemnification to
Trane of $26.4 million. The $4.3 million, $3.9 million and $26.4 million are classified as short-term liabilities on the
balance sheet as of December 31, 2007, within taxes on income, other accrued liabilities and indemnification
liabilities, respectively.
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NOTE 16. Related Party Transactions

Presented within the Company's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, are
Net Transters to Trane and Affiliates which include the following types of transactions:

{Amounts in Millions) 2007 2006 2005
Net receipts from changes in loans due toffrom Trane and affiliates . ............... $2886 $1108 § 96
Other net receipts, including Trane and affiliate locations ......................... 40.4 16.5 17.6
Dividends paidto Trane and affiliates . ...... ... ... ... . .. .. . ... ... (48.0) (259.8) (134.5)
Net Cash Transfers from/(to) Trane and Affiliates .. ....................... $281.0 $(132.5) $(107.3)

Net receipts from changes in loans to/from Trane and affiliates--The amount of cash that was provided to
the Company in order to fund working capital requirements as well as capital expenditures net of cash surplus
provided from the Company 10 other Trane entities. The net amount due from Trane of $86.3 million and $197.0
million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, were included in owners’ net investment. The net receipts
from changes in loans due 1o/from Trane and affiliates was $288.6 million. As there was no seftlement of
oultstanding net payable balances as of the date of Separation, the net resulting liability was recognized as
additional contributed capital surplus. Net interest income / (expense} totaling $(1.5} million, $(6.2) million and $6.0
million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, is included in the accompanying
combined consolidated Statement of Income. All interest rates are deemed to be at or near market rates except for
the interest rates carrying zero percent interest rates. There were no loans outstanding as of December 31, 2007. A
detailed summary of these related party loans, which may or may not be interest bearing, is provided below.

2006 2005
Trane Entity Avg. Avg.
Balance at Interest Monthly Balance at Interest Monthly
{Amounts in Millions) Dec. 31 Rate Balance Dec. 31 Rate Balance
Loans Receivable
Ideal Standard Holding ltalia S.rd. ... ... . ... .. $ 941 41% $ 101 % 90 29% $ 9.8
ASlInternationallnc. .......................... — 2.9% 16.5 97.7 29% 1010
WABCO Standard Trane BV .................... 9.2 2.7% 58 139.2 2.0% 2820
Ideal Standard Wabco Trane Ind. Com. Lida ... .... 81.1 0.0% 79.6 67.9 6.0% 69.8
Trane (UKYCO ... ... i 51.0 0.0% 47.9 453 0.0% 60.8
Trane do Brazilinde Com. Ltda. ................ — — — 1.9 0.0% 1.0
Total Loans Receivable .......................... 150.4 159.9 361.0 524.4
{Amounts in Millions)
Loans Payable
ASE.FinanceBVBA . ............ ... ... .. ..., — 3.3% 90.6 108.9 3.3% 9.2
ASlInternationalInc ... ........... ... .. ... . ... 5.8 6.0% 57 58 6.0% 5.7
WABCO Standard Trane BV .................... 6.7 3.5% 1.0 3586 28% 2738
Teling Air Condition System (Jiangsu} Co., Ltd. .. .. 205 2.8% 19.1 13.7 2.7% 94
Teling Air Conditioning Co, Ltd .................. 4.2 3.0% 27 — — —
Trane Trane Japan, Lid ...................... .. 29 09% 1.7 — — —
Trane Holding Haly BV . ............ ... ... .. ..., — — — — - —
Trane do Brazilinde Com. Ltda. ................ 240 0.0% 21.9 — — —
TJotalLoans Payable . ............................ 64.1 1427 164.0 298.1
Net Loans Receivable to/from Trane and Affiliates ... §$ 863 $ 17.2 $197.0 §226.3

Other net receipts, including Trane and affiliate locations—These amounts were included in owner’'s net
investment at December 31, 2006 and 2005. As these balances were not settled as part of the Separalion, the
resulting net liability was recognized as contributed capital surplus.
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Dividends paid to Trane and Affiliates—Dividends paid from WABCO to other Trane entities.
Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

WABCO has three investments in affiliates that are accounted for by the equity method. The first of these
investments is in Meritor WABCO. Meritor WABCO, in which WABCO has a 50% equity ownership, markets braking
systems products and sells the majority of WABCO products in the United States. The second of these investmenis
is in WABCO SA. WABCO SA, in which WABCO has a 49% equity ownership, is a distributor of breaking systems
products and selis WABCO products primarily in South Africa. The third of these investments is in Sundaram—
Clayton Ltd. Sundaram—Clayton Ltd., in which WABCO has a 39% equity ownership, is a diversified industrial
group headquartered in Chennai, India. its primary activities are a 56% ownership in TVS Motors, a leading Indian
motorcycle manufacturer, the Sundaram-Clayton braking system businesses and an aluminum die casling
business. As ol December 31, 2007, WABCO has investments in Sundaram Clayton of $66.5 million, Meritor
WABCO of $13.1 million, WABCO SA of $3.4 millicn. WABCO received dividends from the joint ventures of $11.2
million, 518.8 million and $14.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

WABCO Sales to WABCO Purchases from
Joint Venture 2007 2008 2005 2007 2006 2005
Meritor WABCO .. ... . . ... .. . .. ... ... $121.8 $165.8 $169.1 55— $0.1  $041
WABCO SA ... .. e, §$ 83 § 56 §$ 486 — — —
Sundaram Clayton .. ......................... $ 48 $ 03 $§ 02 S$1.8 509 $1.1

The following table summarizes the assets, liabilities, shareholders’ equity, and results of operations of
WABCO's investments in affiliates. Meritor WABCO and WABCOQ SA amounts have been derived from the
individual financial statements (as of and for the period ending December 31, 2007) of each of these entities.
Sundaram—~Ciayton Ltd. amounts have been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements as of and
for the period ended March 31, 2007, as Sundaram—Clayton Lid. only performs a full consolidation once a year at
this time.

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006
Assets:
LT = o $491.7 $393.2
NN UM . . 451.5 337.0
Total @S8IS . . o $943.2 §730.2
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Current iabilities . . ... e e $254.6 $2249
Non current liabilities and shareholders' equity ............ ... .. ... .. ... ... .. 688.6 505.3
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ......... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... .... $943.2 $730.2
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Results of operations:
Net sales ... e $1,387 $1170 $1,114
LSt Ol BaIES ... . i e $1,023 $ B44 S5 798
Income (loss) from continuing operations . ...........c.coieiiiiiien.... $ 55 § 82 §$ 89
N INCOME . e $ 3 $ 52 § 56

NOTE 17. Geographic Information

WABCO is a fully integrated global business with management struclures established in a variety of ways,
including around products, distribution channels and key customers. Our largest customer is Daimler, which
accounled for 14%, 17% and 15% of our sales in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Volvo accounted for 11%,
sales in 2007, 2006 and 2005. WABCO's ptants, engineering, technical support, distribution centers and other
support functions are shared among various product families and serve all distribution channels with many
customers. Based on the organizational structure, as well as the nature of financial information available and
reviewed by the Company's chief operating decision maker to assess performance and make
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decisions about resource allocations, the Company has concluded that its total WABCO operations represent one
reportable segment and that WABCO's performance and future net cash flow perspectives are best understood and
assessed as such.

Geographic Data

Year Ended December 31

{Amounts in millions} 2007 2006 2005
Product Sales:
OEM . $1,908.7 $1,579.9 $1,441.4
Aftermarket ... 507.2 435.3 389.6
Sales—Geographic distribution (a):
United States . . ... e $ 1717 $ 2210 $ 2155
Europe {countries below are included inthistotal) . ............. ... ... ... 1,840.0 14855 13379
GEeIMANY . . . e 768.0 638.7 591.1
France ........ e e e e e 1448 121.4 117.3
Sweden e 206.8 162.9 135.1
Other (countries below are included in thistolal) .. ... ... .. .. ... ..... 404.2 308.7 2776
JAPAN . e e 732 71.4 80.2
Brazil . e 116.3 86.9 85.1
Tolal sales . ... . e $2,415.9 $2,0152 $1,831.0

(a) Sales to external customers are classified by country of destination.

As of December 31

{Arhounts in millions) 2007 2006 2005
Long-lived Assets
Geographic distribution:
United States . ... e e e e $13.2 $ 118 $ 13.1
Europe {countries below are included inthistotal) ....... ... ... ... ... ........ 6929 6263 5759
L= 47 T2 391.2 3553 3295
Poland . ... 98.0 78.8 67.7
ONEr . e e e 77.0 64.1 542
Tolal long-lived assets . ........... .. i $783.1 §$702.2 $643.2

NOTE 18. Agreements Entered into During the Periods Presented

On July 16, 2007, WABCO entered into definitive agreements with Trane that, among other things, set forth the
terms and conditions of the Separation of WABCO from Trane and provide a framework for the relationship
between WABCOQO and Trane following the Separation. These agreements govern the relationship between WABCO
and Trane subsequent to the completion of the Separation and provide for the allocation between WABCO and
Trane of assets, liabilities and obligations attributable 10 periods prior to the Separation. In addition to the
Separation and Distribution Agreement, which contains many ¢f the key provisions related to the Separation of
WABCO and the Distribution of WABCO’s common shares to Trane’s shareholders, the parties also entered into a
Tax Sharing Agreement, a Transition Services Agreement, an Employee Matters Agreement and an Indemnification
and Cooperation Agreement. A summary of each of the agreements is as follows:

Separation and Distribution Agreement—sets forth WABCO's agreements with Trane regarding principal
transactions necessary to separate WABCO from Trane. This agreement also sets forth the other agreements that
govern certain aspects of WABCO's refationship with Trane after the completion of the Separation from Trane and
provides for the allocation of certain assets to be transferred, liabilities to be assumed and contracts to be assigned
to WABCO and Trane as part of the Separation.

Tax Sharing Agreement—governs the parties’ respective rights, responsibilities and obligations after the
Distribution with respect to taxes, including ordinary course of business taxes and taxes, if any, incurred as a result
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of any failure of the Distribution of all of the common shares of WABCO to qualify as a tax-free distribution for U.S.
federal income tax purposes within the meaning of Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Transition Services Agreement—governed the orderty transition of WABCO becoming an independent
company. Under the Transition Services Agreement, WABCO and Trane had agreed to provide each other with
various services, including services relating to human resources, payroll, treasury and risk management,
environmental technology, tax compliance, telecommunications services and information technology services. The
cost of each transition service was generally on the same payment terms and calculated using the same cost
allocation methodologies for the particular service as those associated with the costs on WABCO’s historical
financial statements. The majority of the services provided under the transiticn services agreement expired on
February 1, 2008.

Employse Malters Agreemeni—aliocates liabilities and responsibilities relating to employee compensation and
benetit plans and programs and other related matters in connection with the Separation, including the treatment of
outstanding incentive awards and cerlain retirement and wellare benefit obligations, both in and outside of the
United States. For further detail, please reter to Note 5 — Stock-Based Compensation.

Indermnification and Cooperation Agreemeni—Pursuant to this agreement, WABCO Europe BVBA (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of WABCQ), has agreed to be responsible for and to indemnify Trane and its subsidiaries
{including certain subsidiaries formerly engaged in the Bath and Kitchen business) and their respective affiliates
against any fines related to the European Commission’s investigation, as outlined in a Statement of Objections
received by Trane on March 28, 2007, into possible infringement of European Union competition regulations. For
further detail, please refer to Note 13—Woarranties, Guarantees, Commitments and Contingencies.

NOTE 19. Quarterly Data {Unaudited)

Year 2007

(Amounts in milllons) First Second Third Fourth
SIS e e $558.8 $582.3 §$595.5 $679.2
Costofsales . ... ... 406.1 4304 4376 4900
Gross Profil ... e 1527 1519 1579 189.2
Income before INCoOME 1aXeS . . . ... e 61.0 50.6 49.7 75.4
MG OME tAX S . . .t e e 20.9 19.5 50.0 21.0
NEE NGO . o e e it e e e e $401 %311 § (0.3) $ 544
Net income per share

BasiC . $059 $046 § (0.0) $ 0.81

19111 (o 1A $058 $045 5 (0.0) $ 0.79

Year 2006

{Amounts in millions) First Second Third Fourth
o= = S PP $479.9 S§511.2 §504.6 §519.5
Cost O SalES . ... e e e 3413 380.4 3645 377.3
Gross profit . ... e 138.6 130.8 1401 1422
Income beforeinCome taxes ... e 61.3 54.8 53.9 55.7
IMCOMEB I aXES ..o e e 20.7 20.5 15.8 30.9
el INCOMIE . . e e e $ 406 S 343 5 381 § 248
Pro forma net income per share

BasIC ... e $ 060 $ 051 S 056 $ 037

Diluterd e e e s $058 $049 5 055 $ 0.36

The sum of each value line for the four quarters does not necessarily equal the amount reported for the full year
because of rounding.
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NOTE 20. Subsequent Events

As of March 7, 2008, WABCO entered into an unsecured, 364 day Euro 100 million credit facility that will expire
on March 6, 2009 with Rabobank. The proceeds of the borrowings under the credit facility can be used for all
general corporate purposes. Borrowings thereunder would bear interest initially at the Euro Interbank Offered Rate
("EURIBOR”) plus 0.55%. The interest rate spreads above EURIBOR are subject to adjustments should the
Company’s leverage ratio change. Under this facility, WABCQ pays a commitrnent fee of 0.1925% per annum until
the earlier of the date the loan is drawn or the date the availability period for the facility expires (June 7, 2008 unless
exténded by the parties).

This facility contains various covenants that limit, among other things, liens, transactions, subsidiary
indebtedness, and cerlain mergers and sales of assets. The covenants also require WABCO to meet certain
financial tests: ratio of Consolidated Total Debt 10 Consolidated EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization} and the ratio of Consolidated EBITDA to Consclidated Interest Expense. At the date
of entering into this facility WABCO was in compliance with all the covenants contained in the credit agreement.

Also, as of March 7, 2008, WABCO entered into an unsecured, 364 day Euro 100 million credit facility that will
expire on March 6, 2009 with ABN AMRO. The proceeds of the borrowings under the credit facility can be used for
all general corporate purposes. Under this facility, WABCO pays initially a facility fee of 0.11% per annum.
Borrowings thereunder would bear interest initially at LIBOR plus 0.49%. The interest rate spreads above LIBOR
and the facility fee are subject to adjustments should the Company’s leverage ratio change.

This facility contains various covenants that limit, among other things, liens, transactions, subsidiary
indebtedness, and certain mergers and sales of assets. The covenants also require WABCO to meet cerain
financial tests: ratio of Consolidated Total Debt to Consolidated EBITDA (earnings before interest, laxes,
depreciation and ameorlization), the ratio of Consolidated EBITDA to Consolidated Interest Expense and a Liquidity
Test. At the date of entering into this facility, the Company was in compliance with all the covenants contained in the
credit agreement.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCCUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.,

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company has established a Disclosure Controls Committee that assists the Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer in their evaluation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures. Our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded, based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by
this report, that our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Rule
13a-15(e), are (i) effective to ensure that the information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company
files or submits under the Securities Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time
periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and (ji} is accumulated and
communicated to the Company's management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. There have been no changes in our internal
control over financial reporting during the most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially afiect, our internal contro! over financial reporting.

Management’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate interna! control over financial
reporting for the Company. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of tinancial reporting and the preparation of financia! statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Company’s internat control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reascnable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company,

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation ol
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the Company, and

{iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures included in such controls may deteriorate.

The Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting
based upon the framework in internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO}. Based upon such evaluation, our management concluded that
our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

The Company's effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, as of December 31, 2007, has
been audited by Ernst & Young Bedrijfsrevisoren BCVBA/Réviseurs d'Enireprises SCCRL, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as slated in their attestation report which is included immediately below.

WABCO Holdings Inc.

March 12, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of WABCO Holdings Inc.

We have audited WABCO Holdings Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission {the COSO criteria). WABCO Holdings Inc.'s management is
responsible for maintaining effective intermnal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the
eftectiveness of internat control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Reporl on
Internal Contrel over Financial Reporiing. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal
control over financial reporting based on cur audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating eflectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and tairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generalty accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a malerial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatlements, Also, projections of any evaluatlion of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, WABCO Holdings Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheet of WABCO Holdings Inc. as of December 31, 2007, and the related
consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2007,
and our report dated March 12, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young Bedrijfsrevisoren BCVBA/Réviseurs d'Entreprises SCCRL

Represented by:

/s/ Daniel J. Van Cutsem,
Partner

Brussels, Belgium

March 12, 2008

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART lll

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, the information required by Item 10 with respect to the Directors of
the Company set forth under the heading “Proposal 1 — Election of Directors” and “Directors” in the Company's
definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days following the end of the fiscal year covered by this report is
incorporated herein by reference.

The information reguired by ltem 10 with respect to the execulive officers of the Company has been included in
Part | of this Form 10-K (as ltem 4A) under the heading “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in reliance on
Instruction G{3) of Form 10-K and Instruction 3 to ltem 401(b) of Regulation 5-K.

Pursuant to instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, information concerning the Audit Committee and audit committee
financial expert disclosure set forth under the headings “Governance — Board Matters and Committee
Membership" and “— Committees of the Board — Audit Committee” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to
be filed within 120 days following the end of the fiscal year covered by this repor is incorporated herein by
reference.

Pursuant to instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, information concerning compliance with Section 16(a) of the
Securities Act of 1933 by officers and directors of the Company set forth under the heading “Certain Relationships
or Related Person Transactions and Section 16 Reporting Compliance — Section 16(a} Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days following the end of
the fiscal year covered by this report is incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding our Code of Conduct and Ethics set forth under the caption “Code of Conduct and Ethics”
in tem 1 of Part | of this Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Pursuant to Instruction G{3) to Form 10-K, information concerning directer and officer executive compensation
and related matters set forth under the headings “Report of the Management Development and Compensation
Commities,” "“Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Executive Compensation” and “Director Compensation” in
the Company's definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days following the end of the fiscal year covered by
this repont is incorperated herein by reterence.

Pursuant to instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, information concerning compensation commitiee interlocks and
insider participation set forth under the headings "Governance — Compensation Committee Interlocks and insider
Participation” in the Company's definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days following the end of the fiscal
year covered by this report is incorpeorated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Pursuant to Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, information concerning shares of common stock of the Company
beneficially owned by management set forth under the heading "Common Stock Ownership of Officers, Directors
and Significant Shareholders” in the Company's definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days following the
end of the fiscal year covered by this report is incorporated herein by reference.

Pursuant to {nstruction G(3) to Form 10-K, information concerning securities authorized for issuance under
equity compensation plans set forth under the heading “Equity Compensation Plans” in the Company’s definitive
proxy statement to be filed within 120 days following the end of the fiscal year covered by this report is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Pursuant to Instruction G{3) to Form 10-K, information concerning certain relationships and related party
transactions and director independence set forth under the headings “Certain Relationships or Related Person
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Transactions and Section 16 Reporting Compliance — Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions,”
and "Governance — Independence Standards for Board Service” and *— Availability of Corporate Governance
Materials” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement 1o be filed within 120 days following the end of the fiscal year
covered by this report is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Pursuant to Instruction G{3) to Form 10-K, information concerning principal accounting fees and services sel
forth under the heading "Audit Committee Matters — Audit Committee's Pre-Approved Policies and Procedures”
and “~~ Audit and Non-Audit Fees” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed within 120 days following
the end of the fiscal year covered by this report is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

{(a} 1. and 2. Financial statements and financial statement schedules

The financial statement and financial stalement schedules listed in the Index to Financial Statements and
Financial Statement Schedules on the following page are incorporated herein by reference.

(b) The exhibits to this Report are listed on the accompanying Index to Exhibits and are incorporated herein by
reference or are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

1. Financiat Statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2007 and 2006
Consolidated Statement of Income for years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income for years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Notes to Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

2. Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statement Schedules

3. Financial statement schedules, years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

I} Valuation and Qualitying Accounts

Page No.

M
40
42

43
44
39
39
75

Ail other schedules have been omitted because the information is not applicable or is not material or because the

information required is included in the financial statements or the notes thereto.
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SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
{Amounts in thousands)

Provision Addition,

Net of Reductions Foreign
Balance to Amounts Currency Balance
Beginning  Provided in Prior Translation End of
Description of Period Years Deductions Effects Periog
2007:
Reserve deducted from assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable . ... .. $6,533 $ (189) $ (602)(A) 5699 $6.441
2006:
Reserve deducted from assets:
Allowance for doubtiul accounts receivabte ... . _. $5,484 51,277 $ (788)(A) $56560 $6,533
2005:
Reserve deducted from assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable ... ... $7.956 $1,531 $(3,007}(A) $(996) 35,484

(A) Accounts charged off.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15{d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this repon to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

WABCO HOLDINGS INC.

By: /s Jacaues ESCULIER

Jacques Esculier
Chiet Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures Title Date
/s!  JACQUES ESCULIER Chief Executive Officer and Director March 14, 2008
Jacques Esculier {Principal Executive Officer)
/s/  UrmicH MICHEL Senior Vice President and Chief March 14, 2008
Uirich Michel Financial Officer (Principal

Financial Officer)

/s! ToDbD WEINBLATY Vice President and Controller March 14, 2008
Todd Weinblatt {Principal Accounting Officer)
. Chairman of the Board of Directors March 14, 2008

James F. Hardymon

* Director March 14, 2008
G. Peter D’Alola

" Director March 14, 2008
John F. Fiedler

. Director March 14, 2008
Dr. Juergen Gromer

* Director March 14, 2008
Kenneth J. Martin

* Director March 14, 2008
Michael T. Smith

’ Director March 14, 2008

Donald J. Stebbins

/s/ ULRICH MICHEL

Ulrich Michel
Attorney-in-fact
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Exhibit No,

WABCO HOLDINGS INC.
INDEX TO EXHIBITS

(The File Number of the Registrant, WABCO Holdings Inc. is 1-33332)

Description

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2007, by and between Trane Inc, and
WABCO Holdings Inc, (previously filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Form 8-K (File No, 001-
33332), filed on July 20, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Amended and Restated Cenrtificate of incorporation {previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's
Form 8-K (File No. 001-33332), filed on July 18, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Amended and Restated By-Laws of WABCO Holdings Inc. {previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the
Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-33332), fited on July 18, 2007 and herein incorporated by
reference).

Rights Agreement, dated July 16, 2007, by and between WABCO Holdings Inc. and The Bank of New
York {previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-33332), filed on July 18,
20067 and herein incorporated by reference).

Certificate of Designation of Junior Participating Cumulative Preferred Stock (previously filed as
Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Form 8-K (File No. 001-33332), filed on July 18, 2007 and herein
incorporated by reference).

Righis Certificate (attached as an exhibit to the Rights Agreement, dated July 16, 2007 filed as Exhibit
4.1 hereto).

Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate (previously filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Form
10-Q (File No. 001-33332}, filed on November 8, 2007 and herein incorperated by reference).

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2007, by and among Trane Inc. and certain of its
subsidiaries and WABCO Holdings Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-33332), filed on July 20, 2007 and herein incorporated by
reference).

Transition Services Agreement, dated July 16, 2007, by and between Trane Inc. and WABCO
Holdings Inc. (previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Form 8-K (File No. 001-33332}, filed
on July 20, 2007 and herein incorperated by reference).

Employee Matters Agreement, dated July 16, 2007, by and between Trane Inc. and WABCO Holdings
Inc. {previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K (File No. 001-33332), filed on July
20, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Indemnitication and Cooperation Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2007, by and among Trane Inc. and
certain of its subsidiaries and WABCO Holdings Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries {previously filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 8-K {File No. 001-33332), filed on July 20, 2007 and herein
incorporated by reference).

WABCO Holdings Inc. Omnibus Incentive Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Form S-8 (File No. 333-144908), filed on July 27, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Form of Indemnification Agreement (previously filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Form 10, as
amended (File No. 001-33332), filed on May 23, 2007 and herein incorporated by reterence) (Entered
into with all executive officers and all members of the Board of Directors, as reported in Form 8-Ks
filed by the Company on August 2, 2007 and September 5, 2007).

Form of WABCO Holdings Inc. Stock Option Grant Agreement for U.S. Employees (previously filed as
Exhibit 10.7 to the Company's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-33332), filed on November 8, 2007 and
herein incorporated by reference).
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.8

109

10.10

10.11

1012

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.18

10.20

10.21

10.22

Form of WABCO Holdings inc. Stock Option Grant Agreement for Non-U.S. Employees (previously
filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Company's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-33332), filted on November 8, 2007
and herein incorporated by reference}.

Form of WABCO Holdings Inc. Restricted Unit Grant Agreement for U.S. Employees (previously filed
as Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Form 10-Q {File No. 001-33332), filed on November 8, 2007 and
herein incorporated by reference).

Form of WABCO Holdings Inc. Restricted Unit Grant Agreement for Non-U.S. Employees {previously
filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the Company's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-33332}, filed on November 8, 2007
and herein incorporated by relerence).

WABCO Holdings Inc. Change of Control Severance Plan {previously filed as Exhibit 10.11 1o the
Company’s Form 10-Q (Fite No. 001-33332), filed on November 8, 2007 and herein incorporated by
reference).

Employment Agreement by and between WABCO Expats Inc. and Jacques Esculier, dated as of July
27, 2007 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-33332), filed on
November 8, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Amendment to Employment Contract of March 1, 2003 by and between Trane Europe BVBA and
Ulrich Michel, dated July 27, 2007 {previously filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company's Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-33332), filed on November 8, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Employment Agreement by and between WABCO Expats Inc. and Kevin Tarrant, dated as of July 1,
2007 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-33332), filed on
November 8, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Employment Agreement by and between World Standard Ltd. And Nikhil M. Varty, dated April 15,
2001 (previously liled as Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (Fite No. 001-33332}, filed on
November 8, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Addendum to Employment Agreement by and between World Standard Ltd. and Nikhil M. Varty,
dated February 1, 2006 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-
33332), filed on November 8, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Employment Agreement by and between Trane Europe BVBA and Jean-Christophe Figuerca, dated
January 21, 2005 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-
33332), fited on November 8, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Employment Agreement by and between Trane Europe BVBA and Dr. Christian Wiehen, dated
December 6, 2002 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File No. 001-
33332), filed on November 8, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Addendum to Employment Agreement by and between Trane Europe BVBA and Dr. Christian
Wiehen, dated March 30, 2007 (previcusly filed as Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Form 10-Q (File
No. 001-33332), filed on November 8, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

WABCO Holdings Inc. Supplemental Savings Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q (File No. 001-33332), filed on November 8, 20607 and herein incorporated by reference).

WABCO Holdings Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Form S-8 (File No. 333-148972), filed on January 31, 2008 and herein incorporated by reference).

Partnership Agreement, dated as of January 9, 1990, as amended by Amendment No. 1 thereto,
dated as of May 29, 1990, and Amendment No. 2 thereto, dated as of May 10, 2006, of Meritor
WABCO Vehicle Control Systems (formerly known as Rockwell WABCO Vehicle Control Systems), by
and between WABCO Automotive Control Systems, Inc. and ArvinMeritor Brake Holdings, Inc.
{successor in interest to Rockwell Brake Systems, Inc.) (previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the
Company’s Form 10 {File No. 001-33332), filed on May 23, 2007 and herein incorporated by
reference).
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Exhibit No.

Description

10.23

16.1

231
23.2
241

311
31.2
321

32.2

Five-Year Credit Agreement, dated as of May 31, 2007, among WABCO Holdings Inc. and certain
subsidiaries of WABCO Holdings Inc. and the financial institutions listed herein, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Issuing Bank and Swingline Lender, J.P. Morgan Europe Limited,
as London Agent, ABN AMRO Bank N.V., as Syndication Agent, and Bank of America, N.A., BNP
Paribas and Citibank, N.A., as Document Agents {previously filed as Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s
Form 10 (File No. 001-33332), filed on June 11, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Letter from Ernst & Young LLP dated August 2, 2007 {previously filed as Exhibit 16.1 to the
Company's 8-K (File No. 001-33332}, filed on August 2, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference).

Subsidiaries of the Company (previously filed as Exhibit 21.1 1o the Company's Form 10 (File No.
001-33332), filed on July 5, 2007 and herein incorporated by reference}.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.
Consent of Ernst & Young Bedrijfsrevisoren BCVBA/Réviseurs d'Entreprises SCCAL.

Form of Power of attorney (James F. Hardymon, G. Peter D'Aloia, John F. Fiedler, Dr. Juergen
Gromer, Kenneth J. Martin, Michael T. Smith and Donald J. Stebbins).

Certitication of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certitication of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxtey Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Execulive Officer pursuant to Section 908 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification cf the Chief Financial QOfficer pursuani to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
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